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NOTICE OF THE 23*° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 23"° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF E-LAND APPAREL LIMITED
(THE COMPANY) WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY, 29™ DECEMBER, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. (IST) THROUGH VIDEQ
CONFERENCING/OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS (VC) TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement as at 31* March, 2020 together withthe Reports of
the Directors’ and the Auditors’ thereon

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 179 read with section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”), including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, the Audited
Balance sheet as at 31 March, 2020 and statement of Profit and loss for the year ended on that date together with
notes, schedules and cash flow statement , Board’s Report thereon placed before the member of the company, is be
and hereby received, approved and adopted.’

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution including filing of formg
to Registrar of Companies.”

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Jae Ho Song, Managing Director of the Company who retires by rotation as a Directol|
of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jae Ho Song (having DIN: 07830731), Managing Director of the Company whd
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any re-enactment(s) or modification(s), thereof for
the time being in force), Mr. Jae Ho Song (having DIN: 07830731), Managing Director, who retires by rotation at thig
meeting, and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Director of the
Company.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution including filing of formg
to Registrar of Companies.”

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

3. Re-appointment of Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi (DIN: 07213341) as an Independent Director of the Company for a second
term of 5 (Five) consecutive years.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicablg
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules,

2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi (DIN
07213341) who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of Five years up to June 18
2020 by members at the 18" Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act
2013, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five
consecutive years commencing from 19" June 2020 up to 18" June, 2025, not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, all the Directors of the Company or the
Chief Financial Officer or the Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds
matters and things as they may in their absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard and to sign and execute all necessary documents
applications, returns and writings, including any agreements related thereto, as may be necessary, proper, desirable
or expedient.”

Ratification of Related Party Transaction with various parties:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and in
terms of the Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rule 2014 and also Regulation 23 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
members of the Company do hereby confirm, ratify and approve the contract and/ or arrangements entered with
the following related parties during the period from 1 April 2019 till 31 March 2020.”

Sr. No Name of Related Party’ Transaction Value Nature of Transaction

1. E Land Fashion India Private Ltd. 21,66,26,000 Purchase of Goods

2. E Land World Co Ltd. 35,90,17,000 Sale of Goods

3. E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd 41,87,50,000 Intercorporate Borrowing

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do or cause to be
done all such acts, deeds and things, settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise with regard to any
transaction with the related party, finalize the terms and conditions as may be considered necessary, expedient of
desirable and execute such agreements, documents and writings and to make such filings as may be necessary of
desirable, in order to give effect to this Resolution in the best interest of the Company."

To approve the Related Party Transaction

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, in
terms of the Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rule 2014 and also Regulation 23 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
subject to such other Regulations, Guidelines and Laws (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and subject to all applicable approvals, permissions and such conditions as may
be prescribed by any of the concerned authorities while granting such approvals, which may be agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Boarg
for entering into any contracts and / or arrangements with the following Parties for an amount not exceeding the
limits as detailed below:”
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Sr. | Name of the Related Party Nature of | Transaction Nature of
No Relationship (Amount in INR) Transaction
1 E Land Fashion India Private | Fellow Subsidiary 30,00,00,000 Purchase of Goods
Ltd.
2 E Land World Co Ltd. Ultimate Holding | 45,00,00,000 Sale of Goods
Company
3 E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd Holding Company 55,00,00,000 Intercorporate
Borrowing
4 E-land Retail Limited Fellow Subsidiary 20,00,00,000 Sale of Goods

6. Waiver of recovery of excess managerial remuneration paid to Mr. Jae ho Song, (DIN: 07830731), Managing
Director of the Company for the financial year 2018-19 and 2019-20.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the approval by the members for the payment of remuneration to Mr. Jae Ho Song
Managing Director of the Company at the 20™ Annual General Meeting of the Company and pursuant to the
provisions Sections 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other applicable provisions and rules, if
any, of the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and
pursuant to the recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company and subject to such approval as may be
required, the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to ratify and confirm the waiver
of recovery of the excess remuneration paid to Mr. Jae ho Song, (DIN: 07830731), Managing Director of the
Company amounting to Rs. 1,53,27,462.25 for the financial year 2018-19 and Rs. 1,66,55,139 for the financial years
2019-20, which was in excess of the limits approved by the Members of the Company at their Annual Genera
Meeting held on September 17, 2017.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do or cause to be
done all such acts, deeds and things, settle any queries, difficulties, doubts that may arise with regard to any
transaction with the related party, finalize the terms and conditions as may be considered necessary, expedient o
desirable and execute such agreements, documents and writings and to make such filings as may be necessary of
desirable, in order to give effect to this Resolution in the best interest of the Company”

Date: September 04, 2020 By order of the Board of Directors
Place: Bengaluru For E-Land Apparel Limited

Registered Office:

#16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl Estate, Singasandra Near SD/-

Dakshin Honda Showroom Hosur Road, Bengaluru Mr. Jae Ho Song

KA 560068 IN Chairman & Managing
CIN: L17110KA1997PLC120558 Director

E-mail: investor@elandapparel.com DIN 07830731

Date: September 04, 2020.
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NOTES:

In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, Ministry of Corporate vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Securities and Exchange
Board of India vide its Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 (hereinafter collectively referreq
to as ‘Circulars’) permitted companies to hold AGM through video conference (“VC”) or other audio visual meang
(“OAVM”), without the physical presence of members at a common venue. Accordingly, the AGM of the Company will bg
held through VC. In accordance with the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Compan
Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) read with Clarification/ Guidance on applicability of Secretarial Standards issued by the ICSI
the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company. Since the AGM
will be held through VC/ OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this Notice.

1. The AGM shall be deemed to be held at the Registered Office of the Company at #16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl Estate
Singasandra near Dakshin Honda Showroom Hosur Road, Bengaluru 560068.

2. The Circulars waived the requirement of permitting the members to appoint proxies to attend and vote on his/hef
behalf, as the AGM is being held through VC. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members wil
not be available. However, in pursuance of section 112 and section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representativey
of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM
through VC and cast their votes through e-voting.

Participation of members through VC will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as per section 103 o
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at thq
AGM through VC. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the
meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board resolution / authorization letter to the Company o
upload on the VC portal/e-voting portal.

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the special Business to bg
transacted at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is annexed hereto.

NSDL will be providing facility for voting through remote e-Voting, for participation in the 23 AGM through
VC/OAVM facility and e-Voting.

Members may note that the VC/OAVM facility, allows participation of at least 1,000 Members on a firstcome-first
served basis. The large Shareholders (Shareholders holding more than 2%), promoters, Institutional investors
directors, Key managerial personnel, Chairperson of Audit/NRC/SRC Committee, Auditors etc, maybe allowed tqg
attend the meeting without the restriction on account of first-come-first-served basis.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact NSDL on evoting@nsdl.co.in / 1800-222-99(
or contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager — NSDL at amitv@nsdl. co.in /022-24994360 or Mr. Sagar Ghosalkar|
Assistant Manager- NSDL at sagar.ghosalkar@nsdl.co.in / 022-24994553.

The Company has appointed Bigshare Services Private Limited, RTA, as Registrars and Share Transfer Agents fo
Physical Shares. The said (RTA) is also the Depository interface of the Company with both NSDL & CDSL. Following
information of RTA is as follows:

Telephone N0.022-40430200/ 62638200
E-mail address: investor@elandapparel.com
Fax No.022 -28475207/62638299
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However, keeping in view the convenience of Shareholders, documents relating to shares will continue to be receiveq

by the Company at its Registered Office
Telephone No. 022-40430200/ 62638200

Email: investor@elandapparel.com

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of th¢
Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section
189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. All documents referreq
to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the members from the date o
circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. Tuesday, gt December, 2020 to Tuesday, 29 December, 2020
Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to investor@elandapparel.com.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday, 23"
December, 2020 to Tuesday, 29" December, 2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

Members are requested to notify immediately change of address, if any, to their Depository Participants (DPs) in
respect of their electronic share accounts and Bigshare Services Private Limited (RTA), or to the Company at itJ
Registered Office in respect of their physical shares.

Members desiring any information are requested to write to the Company 10 days in advance a
investor@elandapparel.com.

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of thq
Company as on the cut- off date Wednesday, 23" December,2020 .

Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Noticg
and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request a
evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he / she is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then he / she can usg
his / her existing user ID and password for casting the vote.

The e-voting period commences on Saturday, 26" December 2020 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends on Monday, 28"
December, 2020 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period, members holding share either in physical or dematerialized form
as on cut-off date, may cast their votes electronically. The e-voting module will be disabled by NSDL for voting
thereafter. A member will not be allowed to vote again on any resolution on which vote has already been cast. The
voting rights of members shall be proportionate to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as
on the cut-off date.

The facility for voting during the AGM will also be made available. Members present in the AGM through VC and whd
have not cast their vote on the resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so
shall be eligible to vote through the e-voting system during the AGM.

A persons, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by
the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting as
the AGM facilitated by NSDL.

In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with the corresponding rules, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”), the Company has provided 3
facility to its members to exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting (“e-voting”) facilit
provided by the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). Members who have cast their votes by remote e
voting prior to the AGM may participate in the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. The manner o
voting remotely by members holding shares in dematerialized mode, physical mode and for members who have nof
registered their email addresses is provided in the instructions for e-voting section which forms part of this Notice
The Board has appointed Ms. Kumudini Bhalerao of MMIJC & Co, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer tq
scrutinize the e-voting in a fair and transparent manner.
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he Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting
with the assistance of scrutinizer, for all those members who are participating in the AGM through Videg
Conferencing but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities
market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their depositor
participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit their PAN details to the RTA.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at thg
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses nof
in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, 4
consolidated scrutinizer report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman or a persor
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

The Result declared along with the report of the scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company and or
the website of NSDL the results shall simultaneously be communicated to the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

Electronic Dispatch of Annual Report and Process for Registration of e-mail Id for obtaining the Annual Report:

Pursuant to Sections 101 and 136 of the Act read with the relevant Rules made thereunder and Regulation 36 of thg
SEBI Listing Regulations, companies can send Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode tq
those Members who have registered their e-mail addresses either with the Company or with the Depository
Participant(s). In accordance with the Circulars issued by MCA and SEBI and owing to the difficulties involved in
dispatching of physical copies of the financial statements (including Report of Board of Directors, Auditor’s report of
other documents required to be attached therewith) due to COVID-19 pandemic situation such statements including
the Notice of the 23 AGM are being sent through electronic mode to Members whose e-mail address is registered
with the Company or the Depository Participant(s). Members may note that the Notice of the Meeting and the
Annual Report 2019-20 is available on the Company’s website www.elandapparel.com , website of the Stock
exchanges i.e. BSE i.e., www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of NSDL i.e
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Since the AGM will be held through VC in accordance with the Circulars, the route map, proxy form and attendancs
slip are not attached to this Notice.

Instructions for Members for participating in the AGM through VC/OAVM
Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system
Members may access the same at www.evoting.nsdl.com under member’s login by using the remote e-voting

credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Members login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed.

The Members can start joining in 30 (thirty) minutes before the scheduled time of AGM and it will be kept open fo
15 (fifteen) minutes after the start of AGM.

The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 Members on firs|
come first served basis.

User Guidelines/Compatibility for viewing of AGM:
v" All you need is a computer with an Internet connection (high speed service such as DSL or cable works best) anq

speakers Compatible Browser list: Google Chrome 50 | Microsoft Edge | Internet Explorer 10 & above | Firefox
Safari | Opera
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v" Video Buffering/Video Stuck but not audible: Check on the Internet Connection, Check whether you havg

sufficient bandwidth for viewing the Same, To check whether if you have sufficient bandwidth for viewing the

same, click on the system check tab or visit speed test.net Minimum Internet Speed should be 10 MBPS with th¢
Upload and Download Ratio of 1:1.

v Allow third party cookies.
v" You may also use a headset instead of speakers.

v Please refresh your browser (for laptop / desktop kindly press CTRL+F5)

Procedure to raise questions / seek clarifications with respect to Agenda of AGM:

As the AGM is being conducted through VC / OAVM, for the smooth conduct of proceedings of the AGM, Members
are encouraged to express their views / send their queries in advance mentioning their name, Demat accoun{
number / folio number, email id, mobile number to investor@elandapparel.com Questions / queries received by thg
Company till 5:00 p.m. IST on Friday, December 25", 2020, shall only be considered and responded to during the
AGM.

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate fo
smooth conduct of the AGM, depending on availability of time.

Voting through electronic means

l. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, the Company is pleased to provide its members, as on the mentioned cut-off date the
facility to exercise their right to vote by electronic means on any or all of the businesses specified in the
Notice, at the 23 Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be
transacted through e-Voting Services provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

Il. The facility for voting shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the meeting
through VC who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the
meeting.

1. The remote e-voting period commences on Saturday, 26" December 2020 at 9:00 am and ends on Monday,
28™ December 2020 at 5:00 P.M. During this period members of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the mentioned cut-off date may cast their vote by remote e-
voting. The remote E-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a
resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

V. How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
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Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholders’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using

your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. cast your vote electronically.

Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat |Your User ID is:

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in demat | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID

is 12**¥**** then your user ID is IN3QO*** 1 2******

b) For Members who hold shares in demat | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is
L¥xkxKHAAKKXXE®  then your wuser ID s
12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered

Form. with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***

Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your
vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password
and the system will force you to change your password.

¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the pdf file is
your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your postal address.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
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(a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL of

CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

(b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

(c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request af
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your

registered address.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 are given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then, clicK
on Active Voting Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding
shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.
Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and
password and registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self- attested) scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanneg
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to sadhananitro@sncl.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID)
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card)
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to sadhananitro@sncl.com

General Guidelines for shareholders

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail tg
kumudiniparanjape@mmjc.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.
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2. Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your

password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in
the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” of

“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting uset
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.

1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Registered Office:

#16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl Estate, Singasandra Near SD/-

Dakshin Honda Showroom Hosur Road, Bengaluru KA Mr. Jae Ho Song

560068 IN Chairman & Managing Director
CIN: L17110KA1997PLC120558 DIN: 07830731

E-mail: investor@elandapparel.com
Date: September 04, 2020
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Explanatory Statement under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No.3

At the 18™ Annual General Meeting of the members of the company held on 30" September 2015, Mrs. Elizabeth Rayi
was appointed as an Independent director for a period of 5 years. Her existing term expires on 18-06-2020.

Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi holds the qualification of B.SC B.Ed., M.S.W (Masters in Social Work), Diploma in Medical Laboratorjy
Technology and DHRM (Diploma in Human Resource Management). He has also obtained the required expertise in PSI
an international NGO, working for the HIV/AIDS infected and affected people (for 1 year). 2. Worked efficiently as
Project Coordinator in WORLD VISION INDIA - International Christian NGO working for the upliftment of slum dwellen
and rural areas basically in health and education. (For 7 year).

T D

Pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014 and the amendments made theretp
from time to time, Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi has also registered herself in the Data Bank maintained by the Indian Institute af
Corporate Affairs for a period of five years and has paid the fees accordingly.

=+

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi continues to fulfill the conditions g
independence as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and the SEBI (Listing Obligations an
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 and the amendments made thereto, for re-appointment as an Independent
Director.

=5

Considering her qualification, expertise and experience, it has been recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 13" July 2020, re-appointed her as an
independent director of the Company for a period of 5 years with effect from 19" June 2020 on the terms and conditions
as detailed in the resolution as set out in item no. 4 of this notice, subject to approval of members of the Company.

Iltem No. 4:

The Company has entered following transactions in the year 2019-20 with Related Parties.

Sr. No | Name of Related Party Transaction Nature of Transaction Nature of relation
Value Ship
1. | E Land Fashion India Private | 21,66,26,000 Purchase of Goods Fellow Subsidiary
Ltd.
2. | ELand World Co Ltd. 35,90,17,000 Sale of Goods Ultimate Holding
Company
3. | E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd 41,87,50,000 Intercorporate Holding Company
Borrowing

As per the provisions of the Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, defines term Material Related Party Transaction. It provides that all related party
transactions shall be considered as “Material” if the transaction entered with or transactions to be entered individually
or taken together with a Related Party along with previous transactions during a Financial Year exceeds 10% of the
Annual Consolidated Turnover of the company as per the Last Audited Financial Statement of the Company. The Materia
Related Party Transactions requires approval of the Shareholders by passing an Ordinary Resolution and in respect of
voting on such resolution(s), all the related parties shall abstain from voting, irrespective of whether the entity or person
is a party to the particular transaction or not. pursuant to Regulation 23(7) of SEBI (LODR)
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Members may please note that based on the criteria as mentioned above in the SEBI LODR above transactions are
“Material” and therefore requires approval of the Company by Ordinary Resolution.

Accordingly, an Ordinary Resolution under Item No. 4 for ratification/approval of the above transactions is placed beforg
the Shareholder for ratification/approval. Hence, the Board recommends the said enabling resolution for the approval of
the members. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives may be deemed
to be interested / concerned in this resolution, except to their respective shareholdings in the Company, if any.

Item No. 5:

Your Company has entered into a transaction with the companies as mentioned in the resolution which is a “Related
Party” as defined under Section 2 (76) of the Companies Act, 2013.
As per the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 “Related Party Transactions” requires prior consent
of the Board where transactions proposed to be entered into falls in the list of items referred therein and are within
threshold limits prescribed under Rule 15 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Power) Rules, 2015. Proviso tg
Section 188 further provides that nothing contained in sub-section (1) of Section 188 applies where transactions arg
entered into by the company in the ordinary course of business other than transactions which are not on an arm's length
basis.

As per the provisions of the Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, defines term Material Related Party Transaction. It provides that all related party
transactions shall be considered as “Material” if the transaction entered with or transactions to be entered individually
or taken together with a Related Party along with previous transactions during a Financial Year exceeds 10% of the
Annual Consolidated Turnover of the company as per the Last Audited Financial Statement of the Company. The Materia
Related Party Transactions requires approval of the Shareholders by passing an Ordinary Resolution and in respect of
voting on such resolution(s), all the related parties shall abstain from voting, irrespective of whether the entity or person
is a party to the particular transaction or not, pursuant to Regulation 23(7) of SEBI (LODR)Regulations 2015.

Members may please note that based on the criteria as mentioned above in the SEBI LODR, transactions with such
related parties as mentioned in Item No. 6 are “Material” and therefore requires approval of the Company by Ordinary
Resolution.

Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, particulars of
the transactions are as follows:

Sr Name of the | Name of the Director or | Nature of Relationship | Nature, material terms,
No. Related Party | KMP who is related monetary value and
particulars of the contract or

arrangement
1 E Land | None Fellow Subsidiary Contract for purchase of
Fashion India goods shall be on a continuous
Private Ltd. basis and in the ordinary
course of business. Monetary
value of proposed aggregate
transactions during financial
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year 2020-21 is expected to be
INR 30,00,00,000.

2 E Land World | None Ultimate Holding | Contract for Sale of goods
Co Ltd. Company shall be on a continuous basis

and in the ordinary course of
business. Monetary value of
proposed aggregate
transactions during financial
year 2020-21 is expected to be
INR 45,00,00,000.

3 E Land Asia | None Holding Company Availing of Intercorporate
Holdings Pte Borrowing on a continuous
Ltd basis and in the ordinary

course of business. Monetary
value of proposed aggregate
transactions during financial
year 2020-21 is expected to be
INR 55,00,00,000

4 E-land Retail | None Fellow Subsidiary Contract for sale of Goods
Limited shall be on a continuous basis
and in the ordinary course of
business. Monetary value of
proposed aggregate
transactions during financial
year 2020-21 is expected to be
INR 20,00,00,000.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives, other than as
mentioned above is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the resolution as set out at item no. 5 of this Notice as an Ordinary
Resolution

Item No. 6:
Mr. Jae Ho Song is on the Board as Managing Director of the Company with effect from May 30, 2017.

In the Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2017, members of the Company approved the remuneration of
5,00,000 which can be increased up to 9,00,000 per month to be paid to Mr. Jae Ho Song. However, excess remuneration
was paid to Mr. Jae Ho Song for the financial year 2018-19 & 2019-20 respectively, exceeding the limits as passed by the
members.
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The Management believes that the excess remuneration paid to Mr. Jae Ho Song is justified keeping in view hig
contributions to E-land Apparel Limited. Therefore it is proposed to waive of the excess remuneration paid to Mr. Jae hd
Song.

Further, the Nomination and remuneration Committee and the Board have at their respective meeting(s) subject to the
approval of the members of the Company, accorded their approvals for waiver of the recovery of excess manageria
remuneration paid by the Company to Mr. Jae Ho Song and, in the interest of the Company have also recommended the
aforesaid resolution as set out in this Notice for approval of the Members.

Accordingly, it is proposed that approval of the members of the Company by way of a special resolutions be obtained fol
the waiver of recovery of excess remuneration paid to Mr. Jae Ho Song

The Company has not defaulted in payment of dues to any bank or public financial institution or non-convertiblg
debenture holders or other secured creditor, if any.

Save and except Mr. Jae Ho Song and their relatives to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company
none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested
financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out in item no. 6 respectively.

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the resolution set out under Item No. 1 for approval of the members as a
special resolution through
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Brief resume of Directors being re-appointed (in pursuance of Regulation 36(3)(a) of the Listing Regulations) and

Information pursuant to 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) regarding Director seeking

appointment / re-appointment

(Annexure-1)
Name of the Director Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi
DIN 07213341
Date of birth 3" September ,1978
Nationality Indian
Date of appointment on the board 19" June,2015
Designation Independent director
Qualification B.SC B.Ed,,

M.S.W (Masters in Social Work), Diploma in Medical
Laboratory Technology and
DHRM (Diploma in Human Resource Management)

Experience/Expertise

1. Worked in PSI - an international NGO, working for
the HIV/AIDS. Infected and affected people (for 1
year).

2. Worked efficiently as a Project Coordinator in
WORLD VISION INDIA - International Christian NGO
working for the upliftment of slum dwellers and
rural areas basically in health and education. (For 7
year)

Directorships in other Companies

Nil

Membership in Committees

1. Audit committee.
2. Stakeholder Relationship Committee.

Relationship with existing Directors

Nil

Shareholding in the Company

Nil

(Annexure-2)

Name of the Director

Mr. Jae Ho Song

DIN 07830731

Date of birth 3" December,1977

Nationality Indian

Date of appointment on the board 30" May, 2017

Designation Chairman and Managing Director

Qualification

Graduate in Textile Engineering from Soongsil
University

Experience/Expertise

He has 17 years of vast experience in the Garment
Industry

Directorships in other Companies Nil
Membership in Committees Stakeholder Relationship Committee.
Relationship with existing Directors Nil
Shareholding in the Company Nil
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Registered Office:

#16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl Estate, Singasandra Near
Dakshin Honda Showroom Hosur Road, Bengaluru KA
560068 IN

CIN: L17110KA1997PLC120558

E-mail: investor@elandapparel.com

Date: September 04, 2020.

Annual Report 2019-2020

SD/-

Mr. Jae Ho Song

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 07830731
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members of E-Land Apparel Limited (‘Company’)

Your Directors present the 23™ Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial

Statements for the Financial Year ended 31° March, 2020.
1. FINANCIALS:

a) FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Financial Performance of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2020 is summarized below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31* |Year ended 31°"
March, 2020 March, 2019

Operational & Other Income 15,247.65 17,606.5
Loss before Interest, Depreciation, Prior period items, Exceptional (21.66) (47.12)
ltems & Tax
Interest 4782.11 3,910.37
Depreciation & Amortization 439.06 194.39
Loss before exceptional items and tax (5,242.83) (4,151.88)
Prior period items - -
Exceptional Items - -
Loss before tax (5,242.83) (4,151.88)
Less/(Add): Provision for Taxation including prior period adjustments |- -
Other Comprehensive Income 30.04 28.72
Deferred Tax - -
Loss after tax (5,212.80) (4,123.16)

b) OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY / COMPANY PERFORMANCE:

The Company’s total income from operations for F.Y. 2019-20 was at Rs. 14,934.90 lacs which was less as
compared to last years loss by Rs. 2,266.99 (Rs.17, 201.89 lakhs in F.Y 2018-19). The total expenses for F.Y.
2019-20 at Rs. 20,490.48 lacs were lesser than by Rs. 1,267.9 over last year (21,758.38 lacs in F.Y. 2018-19).
Loss after tax for F.Y. 2019-20 stood at Rs. (5,242.83 Lakhs) as against Rs (4,151.88lacs) for F.Y. 2018-19
reflecting increase in loses by 1090.95 lacs

Focus efforts have been placed on expanding the end applications of our product line over the last several
years which has helped in expected results this year, offering healthy sustainability for the years to come.

The company’s product quality standards have been able to maintain steady relationships with our long
standing customers along with building relationships with several new customers.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

As there are losses for the Financial Year 2019-20, the Company did not transfer any amount to reserves
during the year.

DIVIDEND:

As there are no profits, the Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend any payment of dividend
on the equity shares for the Financial Year 2019-20.

UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF:

The Company is not required to transfer any amount to IEPF Account.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time (including any amendment thereto or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of Financial Statements provided in thisAnnual Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

i THE PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the Financial Year were on an arm’s length
basis and were in the ordinary course of business as part of Company’s philosophy of adhering to
highest ethical standards, transparency and accountability.

All Related Party Transactions up to 31* March, 2020 were placed before the Audit Committee and the
Board for approval. Also, prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee was obtained for Related
Party Transactions for the Financial Year 2019-20. The transactions entered into pursuant to the
omnibus approval so granted were audited and a statement giving details of all related party
transactions was placed before the Audit Committee for its review on a quarterly basis.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed Form AOC-2 is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure - | and
forms part of this Report.

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board
has approved a policy on related party transactions. An abridged policy on related party
transactions has been placed on the Company’s website at:
http://www.elandapparel.com/Policy%200n%20Related%20Party%20Transactions%20-%20E-land.pdf

Further, none of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel has any pecuniary relationships or
transactions vis-a-vis the Company which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company
at large.
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ii.  DISCLOSURE OF LOANS AND ADVANCES IN NATURE OF LOAN TO SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE OF
THE COMPANY:

During the year under review, your Company did not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture
Company, hence the disclosure under said clause is not applicable.

INSURANCE:

The assets of your Company are adequately insured. Your Company has also taken out suitable cover for
Public Liability.

DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the
purview of provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing of
details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act or the details of deposits which are not in
compliance with the Chapter V of the Act is not applicable.

SHARE CAPITAL:

During the year under review, your Company’s Authorized Share Capital is Rs. 60,01,00,000 comprising of
6,00,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Company’s paid up capital is Rs. 47,99,04,690 comprising of
4,79,90,469 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up.

During the year under review there was no change in the Share Capital of the Company.
As on March 31, 2020, none of the Directors of the Company holds shares of the Company.

REMUNERATION / COMMISSION DRAWN FROM HOLDING / SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

During the year under review, none of the Directors of the Company have drawn any remuneration /
commission from the Company’s holding Company / subsidiary Companies.

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATIONS AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, no Company have become or ceased to be Subsidiary, Associate or Joint
venture company. Also, the Company does not have any subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

As the Company does not fall under any of the threshold limits given under the provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013, the compliances under CSR are not applicable to the Company.

MATTERS RELATED TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:

a) DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The independent directors have submitted the Declaration of Independence, as required pursuant to
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 and 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as
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b)

provided in sub-section (6). There has been no change in the circumstances, which has affected their
status as independent director.

Further, Non - Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship other than sitting fee
for attending meetings

EVALUATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors held on 14™ February 2020, performance of non-
independent directors, performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was
evaluated.

Familiarization Program For Independent Directors

All new independent directors inducted into the Board are familiarized with the operations and
functioning of the Company. The details of the training and familiarization program are provided in the
Corporate Governance report and is also available on the website of the Company at
www.elandapparel.com

MATTERS RELATING TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THECOMPANY:

a)

b)

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20:

During the year under review, the Board met four times in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 to discuss and decide on various business strategies, policies and other issues.

The intervening gap between any two Meetings was not more than the period prescribed by the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards in respect of all the above Board
meetings.

The detailed composition of Board of Directors and requisite details are given in the Corporate
Governance Report.

FORMALANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors has adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating various aspects of the Board’s
functioning its performance and as well as that of its committee i.e. Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration, Stakeholders Relationship, Risk Management Committee and individual directors. The
criteria for performance evaluation of the Board include aspects like composition of the Board and its
Committees, culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance,
experience, competencies etc. The exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process
covering various aspects of the Boards functioning such as composition of the Board and Committees,
experience and competencies, performance of specific duties and obligations, governance issues etc.
Separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of Individual Directors who was
evaluated on parameters such as attendance, contribution at the meetings and otherwise, independent
judgment, safeguarding of minority shareholders interest The Board of Directors expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.
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APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS DURING THE YEAR 2019-20:

a) APPOINTMENT:

During the year 2019-20 no Director has been inducted on the Board of the Company.

b) RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS:

During the year 2019-20 no director has been resigned from the board of the company.

c) RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS;

» The existing agreement with Mr. Chong Tae Baek (Non-Executive - Independent Director) and Mr.

Sivabalan Paul Pandian (Non-Executive - Independent Director) terminated on 31st March, 2019 and
that of Mr. Kyoung Hur (NonExecutive - Independent Director) terminated on 4th August,2019.

Pursuant to section 149 (10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term of up to
five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing
of a special resolution by the Company for another term of up to five consecutive years on the Board
of the Company.

In view of above provision and based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13th February, 2019 proposed to reappoint
Mr. Chong Tae Baek, Mr. Sivabalan Paul Pandian and Mr. Kyoung Hur for second term of five years
by passing special resolution through Postal Ballot. Consequently, the members granted approval
for reappointment of Mr. Chong Tae Baek, Mr. Sivabalan Paul Pandian and Mr. Kyoung Hur on 1*
April, 2019.

The existing agreement with Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi (Non-Executive - Independent Director) terminates
on June 18, 2020 Pursuant to section 149 (10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office
for a term of up to five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-
appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company for another term of up to five
consecutive years on the Board of the company.

In view of above provision and based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13th July, 2020 proposed to reappoint Mrs.
Elizabeth Ravi for second term of five years by passing special resolution in ensuing Annual general
meeting.

d) RETIREMENT BY ROTATION:

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Jae
Ho Song (DIN: 07837031),Executive Managing Director, who retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. He has confirmed that he is not
disqualified from being appointed as Directors in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Necessary resolution for re-appointment Mr. Jae Ho Song as Managing Director is given under Notice of
Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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8. APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS DURING THE YEAR
2019-20

a) APPOINTMENT :

Mr. Diwakar Jugani was appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance officer with effect from. November
14, 2019.

b) RESIGNATION:

No Key Managerial Personnel of the Company has resigned during financial year ending March 31, 2020.

9. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Board of
Directors of your Company, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

a) Inthe preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and
there are no material departures;

b) They have selected accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company
at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit of your Company for thatperiod;

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of your Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

d) They have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis;

e) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by your Company and that suchinternal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operatingeffectively

10. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIORMANAGEMENT

The remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management is in accordance
with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management is mentioned in Form MGT — 9 is hereto attached and marked as Annexure - Il for the Financial
Year ended 31 March 2020.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Board of Directors of your Company has constituted the following committees in terms of the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. Composition of the following Committees are also hosted on the website of the Company at
http://www.elandapparel.com/pdf/composition-of-committees.pdf:

a) Audit Committee.

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
c) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

d) Risk Management Committee.

The details regarding composition and meetings of these committees held during the year under review is
stated under Corporate Governance Report which may be taken as forming part of this Report.

Also, Board of Directors of the Company had constituted Internal Complaint Committee for Prevention and
Prohibition of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace in terms of provisions of The Sexual Harassment

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:-

The salient features of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report. The said Policy of the Company, inter alia,
provides that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for appointment &
re-appointment of Directors on the Board of the Company and persons holding Senior Management
positions in the Company, including their remuneration and other matters as provided under Section 178 of
the Act and Listing Regulations. The Policy is also available on the website of the Company
http://www.elandapparel.com/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an Extract of the Annual Return
in Form MGT — 9 is hereto attached and marked as Annexure - Il for the Financial Year ended 31* March
2020.

The extract of Annual Return shall also be placed on the website of the Company at http://www.eland apparel.

com.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies
(Accounts) Rules,2014, is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure — Ill and forms part of thisReport.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

The Corporate Governance Report pursuant to Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2)
and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure — IV and forms part of this Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report on the operations of the Company as required pursuant to
Part B of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed
hereto and marked as Annexure — V and forms part of thisReport.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES:

The Company has an employee drawing remuneration above the limits mentioned in Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the details of the same is annexed hereto and marked
as Annexure — VI and forms part of thisReport.

AUDITORS AND REPORTS:

a) STATUROTY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY:

At the 21% Annual General Meeting held on 29" September, 2018, the Members approved appointment
of M/s. Hiresh R Doshi & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No: 117366W/W-100018)
pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, due to casual vacancy occurs on
the resignation of Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No.117366W/W-100018) to hold office from the conclusion of the 21* Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the 26™ Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year 2023 and they continue
to be the Statutory Auditor of the Company.

Following qualifications were made by Statutory Auditor M/s. Hinesh R. Doshi & Co LLP, Practicing
Chartered accountants (Firm registration No: 117366W/W-100018) in the internal financial control
Report of Audit Report for the financial year 2019-20.

towards getting acknowledgments for the
Disbursements done towards outstanding
vendor balances.

Sr. No Particulars of Qualifications Explanations by Board
1 The company did not have adequate internal | Company has identified the same and
controls for timely reconciliations of vendor | will take suitable steps for timely
Ledger balances. reconciliations of vendor Ledger
balances.
2 The company had inadequate controlsi Company has identified the same and

will take suitable steps to make control
towards getting acknowledgments for
the disbursements done towards
outstanding vendor balances.

Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to Schedules is enclosed to this report.
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b) SECRETARIAL AUDITORS OF THECOMPANY:

Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 inter-alia requires every listed company to annex with its Board’s
report, a Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary in practice, in the prescribed form. The
Board appointed M/s. DSM and Associates, Practicing Company Secretary in Practice (M No. 26141 CP
No. 9394), Mumbai, as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial
Year 2019-20 and their report is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure - VII. Observation made by
Secretarial Auditor as per said report along with explanation made by Board of Directors is given below:

Sr. No

Particulars of observation

Explanation by Board

1

As per section 203(4) of the Companies Act, 2013
vacancy of KMP shall be filled-up by the Board
within a period of six months, however the
vacancy caused due to the resignation of CS
Hemlata Gupta dated 31/03/2020 was filled up by
the Company by the appointment of CS Diwakar
Jugani dated 14/11/2020, after the delay of the

prescribed period.

Due to Non Availability of suitable

Candidate there was delay in

Appointment of Company Secretary.

BSE Vide letter dated

LIST/COMP/532820/REG. 6 (1)-DEC-
19/297/2019-20 imposed fine of Rs./-
44,000. Company had duly paid the fine

Imposed by the BSE and assures the
Shareholders that all future vacations in
the office of the KMPs will be fulfilled
within the time limit specified by the
law.

As per regulation 13(3) of LODR, Statement of
Investor Complaint to be filed with the exchanges
on a quarterly basis, within twenty one days from
the end of each quarter. But Statement of Investor
Complaint for the quarter ended June, 2019 and
December, 2019 was incorrectly filed with the
exchange. Whereas the correct/ revised filing of

the same was carried out by the Company.

Statement of Investor Complaint for
the quarter ended June, 2019 and
December, 2019 was incorrectly filed
with the exchange. Whereas the
correct/ revised filing of the same was

carried out by the Company.
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As per Regulation “Persons” mentioned in the
30(1) and 30(2) of SEBI (Substantial acquisition of
Shares & Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, Persons
their

mentioned in the have to disclose

shareholding, pursuant to Regulation 30(3),
within seven working days from the end of each
financial year to every stock exchange where the
shares of the target company are listed and at

the registered office of the target company.

Same is Ratified by the Company and

the Disclosures under regulations
30(1) and 30(2) of SEBI (Substantial
acquisition of Shares & Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2019, and
31st March, 2020 is now reflating on

the BSE website.
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Annual Disclosure for the financial year ended
31st March, 2019, and 31st March, 2020, has
been submitted by the promoter to the Company
as well as Stock Exchange. However the same
disclosure was not reflecting on the Portal of
www.bseindia.com at that time due to some

technical issue. Currently it is reflecting.

Regulation 24 (A) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 inter-alia
requires every listed company to annex with its Board’s report, a Secretarial Annual Compliance Report
given by a Company Secretary in practice, in the prescribed form. The Board appointed M/s. DSM and
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary in Practice (M No. 26141 CP No. 9394), has provided
Secretarial Annual Compliance Report and their report is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure —
Viil.

COST AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY:

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company is not required to appoint Cost Auditor
of the Company.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. This ensures that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly, and assets
are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition. Your Company has
adequate internal controls for its business processes across departments to ensure efficient operations,
compliance with internal policies, applicable laws and regulations, protection of resources and assets
and appropriate reporting of financial transactions.

The Company has Internal Audit function which is empowered to examine the adequacy and compliance
with policies, plans and statutory requirements. It comprises of experienced professionals who conduct
regular audits across the Company’s operations. The Company has also appointed a firm of Chartered
Accountants as Internal Auditors, who reviews the various functions of the Company thoroughly and
report to the Audit Committee. During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee of the
Company had reviewed the new requirement of Internal Control over Financial Reporting (“ICOFR”) and
finalized the detailed analysis of key processes, and these were presented for review by the Statutory
Auditors. The control mechanism and the process of testing of controls were discussed with the
Statutory Auditors. The Statutory Auditors have submitted their report on the Internal Financial Controls
which forms an integral part of thisReport.

The adequacy of the same has been reported by the Statutory Auditors of your Company in their report
as required under the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003.

The Company has appointed M/s. S.K Patodia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditor
of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20.
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REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY STATUTORY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12):

During the year under review at the time of vendor reconciliation, it has been observed that there has been
wrongful discounting of payments to vendors and swindling away with Company funds by two employees of
the Company. On further enquiry, both the employees have accepted to indulge in such activities. As of the
reporting date, from the total vendor accounts which were verified, both employees have agreed for the
wrongful discounting and swindling with the payment of Rs. 2,65,06,890/- from the Company bank account.
Company has recovered amount of Rs. 1,17,95,540/- from both the employees. Company is in the process
of recovering the balance amount of Rs. 1,47,11,350/- which is included under "Other Non-Current Assets"
and same is unsecured. Company is also in process of further investigating the unreconciled vendor ledgers
and quantifying the total amount involved.

Company has terminated both the employees with immediate effect.

CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDERTRADING

On December 31, 2018, Securities and Exchange Board of India amended the Prohibition of Insider Trading
Regulations, 2015, prescribing various new requirements with effect from April 1, 2019. In line with the
amendments, your Company has adopted an amended Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report
trading by Designated Persons and their Immediate Relatives under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. This Code of Conduct also includes code of practices
and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information and has been made available
on the Company’s website at http://www.elandapparel.com/E-Land%20Apparel%20-
%20Co0de%200f%20Conduct%20Insider%20trading.pdf

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Risk Management Policy of the Company including identification therein of elements of risk which in the
opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Regulation
21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The details of the same are
mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report. The policy is also available on the Company's website at
http://elandapparel.com/Eland%20-%20Risk%20Management.pdf

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 (9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations
2015 the Company already has in place “Vigil Mechanism Policy” (Whistle Blower Policy) for Directors and
employees of the Company to provide a mechanism which ensures adequate safeguards to employees and
Directors from any financial statements and reports, etc.

The employees of the Company have the right/option to report their concern/grievance to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and
legal conduct of business operations. The policy is also available on the Company's website at
http://www.elandapparel.com/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
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INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy against sexual
harassment in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

During the Financial Year 2019-20 the Company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment and
hence no complaints remain pending as of 31st March, 2020 Further, the Company has complied with
provisions relating to constitution of Internal Complain Committee under Sexual Harassment of woman at
workplace (prevention, prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS & COURTS:

During the year 2019-20 No Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators & Court.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 43(a)(ii) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per provisions
of Section 43 (a) (ii) of the Act read with Rule 4 (4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules,
2014 is furnished.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 54(1)(d) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has notissued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no information
as per provisions of Section 54 (1) (d) of the Act read with Rule 8 (13) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 62(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year under
review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62 (1) (b) of the Act read with Rule 12 (9) of
the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 isfurnished.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares
purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67 (3) of the Act read with Rule 16 (4)
of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 isfurnished.

IMPACT OF COVID-19

The country witnessed lockdown being implemented in India in the second fortnight of March 2020. There
were also restrictions of varying extent across larger part of the world, due to the COVID-19 pandemic. This
impacted the business operations of the Company significantly. The Company started resuming operations
in its manufacturing plants and warehouses after taking requisite permissions from Government authorities.
Standing by its core commitment, the Company is navigating through these unprecedented times by building
stronger and deeper relationships with consumers and its partners. The Company is supporting various
Government Initiatives and helping communities around to fight the pandemic. Detailed information on the
same has been included under the Management Discussion & Analysis report forming part of this Annual
Report.
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI

Your Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS - 1)
and General Meetings (SS - 2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the
CentralGovernment.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The relationship with the workmen and staff remained cordial and harmonious during the year and the
management received full cooperation from the employees. The Company continues to focus on extensive
training and developmental activities and efficiency and quality improvement initiatives. The total number
of employees as on 31st March, 2020 was 2424.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There was no change in the nature of Company’s business during the year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY:

Your Company had received letter of Intent form E-land Aisa Holdings Pte. Limited (‘EAHPL’) dated
September 01, 2020 for the proposal for Voluntary Delisting of the equity shares of face value of X 10 each
(“Equity Shares”) of the Company and same is Communicated to Bombay Stock exchange vide letter dated
September 1, 2020.

Your Company will be considering for Voluntary Delisting subject to approval of Board, Shareholders,
Bombay Stock exchange (BSE), Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and other regulatory authority.

APPRECIATION / ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation and express their gratitude for the contribution
made by the employees at all levels but for whose hard work, and support, your Company’s achievements
would not have been possible. The Board takes this opportunity to express its gratitude for the valuable
assistance and co-operation extended by Government Authorities, Banks, Corporate Debt Restructuring
(CDR) Cell, Financial Institutions, Vendors, Customers, Advisors and other business partners.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
E-Land Apparel Limited

SD/- SD/-
Date: September 04, 2020 Jae Ho  Song Chong Tae Baek
Place: Bengaluru Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 07830731 DIN : 01566661
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FORM AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties

referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transaction

under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: NIL

Name(s) of | Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms | Justificati | Date(s) of | Amount | Date on
the contracts | the contracts | of the | on for | approval by | paid as | which
Related Party / / contracts or | entering the Board advances | special
and nature | arrangem | arrangements | arrangements | into such resolution
of ent / | / transactions | or contracts/ was passed
Relationship transacti transactions | arrangem in the

ons including the | ents General

value, if any | /transacti meeting
ons

Choi Haeoi | Services Ongoing NA 14-02-2017 | NA NA
(Chief financial | in
officer) relation

to CFO of

the

company

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

Name of | Nature of | Terms of | Nature of | Actual amount | Date of | Amount paid
the contract contract Relationship | of the | approval by the | as advances,
Related transaction Board Members | if any
Party
and
Relation
E-Land Purchase of | Purchase of | Fellow 21,66,26,000/- 13 February, Nil
Fashion Goods Goods as per subsidiary 2019
India terms of | company
Private Ltd. agreement
E Land | Sale of Goods | Sale of Goods | Ultimate 35,90,17,000/- 13" February, Nil
2019
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World Co as per terms Holding
Ltd. of agreement | Company
E Land Asia Intercorporate | Intercorporate | Holding 41,87,50,000 13" February, Nil
Holdings Borrowings Borrowings as | Company 2019
Pte Ltd per terms of

agreement
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
E-Land Apparel Limited

SD/- SD/-

Date: September 04, 2020 Jae Ho Song Chong Tae Baek
Place: Bengaluru Managing Director Independent Director

DIN: 07830731

DIN : 01566661
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ANNEXURE — Il TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on Financial Year ended on 31* March 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

l REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN ;| L17110MH1997PLC106945
Registration Date : | 31/03/1997

Name of the Company : | E-LAND APPAREL LIMITED
Category : | Company Limited by Shares.

Sub-Category of the Company

Indian Non-Government Company.

Address of the Registered office

#16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl Estate, Singasandra Near Dakshin Honda
Showroom House Road, Bangalore KA 560068

Address of the Corporate office

Office No. 404, Western Edge-I, 4th Floor, Western Express Highway,
Magathane, Borivali (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400066

Contact details

Tel: (022) 40972600/01

Fax: 28472602

Email: investor@elandapparel.com
http://elandapparel.com/

Whether listed company

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

Name, Address and Contact
details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:

M/s. Bigshare Website: Services Pvt. Ltd,

1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road,
Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400059.

Contact Number : 40430200

*The company has been voluntarily delisted from National Stock Exchange (NSE) with effect from October

01, 2019.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. Name and Description of main products/ NIC Code of the Product/ service | % to total turnover of the
No. | services company
1 Garments 14101 100%
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Il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

019-2020

Sr. Name and address of the Company CIN / GLN Holding / | % of shares | Applicable section
No. subsidiary / held
associate
1. E-Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd. NA Holding 65.84% 2(46)
50 Raffles Place, #11-03B, Singapore (Foreign
Land Tower, Singapore — 048623 Company)
I SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):
i. Category-wise Share Holding:
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of %
Shareholders 1* April, 2019 the year 31* March, 2020 Chan
ge
durin
8
the
year
Demat Physical | Total % of | Demat Physical | Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a)Individual/HU 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
F
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Sub-total(A)(1): 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
(2) Foreign
a) NRls - -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Individuals
b) Other - -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp. 3,15,98,094 - 3,15,98,094 | 65.84 | 3,15,98,094 - 3,15,98,094 65.84 | 0.00
d) Banks / FI - - -- -- -- -- -- -- --
e) Any other -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --
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Sub-total (A)(2):

3,15,98,094

3,15,98,09

65.84

3,15,98,094

3,15,98,094

65.84

0.00

Total
shareholding
of Promoter (A)

(A)(1)+(A)(2)

3,15,98,094

31598094

65.84

3,15,98,094

3,15,98,094

65.84

0.00

B. Public
Shareholding

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

5,94,476

5,94,476

5,94,476

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e)Venture
Capital Funds

f)Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h)Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):

5,94,476

5,94,476

1.24

5,94,476

5,94,476

1.24

0.00

(2)Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

11,17,204

11,17,241

5,18,434

5,18,471

(1.25)

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i)Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital up
to Rs. 1 lakh

66,78,995

67,39,499

64,14,558

64,75,062

(0.55)

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal

64,70,771

12,500

64,83,271

13.51

70,90,896

12,500

71,03,396

14.80

1.29
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share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others
(specify)

Hindu Undivided
Family

11,07,114

11,07,114

2.31

14,02,702

14,02,702

2.92

0.62

Trusts

0.00

0.00

Clearing
Member

94,191

94,191

0.20

58,506

58,506

0.12

(0.07)

Non Resident
Indians (NRI)

0.00

0

0

0.00

Non Resident
Indians (Repat)

1,79,761

1,79,761

0.37

1,68,490

1,68,490

0.35

(0.02)

Resident
(Non

Non
Indians
Repat)

76,822

76,822

0.16

71,272

71,272

0.15

(0.01)

Directors
Relatives

0.00

0.00

0.00

Employee

0.00

0.00

0.00

Overseas Bodies
Corporates

0.00

0.00

0.00

Unclaimed
Suspense
Account

0.00

0.00

0.00

IEPF

0.00

0.00

0.00

Qualified
Foreign Investor

0.00

0.00

0.00

NBFCs
Registered With
RBI

0.00

0.00

0.00

Sub-total(B)(2):

1,57,24,858

73,041

1,57,97,899

32.92

1,57,24,858

73,041

1,57,97,899

32.92

0.00

Total Public
Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2
)

1,63,19,334

73,041

1,63,92,375

34.16

1,63,19,334

73,041

1,63,92,375

34.16

0.00

C. Shares held
by

Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total

4,79,17,428

73,041

4,79,90,469

100.00

4,79,17,428

73,041

4,79,90,469

100.00

0.00
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| (A+B+C) | | | | |
ii. SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:
Sr. Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No. | Name
No. of Shares | % of total % of Shares No. of Shares | % of total % of Shares | % change
Shares of | Pledged/ Shares of | Pledged /| inshare
the encumbered the encumbere | holding
Company to total shares Company d to total during
shares the year
1. E-Land  Asia | 3,15,98,094 65.84 0.00 3,15,98,094 65.84 0.00 0.00
Holdings Pte
Ltd.
iii. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING :
Sr. Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
No. | Name
No. of Shares | % of total % of Shares No. of Shares | % of total % of Shares | % change
Shares of | Pledged/ Shares of | Pledged /| inshare
the encumbered the encumbere | holding
Company to total shares Company d to total during
shares the year
1. E-Land  Asia | 3,15,98,094 65.84 0.00 3,15,98,094 65.84 0.00 0.00
Holdings Pte
Ltd.
iv. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND
HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):
Sr. Shareholding at the Transactions during the Cumulative Shareholding at
No. beginning of the year — year the end of the year —31%
1% April, 2019 March, 2020
NAME & TYPE OF No. of % of total Date of No. of No. of shares | % of total
TRANSACTION shares shares of the | transaction | shares held shares of the
held company company
1 VIKRAM SHARAD SHETH - -
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Market Buy 602875 1.26 30- Mar-19 0 602875 1.26
Market Buy - 1.26 26-Apr-19 125 603000 1.26
Market Buy - 1.26 03-May-19 450 603450 1.26
Market Buy - 1.26 10-May-19 801 604251 1.26
Market Buy - 1.26 17-May-19 2677 606928 1.26
Market Buy - 1.26 24-May-19 10 606938 1.26
Market Buy - 1.27 31-May-19 875 607813 1.27
Market Buy - 1.27 07-June-19 204 608017 1.27
Market Buy - 1.27 14-June-19 150 608167 1.27
Market Buy - 1.27 23-Aug-19 50 608217 1.27
Market Buy - 1.27 30-Aug-19 50 608267 1.27
Market Buy - 1.27 06-Sep-19 50 608317 1.27
Market Buy - 1.27 13-Sep-19 1183 609500 1.27
Market Buy - 1.27 18-Sep-19 2267 611767 1.27
Market Buy - 1.28 19-Sep-19 1250 613017 1.28
Market Buy - 1.28 26-Sep-19 208 613225 1.28
Market Buy - 1.28 04-Oct-19 150 613375 1.28
Market Buy - 1.28 18-Oct-19 1475 614850 1.28
Market Buy - 1.28 25-Oct-19 750 615600 1.28
Market Buy - 1.29 01-Nov-19 2750 618350 1.29
Market Buy - 1.29 08-Nov-19 2211 620561 1.29
Market Buy - 1.30 15-Nov-19 1650 622211 1.30
Market Buy - 1.30 22-Nov-19 2439 624650 1.30
Market Buy - 1.30 29-Nov-19 910 625560 1.30
Market Buy - 1.30 13-Dec-19 150 625710 1.30
Market Buy - 1.30 20-Dec-19 290 626000 1.30
Market Buy - 1.31 31-Dec-19 1150 627150 1.31
Market Buy - 1.31 03-Jan-20 50 627200 1.31
Market Buy - 1.31 10-Jan-20 84 627284 1.31
Market Buy - 1.31 17-Jan-20 866 628150 1.31
Market Buy - 1.31 24-Jan-20 6 628156 1.31
Market Buy - 1.31 31-Jan-20 644 628800 1.31
Market Buy - 1.31 07-Feb-20 100 628900 1.31
Market Buy - 1.31 14-Feb-20 250 629150 1.31
Market Buy - 1.31 21-Feb-20 40 629190 1.31
Market Buy - 1.31 27-Mar-20 100 629290 1.31
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 31-Mar-20 - 629220 1.31
CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA 594476 1.2387 - 594476 1.24
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 31-Mar-20 - 594476 1.24
RAVINDRA BISHESHWAR

AGRAWAL 495845 1.03 - 495845 1.03
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Market Sell - 1.02 09-Aug-19 (5000) 490845 1.01
Market sell - 1.01 17-Jan-20 (5000) 485845 1.01
Market Sell 1.01 24-)Jan-20 (1635) 484210 1.01
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 31-Mar-20 - 484210 1.01
RIMA KUNAL JHAVERI 423000 0.88 - - 423000 0.88
AT THE END OF THE YEAR - - - - 423000 0.88
ANIL VISHANJI DEDHIA 399000 0.83 - - 399000 0.83
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 399000 0.83 - - 399000 0.83
NIRAJ CHHAGANRAJ

GEMAWAT 277923 0.58 - - 277923 0.58
AT THE END OF THE YEAR - - - - 277923 0.58
MARWADI SHARES AND

FINANCE LTD. 199495 0.42 - - 199495 0.42
Market buy - 0.42 05-Apr-2019 1128 200623 0.42
Market sell - 0.41 12-Apr-2019 (3740) 196883 0.41
Market sell - 0.37 19-Apr-2019 (20421) 176462 0.37
Market Buy - 0.37 26-Apr-2019 1821 178283 0.37
Market Buy - 0.38 03-May-19 1760 180043 0.38
Market sell - 0.04 10-May-19 (162081) 17962 0.04
Market sell - 0.04 17-May-19 (1040) 16922 0.04
Market Buy - 0.04 24-May-19 1379 18301 0.04
Market sell - 0.03 31-May-19 (5113) 13188 0.03
Market Buy - 0.03 07-June-19 2399 15587 0.03
Market Buy - 0.04 14-June-19 2810 18397 0.04
Market Buy - 0.04 21-June-19 852 19249 0.04
Market Buy - 0.04 28-June-19 858 20107 0.04
Market Buy - 0.05 05-Jul-19 4264 24371 0.05
Market Buy - 0.05 12-Jul-19 1629 26000 0.05
Market Buy - 0.06 19-Jul-19 701 26701 0.06
Market sell - 0.06 26-Jul-19 (1) 26700 0.06
Market sell - 0.05 02-Aug-19 (451) 26249 0.05
Market buy - 0.06 09-Aug-19 1748 27997 0.06
Market sell - 0.06 16-Aug-19 (448) 27549 0.06
Market Buy - 0.06 30-Aug-19 1444 28993 0.06
Market sell - 0.06 06-Sep-19 (1192) 27801 0.06
Market Buy - 0.07 13-Sep-19 3554 31355 0.07
Market Buy - 0.07 18-Sep-19 (379) 30976 0.07
Market Sell - 0.06 26-Sep-19 (1001) 29975 0.06
Market Buy - 0.06 04-Oct-19 434 30409 0.06
Market Buy - 0.06 11-Oct-19 (109) 30300 0.06
Market Sell - 0.06 18-Oct-19 (324) 29976 0.06
Market Buy - 0.07 01-Nov-19 2877 32853 0.07
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Market sell - 0.06 08-Nov-19 (2381) 30472 0.06
Market sell - 0.06 15-Nov-19 (450) 30022 0.06
Market Buy - 0.06 22-Nov-19 114 30136 0.06
Market Sell - 0.06 29-Nov-19 (160) 29976 0.06
Market buy - 0.07 13-Dec-19 2490 32466 0.07
Market Sell - 0.06 20-Dec-19 (3990) 28476 0.06
Market sell - 0.06 31-Dec-19 (1229) 27247 0.06
Market Buy - 0.06 24-Jan-19 16 27263 0.06
Market sell - 0.06 31-Jan-19 (16) 27247 0.06
AT THE END OF THE YEAR - - - - 27247 0.06
8 | VARSHA VIKRAM SHETH 186650 0.39 - - 186650 0.39
Market Buy 0.39 03-May-19 150 186800 0.39
Market Buy 0.39 10-May-19 100 186900 0.39
Market Buy 0.39 24-May-19 25 186925 0.39
Market Buy 0.39 14-June-19 600 187525 0.39
Market Buy 0.39 21-June-19 300 187825 0.39
Market Buy 0.39 23-Aug-19 60 187885 0.39
Market Buy 0.39 30-Aug-19 25 187910 0.39
Market Buy 0.39 06-Sep-19 50 187960 0.39
Market Buy 0.39 13-Sep-19 40 188000 0.39
Market Buy 0.40 04-Oct-19 2050 190050 0.40
Market Buy 0.40 11-Oct-19 120 190170 0.40
Market Buy 0.40 18-Oct-19 20 190190 0.40
Market Buy 0.40 25-Oct-19 100 190290 0.40
Market Buy 0.40 01-Nov-19 110 190400 0.40
Market Buy 0.40 15-Nov-19 300 190700 0.40
AT THE END OF THE YEAR - - - 190700 0.40
9 | ANILJINDAL 134952 0.28 - - 134952 0.28
Market Buy 0.41 13-Mar-20 60000 194952 0.41
AT THE END OF THE YEAR - - - - 194952 0.41
10 | VISHANJI SHAMIJI DEDHIA 150000 0.313 - - 150,000 0.313
AT THE END OF THE YEAR - - - - 150000 0.313
11 | ANILJINDAL HUF 151707 0.32 151707 0.32
Market sell 0.19 13-Mar-20 (60000) 91707 0.19
AT THE END OF THE YEAR - - - - 91707 0.19
SHAH ASHITKUMAR
12 | NALINKUMAR (HUF) 16088 0.03 16088 0.03
Market Buy 0.07 10-May-19 15721 31809 0.07
Market Sell 0.07 17-May-19 (55) 31754 0.07
Market Sell 0.07 24-May-19 (60) 31694 0.07
Market Sell 0.06 31-May-19 (1060) 30634 0.06
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Market Sell 0.06 07-June-19 (50) 30584 0.06
Market Sell 0.06 14-June-19 (925) 29659 0.06
Market Sell 0.06 21-June-19 (161) 29498 0.06
Market Sell 0.06 05-July-19 (1109) 28389 0.06
Market Sell 0.05 12-July-19 (2056) 26333 0.05
Market Sell 0.05 19-July-19 (501) 25832 0.05
Market Sell 0.05 26-July-19 (510) 25322 0.05
Market Sell 0.05 09-Aug-19 (448) 24874 0.05
Market Sell 0.04 30-Aug-19 (3477) 21397 0.04
Market Sell 0.04 13-Sep-19 (379) 21018 0.04
Market Sell 0.04 11-Oct-19 (55) 20963 0.04
Market Buy 0.36 24-Jan-19 149984 170947 0.36
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 170947 0.36

SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Sr.

No.

Shareholding at the beginning of

the year

Cumulative Shareholding during

the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
Company

No. of shares

% of total shares
of the Company

Mr. Jae Ho Song
(Managing Director & Chairman)

At the beginning of the year

At the End of the year

Mr. Chong Tae Baek
(Non-Executive-Independent Director)

At the beginning of the year

At the End of the year

Mr. Kyoung Hur
(Non-Executive - Independent Director)

At the beginning of the year

At the End of the year

Mr. Sivabalan Pandian
(Non-Executive-Independent Director)

At the beginning of the year

At the End of the year

Elizabeth Ravi
(Non-Executive - Independent Director)
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At the beginning of the year

At the End of the year

6 Choi Haeoi
(Chief Financial Officer)

At the beginning of the year

At the End of the year

7 Diwakar Jugani (Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer)

At the beginning of the year

At the End of the year

I INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

(In Rs.)

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the Financial Year

i) Principal Amount

35,04,64,000

35,04,64,000

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

Addition

8,07,13,000

8,07,13,000

Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

43,11,77,000

43,11,77,000

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

43,11,77,000

43,11,77,000

] REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
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(in Rs.)

Sr.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Mr. Jae Ho Song

Total Amount

Gross salary

1,66,55,139

1,66,55,139

the Income-tax Act,
1961

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of --

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 --

Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax --

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify

Others, please specify

Total (A)

1,66,55,139

1,66,55,139

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

Sr.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of other Directors

Total Amount

Mr. Chong
Tae Baek

Mr. Kyoung Mr. Mrs.
Hur Sivabalan Elizabeth
Pandian* Ravi

1. Independent Directors

Fee for attending board / committee 60,000
meetings

90,000 30,000 1,20,000

3,00,000

Commission -

Others, please specify --

Total (1) -

2. Other Non-Executive Directors -

Fee for attending board / committee Nil
meetings

Commission -

Others, please specify --

Total (2) -

Total (B)=(1+2) -
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‘ Total Managerial Remuneration 60,000 90,000 ‘ 30,000 | 1,20,000 3,00,000
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD:
Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of KMPs
No.
Company CFO Total
Secretary &
Compliance Officer
Mr.Diwakar Jugani# Mr. Choi Haeoi
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 2,49,333 Nil --
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s -- -- --
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income -- -- --
tax Act, 1961
Stock Option -- -- --
Sweat Equity -- -- --
Commission
- as % of profit -- -- --
- others, specify -- -- --
5 Others, please -- -- --
specify
Total -
*Mr. Diwakar Jugani is appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer with effect from
November 14, 2019.
v PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
During the year, no penalties were levied against the Company, its directors or any of its officers under the
Companies Act, 2013 nor was there any punishment or compounding of offences against the Company, its
directors or any of its officers
Type Section of | Brief Details of | Authority Appeal made, if
Companies | Description Penalty / | [RD /NCLT/ any
Act Punishment/ | COURT] (give Details)
Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
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Penalty - Non Compliance of - Bombay Stock No, Company
Regulation 6(1) of SEBI exchange. has paid the fine
LODR Regulations, 2015, imposed by the
for Quarter Ended exchange.
December 2019.

Fine Amount :- 44,000

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
E-Land Apparel Limited

SD/- SD/-
Date: September 04, 2020. Jae Ho Song Chong Tae Baek
Place: Bengaluru. Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 07830731 DIN : 01566661
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“ANNEXURE C"” TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

Information as per Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31° March, 2020.

1) Conservation of Energy:

(a) Energy Conservation Measures taken by the Company:

The Company has taken various steps to reduce consumption of energy like separate meters are being
installed for effectively monitoring the Section wise energy consumption.

(b) Additional Investment and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy. Re-
sizing of the motors is being done to run the motors at full load conditions.

(c) Impact of measures (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on cost of
production of goods. Energy conservation measures have led to reduction in the cost of production.

(d) Total energy consumption per unit of production as per Form “A”.
(e) Natural ventilation equipment installed on the sheds to conserve energy.
(f) Installed power factor control/capacitor banks to conserve energy.

(g) Minimizing idle running of various type of equipment like air conditioners, submersible pumps, lights,
generators, compressors and ceiling fans.

(h) Hot water recovering and re-utilization to the process machines like bleaching, dyeing and washing process
cycles.

FORM A

Form for Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy.

A. Power and fuel consumption:

Garment
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
(2019 - 2020) (2018-2019)
1. Electricity
(a) Purchased
Unit (Lakhs) 16.54 17.69
Total amount (Rs. Lakhs) 144.57 151.97
Rate/unit 8.74 8.59
(b)Own generation
(i) Through diesel generator
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Unit (Lakhs Ltrs) 0.39 0.65
Total amount (Rs. Lakhs) 26.81 44.85
Cost/unit 68. 69
(ii)Through steam turbine/generator NIL NIL
Units - -
Total amount (Rs. Lakhs) - -
Cost/units - -
2. Coal (specify quality and where used) NIL NIL
Quantity (Tonnes) - -
Total amount (Rs. Lakhs) - -
Average rate - -
3. Furnace oil NIL NIL
Quantity (K. Ltrs.) - -
Total amount - -
Average rate - -
B. Consumption per unit of production
Garment

Standards (if any)

Current Year
(2019 - 2020)

Previous Year
(2018- 2019)

Products unit

35.21 Lakhs Pieces

40.22 Lakhs Pieces

Electricity (Rs.) 4.10 / Piece 3.78 / Piece
Furnace oil NIL NIL
Coal NIL NIL
Others NIL NIL

Technology Absorption:

. Research and Development (R & D):

1. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company:

Product and quality improvement, development, new designs, cost control and energy conservation.
Substitution of raw material with cheaper options has been undertaken. New process developments and
devising new innovative products are essential to improve the bottom-line of the company. New Designs

for yarn dyed fabrics and up gradation to finer shirting is targeted.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D:

Product quality has improved. Cost reduction methods have been devised. Further, up gradation of

quality and innovation will improve the profit margins.

3. Future plan of action:

The Company continues to focus its efforts on innovations in textile development processes.

4. Expenditure onR & D:

It is not possible to segregate the expenses on R & D.
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IIl. Technology absorption, adoption and innovation:

1. Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:
The Company has been developing in-house modifications/improvements in process technology in its
various manufacturing sections which, when found suitable, are integrated into the regular
manufacturing operation.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, e.g. Product improvement, cost reduction, product
development, import substitution, etc.:

High Product quality and increased business potential

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year), following information may be furnished:

a) Technology imported

b) Year of import Not Applicable as no
c) Hastechnology been fully absorbed? Imported Technology
d) If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken put to use.

place, reasons therefore and future plans of action

3) Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

Total foreign exchange inflow during the year was Rs. 10273.56 Lakhs (Previous period Rs. 12494.65 Lakhs) as per
audited financials of 2019-20 towards Garments.

Foreign Exchange outgo during the year towards Capital Goods was Rs.44.61 Lakhs (Previous period being 13.02
Lakhs), towards Raw material was Rs. 429.68 Lakhs (Previous period Rs. 382.32 Lakhs), towards Consumable and
spares parts was Rs. 202.22 Lakhs (Previous period Rs. 221.81 Lakhs), and towards Consultancy Charges was Rs.
Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil) and towards foreign travel was Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil ).

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
E-Land Apparel Limited

Date: September 04, 2020 SD/- SD/-

Place: Bengaluru. Jae Ho Song Chong Tae Baek
Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 07830731 DIN : 01566661
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ANNEXURE — IV TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2020, in terms
of Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is as follows together with the Auditors Certificate
annexed as Exhibit - A to this report, on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance laid down for the
year ended 31° March, 2020.

PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance essentially is the system by which Companies are directed and controlled by the
management in the best interest of the stakeholders and others. In other words, it involves a set of relationships
between a Company’s management, its Board, its shareholders and other stakeholders. Corporate governance also
provides the structure through which the objectives of the company are set, and the means of attaining those
objectives and monitoring performance are determined. It is the way of life, rather than mere legal compulsion. It
furthers investor’s confidence and commitment to the Company.

Principle Characteristics of Corporate Governance are:-

Transparency

Independence
Accountability
Responsibility
Fairness

mTmO oW

Social Responsibility

The policies and guidelines of Corporate Governance have been implemented in all facets of your Company’s
operations to build up an environment of trust and confidence amongst the stakeholders of the Company.

E-Land believes in professional management of its business which ensures that decision making powers vested in
executive management are used to meet stakeholders’ aspiration and social expectations. It also ensures total
transparency and complete accountability.

The Company believes that good Corporate Governance is a continuous process and strives to improve the
Corporate Governance practices to meet shareholder’s expectations.

The Company has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices. The Company has adopted
a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director and the Executive Directors to become
competent with changing cultural and regulatory norms across the multiple jurisdictions in which the Company
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conducts its business. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its non-executive directors which
includes Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which suitably incorporates the duties of independent directors
as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). These codes are available on the Company’s website. The
Company’s corporate governance philosophy has been further strengthened through the Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading (“Insider Trading Code”).

The Company is in compliance with the requirements of the guidelines on Corporate Governance stipulated under
the regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI

Listing Regulations, as applicable, with regard to corporate governance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS ON 31°" MARCH, 2020:

The Board Members are fully aware of their roles and responsibilities in discharge of the key functions. The Board
Members strive to meet the expectation of operational transparency without compromising the need to maintain
confidentiality of information.

As on 31° March, 2020 the Company has 5 (Five) Directors. Among the 5 Directors, the Company has a Managing
Director, four Non-Executive Independent Directors including one woman Director. The composition of the Board
is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
read with Section 149 of the Act.

Also the Independent Directors on the Board are highly experienced and competent persons from their respective
fields. The Independent Directors take active part at the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings which add value
in the decision making process of the Board of Directors.

The Composition of the Board and Directorship held in other Companies and Committees as on 31* March, 2020
are prescribed below:

Sr. No. Name of the Director(s) Category of Directorship No. of No. of Committee
Directorship positions held including
including Company
Company Chairman Member
1. Jae ho Song Managing Director 1 0 1
2. Kyoung Hur Non-Executive - 4 0 1
Independent Director
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3. Chong Tae Baek Non-Executive - 4 2 2
Independent Director

4, Sivabalan Paul Pandian Non-Executive - 3 0 2
Independent Director

5. Elizabeth Ravi Non-Executive- 1 0 1
Independent Director

> All the Directors are appointed or re-appointed with the approval of the shareholders.

» None of the Directors has any business / material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

> None of the Directors has received any loans, advances from the Company during the year.

» None of the Directors are related to each other.

» None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten publiccompanies.

» None of them is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than five committees across all
the public companies in which he is a Director.

> All Directors have intimated periodically about their Directorship and Membership in various Board and
Committee positions of other Companies, which are within permissible limits of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Corporate Governance Code.

» While considering the total No. of other outside Committee positions held, Membership in committees of
Private Companies, Section 8 Companies and Foreign Companies have not been included. Only membership of
audit committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee of public company are considered.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS WITH RESPECT TO BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS:

During the Financial Year 2019-20:

> Board Meeting:

Four Meetings of Board of Directors were held on May 24, 2019, August 09, 2019, November 14, 2019 and February
14, 2020. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The maximum gap between any two meetings
was less than 120 Days.

Further, for every Board Meeting, the agenda papers along with explanatory notes are circulated in advance to the
Board Members.
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> Last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on September 26, 2019.
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The Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and Last AGM were as under:-

Dates on which
the Meetings

Mr. Jaeho Song

Mr. Kyoung Hur

Mr. Chong Tae
Baek

Mr. Sivabalan
Paul Pandian

Mrs. Elizabeth
Ravi

were held

24" May, 2019 | Absent Present Present Absent Present
(Board Meeting)

09" August, 2019 Present Absent Present Absent Present
(Board Meeting)

14" November, Absent Present Absent Present Present
2019

(Board Meeting)

14" February, 2020 | Absent Absent Present Present Present
(Board Meeting)

26 September, | Present Present Present Present Absent

2019
(Annual General

Meeting)

BOARD PROCEDURE:

>

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the results and other items on the agenda, once a year for
approval of annual budgets and strategy and also on the occasion of the annual shareholders’ meeting. When
necessary, additional meetings are held.

The Board Meetings are convened by giving appropriate Notice and Agenda.

The Notice and Agenda of the board meetings is drafted by the Company Secretary if appointed or person
authorized by Board of Directors of the Company along with the explanatory notes and these are distributed in
advance to the directors. Every Board member is free to suggest the inclusion of items onthe agenda.

All divisions/departments in the Company are encouraged to plan their functions well in advance, particularly
with regard to matters requiring discussion/ approval/ decision in the board/ committee meetings. All such
matters are communicated to the Company Secretary in advance so that the same could be included in the
agenda for the board meetings. The agenda papers are prepared by the concerned officials of the respective
department and are approved by the Managing Director.

Agenda papers are circulated to the Board by the Company Secretary if appointed or person authorized by Board
of Directors. Additional items on the agenda are permitted with the permission of the Chairman and with the
consent of all the Directors present at the meeting.
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The Board also passes resolutions by circulation on need basis. The Company has been providing the directors
with an option to participate in the board meetings through electronic mode.

Minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meeting are prepared within stipulated time as per applicable law and
thereafter the same is circulated to all Directors for their comments. The minutes of all the Committees of the
Board of Directors of the Company and the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company
are placed before the Board.

The quarterly, half-yearly and the annual results of the Company are first placed before the Audit Committee of
the Company and thereafter the same are placed before the Board of Directors.

A Compliance Certificate, signed by the CFO and Managing Director in respect of various laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Company is placed before the Board, every quarter.

BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:

i.) Mr. Jaeho Song (DIN: 07830731)

Mr. Jaeho Song (Din: 07830731) aged 42 years, s/o Mr. Mun Young Song is a Graduate in Textile Engineering
from Soongsil University.

He joined the company in May, 2017 as an Additional Director of the company. Further, he was appointed as
the Managing Director With effect from 30™ May, 2017 till 29" May, 2020. He was further re-appointed in 22™
Annual General meeting of the company w.e.f. 1°' June 2020 to 30" May 2023. Prior to joining the company he
had experience of 16 years of working with Eland group Companies in Garment Industry.

During the Year 2018-19, based on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board
of Directors of the Company in its meeting appointed Mr. Jaeho Song as the Permanent Chairman of the

Company on 2" February, 2019, considering his hard work, Discipline, Honest & loyalty

At present Mr. Jaeho Song is Chairman & Managing Director of the Company and he is not holding any share in
the Company.

Directorship and Committee membership of Mr. Jaeho Song (DIN: 07830731):

Sr.No

Name of Company | Listed / Unlisted Category of Directorship Membership in Committee
Company

E-Land Apparel Listed Chairman and Managing » Stakeholder Relationship
Limited Director Committee (Member)
> Risk management

committee (Member)
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ii.) Mr. Kyoung Hur (DIN: 00319651)

Annual Report 2019-2020

Mr. Kyoung Hur (DIN: 00319651) aged 65 years, s/o Mr. Young Nam Hur is a BA from Soongjun University and
has a rich experience in General Management in Textiles Business.

He joined the company on 5" August, 2014 as the Additional Independent Director of the company, and he was
re-designated as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company by the members at the 17" AGM of the

Company held on 30" September, 2014 for a period of Five years.

During the year 2018-19, based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee he was re-

appointed as the Non-Executive Independent Director on passing of Special Resolution on 30™ March, 2019
through Postal Ballot He shall hold office with effect from 5" August 2019 till 4™ August 2024.

At present Mr. Kyoung Hur is Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and he is not holding any

share in the Company.

Table Showing Directorship and Committee membership of Mr. Kyounq Hur (DIN: 00319651):

Sr.No | Name of Company Listed / Unlisted | Category of Directorship Membership in Committee
Company
1. E-Land Apparel | Listed Non-Executive Independent | » Nomination and
Limited Director Remuneration
Committee (Chairperson)
»  Audit committee
(member
2 Keltech Offshore And | Unlisted Managing Director NIL
Engineering Services
Private Limited
3 Branee Business S & A | Unlisted Managing Director NIL
Private Limited
4 Hindko Offshore and Unlisted Director NIL

Engineering Services
Private Limited
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iii.) Mr. Chong Tae Baek (DIN: 01566661):

Mr. Chong Tae Baek (DIN: 01566661) aged 60 years, s/o Mr. M. S. Baek is a PHD from Mumbai University; MA
in Intercultural Studies, Wheaton College, USA, MA in Ancient Indian History & Culture, Mumbai; B.A. in English
literature, Ajou University and has a rich experience in General Management Trading and Logistics Business on
Textiles.

He joined the company on 23" August, 2011 as an Additional Independent Director of the company, and he was
re-designated as an independent Director of the Company by the members at the 17" AGM of the Company
held on 30™ September, 2014 for a period of Five years up to 31st March, 2019. Further, based on
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee he was re-appointed as the Non-Executive
Independent Director on passing of Special Resolution on 30" March, 2019 through Postal Ballot He shall hold
office with effect from 01° April 2019 till 31°* March, 2024.

At present Mr. Chong Tae Baek is Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and he is not holding
any share in the Company.

Table Showing Directorship and Committee membership of Mr Chong Tae Baek (DIN: 01566661):

Sr.No | Name of Company Listed / Unlisted | Category of Directorship Membership in Committee
Company
1. E-Land Apparel Listed Non-Executive Independent | » Audit Committee
Limited Director (Chairperson)
» Nomination and

Remuneration
Committee (Member)
» Risk Management
Committee (Chairperson)
» Stakeholder Relationship
Committee (Chairperson)

2 Green Ville Business Unlisted Director NIL
Solutions and Services
Private Limited

3 Macita F&B Private Unlisted Director NIL
Limited

4 Erom Wellcare Private | Unlisted Director NIL
Limited
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Mr. Sivabalan Paul Pandian (DIN: 01573458) aged 61 years, s/o Mr. Subbiah Paul Pandian, is a M.Sc. Tech from
Mumbai University and has a rich experience in Textile Technologist having worked for more than 20 years in

the manufacturing areas of various leading textile mills..

He joined the company on 29" April, 2007 as the Additional Director of the company, and he was re-designated
as an Independent Director of the Company by the members at the 17" AGM of the Company held on 30"
September, 2014 for a period of Five years up to 31% March, 2019. Further, based on recommendation of

Nomination and Remuneration Committee he was re-appointed as the Non-Executive Independent Director on
passing of Special Resolution on 30" March, 2019 through Postal Ballot He shall hold office with effect from 01*
April 2019 till 31* March, 2024.

At present Mr. Sivabalan Paul Pandian is Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and he is not
holding any share in the Company.

Table Showing Directorship and Committee membership of Mr Sivabalan Paul Pandian (Din: 01573458):

Sr.No | Name of Company Listed / Unlisted | Category of Directorship Membership in Committee
Company
1. E-Land Apparel | Listed Non-Executive Independent | » Nomination and
Limited Director Remuneration
Committee (Member)
2 Lovable Lingerie | Listed Non-Executive Independent | > Audit Committee
Limited Director (Member)
» Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee (Member)
» Stakeholder Relationship
Committee (Member)
3 Pandians Marathon Unlisted Director

Academy (OPC)
Private limited

o0




E-Land Apparel Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

v.) Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi (DIN: 07213341):

Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi (DIN: 07213341) aged 41 years, d/o Mr. Haris Chandrappa, is a B.Sc B.Ed.,M.S.W (Masters in
Social Work), Diploma in Medical Laboratory Technology and DHRM (Diploma in Human Resource Management)
and has a rich experience in PSI - an international NGO, working for the HIV/AIDS of the Company. Infected and
affected people for a period of 1 year and worked efficiently as a Project Coordinator in WORLD VISION INDIA -
International Christian NGO working for the upliftment of slum dwellers and rural areas basically in health and
education for a period of 7 years.

She joined the company on 19" June, 2015 as the Additional Independent Director of the company, and she
was re-designated as an Independent Director of the Company by the members at the 18" AGM of the Company
held on 30" September, 2015 for a period of Five years up to 18" June, 2020. Board of the directors on the
recommendation of Nomination and remuneration committee have further proposed to re-appoint her for 2"
term of 5 years in the ensuing annual general meeting.

At present Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi is Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company and she is not holding
any share in the Company.

Table Showing Directorship and Committee membership of Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi (Din: 07213341):

Sr.No | Name of Company Listed / Unlisted | Category of Directorship Membership in Committee
Company
E-Land Apparel | Listed Non-Executive Independent | > Audit Committee
Limited Director (Member)

» Stakeholders
Relationship Committee

(Member)

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE:

Name of Director Inter - se Relationship

Mr. Jaeho Song No Relation

Mr. Kyoung Hur No Relation

Mr. Chong Tae Baek No Relation

Mr. Sivabalan Paul Pandian No Relation

Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi No Relation

of
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TRAINING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

All Non-Executive Directors are appointed on the Board of the Company are introduced to the culture through
induction sessions. The Executive Directors and senior management provide an overview of the operations and
familiarize the Non-executive Directors on matters the morals and principles of the Company.

They are introduced to the organization structures and various procedures. Non-Executive Directors are also briefed
pertaining to the group structure and subsidiaries.

Also, the Company has a detailed familiarization Programme for Non - Executive Independent Directors to
familiarize them with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in
which the Company operates, business model of the Company etc. The details of such Programme are available on
the website of the Company at
http://www.elandapparel.com/FamiliarizationProgramforindependentDirectors.pdf.

NUMBER OF SHARES & CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AS ON 31ST MARCH,
2020 IS AS UNDER:

Name of Director Director Category Number of Shares/convertible
instruments held in the Company

Mr. Kyoung Hur Non-Executive, Independent Director | NIL

Mr. Chong Tae Baek Non-Executive, Independent Director | NIL

Mr. Sivabalan Paul Pandian Non-Executive, Independent Director | NIL

Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi Non-Executive, Independent Director | NIL

CONFIRMATION PERTAINING TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Kyoung Hur, Mr. Chong Tae Baek, Mr. Sivabalan Paul
Pandian and Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi, Non-Executive Independent directors are independent of the management and
complies with criteria of Independent Director as placed in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013.

REASONS FOR THE RESIGNATION OF AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR DURING THE YEAR 2019-20:

During the year 2019-20, No Independent Director has resigned before the expiry of his tenure.
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List Of Skills/Expertise/Competencies Required To Function The Business Effectively:

Too many businesses fail because translating passion into a successful business model is a difficult task.

Developing a small business into a successful enterprise demands more than passion. Unfortunately, facts speak for
themselves. Over half of new businesses fail mainly because the entrepreneur is unable to translate their passion
into practical business skills. Success demands more than hard work, resilience, and expertise in your field. In order
to succeed, you need to understand and to become proficient in a set of fundamental business skills. Following are
the essential skills that you are required to run the business of the Company:

Financial Management Skill:

Being able to effectively manage your finances is critical. You will need to be able to forecast your cash flow and
sales, as well as, monitor your profit and loss. Having sound financial management skills will help you to run your
business profitably and protect your financial investment.

Marketing, Sales and Customer Service Skill:

It is important to be able to promote your products or services effectively. Providing good customer service and
having a marketing strategy in place will help you to generate sales.

Communication and Negotiation Skill:

Communication and negotiation with your suppliers, potential investors, customers and employees is very
important to have. Having effective written and verbal communication skills will help you to build good working
relationships. Every communication should reflect the image you are trying to project.

Management Skill:

These means offering other people opportunities to do work, even if you think it will benefit your own clout or
resume to do it yourself. Delegation is an important part of time and resource management. If you take everything
on yourself, chances are your work in key areas will suffer. Someone that excels in business will be able to manage
their own workload by appropriately directing the appropriate colleagues and subordinates for the best tasks.

Strategic Planning Skill:

Strategic planning is a very important business activity. Strategic planning is a process of defining your company's
strategy or direction and making decisions on allocations of resources of capital and people. The key is to know how
to project your company's future performance, within a three-to-five year framework or more, supported by your
well-defined business plan.
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In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the following skills / expertise /

competencies of the Directors as given below:

Skills And Its | Mr. Jae Ho Song | Mr. Chong Tae Mr. Kyong Hur Mr. Shivabalan | Mrs. Elizabeth
Description Baek Pandian Ravi
Leadership v v v v v
experience of

running large

enterprise

Experience of v v v v v
crafting Business

Strategies

Understanding of v v v v v
Consumer and

Customer Insights

in diverse

environments and

conditions

Finance and v v v v v
Accounting

Experience

Experience in v v v v v
overseeing large

and complex

Supply Chain

Understanding use v v v v v
of Digital /

Information

Technology

Experience of large v v v v v
companies and

understanding of

the changing

regulatory

landscape
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Communication v v v v v
and Negotiation
Skill

k) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

l. Preamble:

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, allowances and perquisites, performance allowance etc.
to the Chairman, Managing Director and Company Secretary on recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee as approved by the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company subject
to approval of the Central Government if necessary.

Il. Details of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 are as follows:

Name of the | Basic Salary Perquisites Sitting Fees Commission Total
Director

Mr. Jae Ho Song | 1,66,55,139 - - - 1,66,55,139
Mr. Chong Tae - - 60,000 - 60,000
Baek

Mr. Kyoung Hur | - - 90,000 - 90,000

Mr. Shivabalan | - - 30,000 - 30,000
Pandian

Mrs.  Elizabeth | - - 1,20,000 - 1,20,000
Ravi

1l. Service Contracts:

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 our shareholders approve the salary,
benefits of Executive Directors. We enter into service contracts with each of our Directors containing the terms and
conditions of employment including salary, performance bonus and other benefits including perks to be received
by the Executive Directors.

Iv. Notice Period:

The terms of our employment arrangements with Shri. Asit D. Javeri, Shri. Abhishek Asit Javeriand Smt. Seema Asit
Javeri Provided or upto six months' notice period.

V. Severance/ Compensation fees:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is entrusted with the role of reviewing the compensation of
Directors.
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VI. Criteria for making payment to Non - Executive Directors:
o Sitting Fee:

Each Non-Executive Director is paid per meeting attended a sitting fee of Rs. 15,000/- for Board Meeting and Rs.
15,000- for Audit Committee Meeting.

¢ Commission:
Currently the Company is not paying Commission to its Non-Executive Director.

e Payment and other consideration to independent directors:

An Independent director shall not be entitled to any stock option and may receive remuneration only by way of
fees and reimbursement of expenses for participation in meetings of the Board or committee thereof and profit
related commission up to a certain percentage of net profits in such proportion, as may be permissible under the
applicable law.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

Currently the Company is having 7 committees of the Board:

Audit Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Risk Management Committee

Internal Complaint Committee

Finance Committee

Inquiry Committee

@mMmoow®p

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

i COMPOSITION:

The Company has an Independent Audit Committee presently comprising of 3 Non - Executive - Independent
Director as Members of the Committee, all being learned and experts having adequate knowledge in the
field of finance. Minutes of each Audit Committee are placed and discussed in the next meeting of the
Board.

As required under section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with part C of schedule Il thereto, the Board has
complied with composition of Audit Committee which comprises of the following Non - Executive -
Independent Director:
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Name of the Member Status & Category Director Category

Mr. Chong Tae Baek Chairman & Member Non-Executive - Independent Director
Mr. Kyoung Hur Member Non-Executive - Independent Director
Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi Member Non-Executive - Independent Director

ij CHANGE IN COMPOSITION:

There was no change in the composition of the Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2019-20.

i) TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee shall have the authority to investigate into any matter that may be prescribed
under Company Law for the time being in force and within its terms of reference.

Role of the Audit Committee, inter-alia, includes the following: -

» Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

» Recommending to the Board the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of
the company.

» Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutoryauditors.

> Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:
i) Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the

Board’s report in terms of Clause (C) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for thesame.
iii) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
iv) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
v) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
vi) Disclosure of any related party transactions.
vii) Qualifications in the draft audit report.

> Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval.

» Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other
than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

» Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of auditprocess.

6o




YV V VYV Y

A\

YV V V V Y VvV

Y V V

E-Land Apparel Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the
internal control systems.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transaction of the company with related parties.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertaking or assets of the company, whenever it is necessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and
reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience &
background, etc. of the candidate.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee also reviews the following information:

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by
management;

Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to
review by the Audit Committee.

Further, Additional Terms of Reference of Audit Committee for discharging its Obligation under SEBI

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 was added which are as follows:

>

To verify that the systems for internal control towards compliance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 are adequate and operating effectively at least once in a financialyear.

To review and verify the report on internal control.

To strengthen the internal control system placed for compliance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015.
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» Toreview and verify the report to be provided by Compliance officer on compliance of SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and code of conduct at such frequency as may be stipulated by
the Board of Directors.

iv) ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE MEMBERS:

The committee met 4 (Four) times during the Financial Year 2019-20 held on 24" may 2019, 09" august
2019 , 14™ November 2019, 14™ February 2020The attendance records of each member of the Audit
Committee at the Meeting are as follows:

Dates on which the Attendance of Members

Meetings were held Mr. Chong Tae Baek | Mr. Kyoung Hur Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi
(Chairman) (Member) (Member)

24" may 2019 Present Present Present

09" August, 2019 Present Absent Present

14™ November, 2019 Absent Present Present

14" February, 2020 Present absent Present

Statutory Auditor and Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have been permanent invitees to the
Audit Committee Meetings besides Chairman,Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer as an Invitee.
The gap between two consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 Days. The necessary quorum was present
for all the meetings.

B. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

|  COMPOSITION:

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee presently consists of 2 Non-Executive - Independent Director and
1 Executive Director as Members of the Committee. Minutes of each Committee Meeting are placed and
discussed in the next meeting of the Board.

The Shareholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board is in compliance with the provisions of Section 178
(5) of the Companies Act and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Regulations read with Part D of Schedule Il. The
Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprises of the following Members:-

Name of the Member Status & Category Director Category

Mr. Chong Tae Baek Chairman & Member Non-Executive - Independent
Director

Mr. Jae ho Song Member Chairman & Managing Director

Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi Member Non-Executive - Independent
Director
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CHANGE IN COMPOSITION:

There was no change in the composition of the Stakeholder relationship Committee during the
Financial Year 2019-20.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The terms of reference of shareholders grievances committee inter-alia considers the following matters:-

» To consider and approve requests for transfers, transmissions, Dematerialization/ Re-materialization
and issue of fresh share certificates on replacement/ subdivision/ consolidation, issue of duplicate share
certificate on loss whether by theft, misplacement or otherwise.

> To review the status of Dematerialization of Company’s shares and matters incidental thereto.

» To review and monitor the approval to the transfers and transmission made by any Director under
executive authority delegated to him from time to time.

» To monitor the matters of litigation related to shareholders and take decisions relatingthereto.

» To consider, review and monitor the matters related to the shareholdersgrievances.

» To consider and finalize the report on Corporate Governance to be annexed with the Annual Report of
the Company.

» To deal with any other matters related and/or incidental to the shareholders.

The Committee has authorized its Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) to redress any complaints received
from members of the Company. To expedite the matter of Share Transfer, RTA has been authorized to
approve the Share Transfer Requests received for and on behalf of the Company. The committee
periodically reviews the report sent by RTA in this regard.

During the Financial Year 2019-20, the status of Compliant is as follows:

No. of Investor complaints | No. of Investor | No. of Investor | No. of Investor
pending at the beginning of | complaints received | complaints disposed | complaints unresolved
the quarter during the quarter of during the quarter | at the end of the
quarter
0 0 0 0

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE MEMBERS:

The attendance record of each member of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee at the Meeting held on
15" June 2020 is as follows. (Due to ongoing COVID pandemic SEBI has extended the last day to hold Meeting
of Stakeholder relationship committee from March 31, 2020 to June 30, 2020)
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Dates on which the

Attendance of Members

Meetings were held Mr. Chong Tae Baek | Mr. Jae Ho Song | Mrs. Elizabeth Ravi
(Chairman) (Member) (Member)
15" June, 2020 Present Present Not Applicable

All share transfer and correspondence thereon are handled by the Company's Registrars and Share Transfer
Agents viz. Bigshares Services Private Limited situated at 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant
Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400059.

C. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

COMPOSITION:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board is in compliance with the provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Regulations read with Part D of Schedule
Il. The minutes of the Remuneration Committee meetings are reviewed and noted by the Board from
time to time. This Committee shall have the authority to Investigate into any matter that may be

prescribed under Company Law for the time being in force and shall also comply with the terms of

reference as specified herein as under:

» The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall have meetings periodically as it may deem fit.

» The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall invite such of the executives to be present at the
meetings of the Committee required by it.

» The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall have the following powers andfunctions:

- Torecommend to the Board, the terms and conditions of appointment of key Management

personnel.

- To seek information from any employee.

- To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of 3 (three) Non-Executive - Independent Director
as Members of the Committee. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of the following

Members: -

Name of the Member

Status & Category

Director Category

Mr. Kyoung Hur

Chairman & Member

Non-Executive - Independent
Director

Mr. Chong Tae Baek Member Non-Executive - Independent
Director
Mr. S. P. Pandian Member Non-Executive - Independent

Director
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ij  CHANGE IN COMPOSITION:

There was no change in the composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee during the
Financial Year 2019-20.

i)  CRITERIA FOR SELECTION OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

» The Non-Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience in the
fields of manufacturing, marketing, finance, taxation, law, governance and generalmanagement.

> In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the
independent nature of the Directors vis-a-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its
function and duties effectively.

» The Committee shall ensure that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not
disqualified for appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

» The Committee shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board the
candidature for appointment as Director.

- Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields;
- Personal, Professional or business standing;
- Diversity of the Board

> In case of re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the
performance evaluation of the Director and his engagement level.

» The Company has not paid any remuneration to Non-Executive Directors except the sitting fees for
attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees thereof held during the financial
year 2019-20.

> Non-executive Directors do not hold any shares of the Company and there are no pecuniary
relationships or transactions of them, vis-a-vis the Company, except as mentioned above. The
Company has not granted any stock option to any of its Directors.

» The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors
and Committees within the ceilings prescribed by the Central Government.

» The quantum of sitting fees payable to Independent Directors of the Company is in terms of provisions
of the Act.

» The details of the sitting fees paid to the Independent Directors of the Company during the financial
year 2019-20 is given under MGT 9 annexed to the Director’s Report.
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) ~ TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:

» Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;

» Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

» Devising a policy on Board diversity;

Y

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria lay down, and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal.

\  ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE MEMBERS:

Two Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held during the Financial Year 2019-
20 i.e. on 9" august 2019 and 14" November, 2019.

Dates on which the Meetings were Attendance of Members

held Mr. Kyoung Hur | Mr. Chong Tae | Mrs. Sivabalan
(Chairman) Baek (Member) Pandian (Member)

09" August, 2019 Present Present Absent

14" November, 2019 Present Absent Present

vl  REMUNERATION POLICY:

» The Remuneration Policy of the Company for managerial personnel is primarily based on the
performance of the Company and track record, potential and performance of individual managerial
personnel. The Remuneration Committee recommends to the Board the compensation package of the
Executive Directors of the Company.

» Since the appointment of the Executive Director is by virtue of their employment with the Company,
their service contract, notice period and severance fees, if any, is governed by the remuneration policy
of the Company.

» The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme.

» The details of remuneration paid to Managing Director of the Company during the Financial Year 2019-
20 is given in MGT 9 annexed to Director’s Report.
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The remuneration policy of the Company is directed towards rewarding performance based on review
of achievements on a periodic basis and is inconsonance with the
existing industry practice which is hosted on the website of the Company at
http://elandapparel.com/Nomination%20&%20Remuneration%20Policy.pdf.

D. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

i

COMPOSITION:

As per the Regulation 21(5) of Listing Regulations 2015, this Regulation shall be applicable to top 100 listed
entities determined on the basis of market capitalization as the end of the immediate Financial Year. Even
though it is not mandatory requirement for the Company to constitute the Risk Management Committee,
the Company has constituted Risk Management Committee consisting of 2 (two) Director as Members of
the Committee. The Risk Management Committee comprises of the following Members: -

Name of the Member Status & Category Director Category

Mr. Jae ho Song Chairman & Member Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Chong Tae Baek Member Non-Executive - Independent
Director

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION:

There was no change in the composition of the Risk Management Committee during the Financial Year
2019-20.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING:

» Framing of Risk Management Plan and Policy and monitoring and implementation of Risk
Management Plan and Policy. To keep the identified risk at zero level or minimum level.

» Procedure for Risk Minimization and periodically reviewing and evaluating the Risk Management
Policy.

> Continually obtaining reasonable assurance from management that all known and emerging risks
have been identified and mitigated or managed.

» Performing such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
aforesaid function.
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)  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company is committed to managing risk in a manner appropriate to achieve its strategic objectives. As
required under Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a Risk Management Policy. The Policy is
available on the website of the Company http://elandapparel.com/Eland%20-
%20Risk%20Management.pdf.

y  ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE MEMBERS:

No Meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held during the Financial Year 2019-20.

INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE FOR PREVENTION AND PROHIBITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMAN:

i COMPOSITION:

Pursuant to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 (“Act”), the Board of Directors constituted the committee known as Internal Complaint
Committee (“ICC”) for prevention and prohibition of sexual harassment of woman which comprises
of the following Members:

Name of Member Nature of Membership Director Category
Sunitha Albert Manager- Merchandiser (President) i
Usha Sr. Executive —HR (Conveyer) )
Jai Ram Singh Sr. Manager — HR & Admin (Internal
Expert)

Vaishali Sr. Designer (Member) -
Shakeela Manager- Merchandiser (Member) -
Yashpal Bhandari GM- Accounts & Finance (Member) -
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF COMMITTEE:

» Prevent discrimination and sexual harassment against women, by promoting gender amity among
employees;

» Make recommendations to the Managing Director / Director for changes/elaborations in the rules for
staff and employees to lay down procedures for the prohibition, resolution, settlement and
prosecution of acts of discrimination and sexual harassment against women, by theemployees;

» Deal with cases of discrimination and sexual harassment against women, in a time bound manner,
aiming at ensuring support services to the victims and termination of theharassment;

FINANCE COMMITTEE:

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF COMMITTEE:

Following powers, duties and responsibilities have been delegated to the Finance Committee:

>

Borrowings from banks / financial institutions up to an aggregate limit of Rs. 800 Crores subject to the total
borrowing not to exceed the maximum cap pursuant to Section 180 (1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Granting Loans to companies / firms / individual, whether subsidiaries / associates or otherwise for the
purpose of business, subject however that the aggregate of loans granted and outstanding to all such
companies / firms / individuals, subsidiaries or associates at any time shall not exceed the applicable ceiling
prescribed under Section 186 or other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Opening / closing of bank accounts, opening letters of credit issue / renew / cancel bank guarantees and
other banking matters.

Approval of authorized signatories and delegation of powers to sign cheques, etc. for operating the bank
accounts of the Company.

Miscellaneous financial matters.

INQUIRY COMMITTEE:

COMPOSITION:
Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 the Board is required to constitute a
committee called an Inquiry committee which shall discharge its functions to assist the Board of Directors

to enquire into Leak and Suspected Leak of UPSI Company.

The Inquiry Committee is constituted with the following Members: -
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Name of the Member Status & Category Director Category

Mr. Jae ho Song Chairman & Member Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. Jairman Singh Member -

Mr. Yashpal Bhandari Member -

i) ROLES OF THE COMMITTEE:

The role of the Committee shall be as follows:

Consider complaints received in writing on leak or suspected Leak of UPSI and conduct inquiry thereof;
Initiate inquiry on its own motion on leak or suspected Leak of UPSI;

Devise process for inquiry in case of leak and suspected Leak of UPSI;

Report the results of an inquiry to and make recommendations of actions to be taken by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

VVVY

il POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE:

The power of the Committee shall be as follows:

» To investigate, in cases of leak or suspected leak of UPSI;

» Torequire the attendance of the person supposed to be acquainted with the facts and circumstances
of the leak or suspected Leak of UPSI, for the purpose of the investigation;

» To examine, either orally or in writing, any person supposed to be acquainted with the facts and
circumstances of the leak or suspected Leak of UPSI;

» To reduce into writing any statement made to the Committee in the course of examination;

» To make a separate and true record of the statement of each such person whose statement is
recorded;

» To require the attendance of the witnesses unless their appearance is not necessary for the just
decision of the case and to examine the witnesses and;

» To require the production of documents (physical/electronic) in connection to the investigation.

4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

A. DETAILS OF LAST 3 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

No. of

Financial Time of Special
Year Date of AGM Venue of AHM AGM Resolution

passed

2016-17 29/09/2017 | Bay Leaf Banquet Hall, Shop No 67, 68, 69, Saraf | 10.00 A.M. | 2**
Choudhary Nagar, Thakur Complex, Opposite
Sarodev Hospital, Kandivali (East), Mumbai
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2017-18 29/09/2018 | Bay Leaf Banquet Hall, Shop No 67, 68, 69, Saraf | 10.00 A.M. | NIL
Choudhary Nagar, Thakur Complex, Opposite
Sarodev Hospital, Kandivali (East), Mumbai

2018-19 26/09/2019 | 16/2B, SriVinayaka Indl Estate, Singasandra, Near | 11.00 A.M. | 2
Dakshin Honda Showroom House Road,
Bangalore KA 560068, India.

Table Showing Special resolution passed during last three financial year:-

2016-17 Appointment of Mr. Jae Ho Song as Managing Director of the Company and fixing
his remuneration.

2017-18 Appointment of Mr. Jung Ho Hong as Whole Time Director of the Company and
fixing his remuneration.

2018-19 Re-appointment of Mr. Jae Ho Song as Managing Director of the Company and
fixing his remuneration.

Following details of are the special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot during financial year 2019-20:-

» To approve re-appointment of Mr. Chongtae Baek as an Independent Director of the Company
» To approve re-appointment of Mr. Sivabalan Paul Pandian as an Independent Director.
> To approve re-appointment of Mr. Kyoung Hur as an Independent Director.

Further, no Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot as on the date of this Report.

EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS:

In addition to Annual General Meeting, the Company holds General Meetings of the members of the Company
as and when situation arises. During the year under review, the Company had not conducted any Extra
Ordinary General Meeting.

POSTAL BALLOT:

During the year, the members have approved the following Ordinary and Special Resolutions by way of Postal
Ballot. Brief Voting details are as under.

1. To approve re-appointment of Mr. Chongtae Baek as an Independent Director of the Company (Special
Resolution)

2. To approve re-appointment of Mr. Sivabalan Paul Pandian as an Independent Director (SpecialResolution)

3. To approve re-appointment of Mr. Kyoung Hur as an Independent Director (Special Resolution)
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4. To consider and approve Related Party Transaction with various parties (Ordinary Resolution)

5. Ratification of Related Party Transactions (Ordinary Resolution)

POSTAL BALLOT PROCEDURE:

In compliance with Sections 108, 110 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with related Rules,
the Company provides electronic voting facility to all its Members, to enable them to cast their votes
electronically. The Company dispatches the postal ballot notices and forms along with postage pre-paid
business reply envelopes to its Members whose names appear in the Register of Members/the List of
beneficiaries as on a cut-off date. The Postal Ballot Notice is sent to members in electronic form to the
email addresses registered with their depository participants (in case of electronic shareholding)/the
Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents (in case of physical shareholding). The Company also publishes a
notice in the newspaper declaring the details of completion of dispatch and other requirements as
mandated under the Act and the applicable Rules. The Company engages the services of Big share Private
Limited for the purpose of providing e-voting facility to all its Members. The Members have the option to
vote either by physical ballot or by e-voting. Voting rights are reckoned on the paid-up value of shares
registered in names of Members as on the cutoff date. Members desiring to exercise their votes by physical
postal ballot forms are requested to return the forms duly completed and signed, to the Scrutinizer on or
before the end of the voting period. Members desiring to exercise their votes by electronic mode are
requested to vote before close of business hours on the last day of e-voting. The Scrutinizer submits his/her
report to the Chairman, after the completion of scrutiny and the consolidated results of the voting by postal
ballot are then announced by the Chairman or Director authorized by the Board. The results are also
displayed on the website of the Company, www.elandapparel.com besides being communicated to both
the Stock Exchanges on 1°" April, 2019 and the Registrar and Transfer Agent.

Voting Pattern

1. Toapprove re-appointment of Mr. Chongtae Baek as an Independent Director of the Company (Special
Resolution)

2. To approve re-appointment of Mr. Sivabalan Paul Pandian as an Independent Director (Special
Resolution)

3. To approve re-appointment of Mr. Kyoung Hur as an Independent Director (Special Resolution)

4. To consider and approve Related Party Transaction with various parties (Ordinary Resolution)

5. Ratification of Related Party Transactions (Ordinary Resolution)
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Particulars Type of | Total wvalid | Total valid | Total % of Votes % of Votesin
Resolution Votes Votes cast in | valid in favor of against  of
favor Votes aggregate aggregate
cast votes votes polled
against polled
Promoter and
Public Institution Special
. . 3,16,17,223 3,16,14,922 2,301 99.99 0.01
and Public Non Resolution
Institution
Promoter and
Public Institution | Special | 5 0003 | 3610041 | 2,282 99.99 0.01
and Public Non Resolution
Institution
Promoter and
Public Institution | Special | 3,647 773 | 31614841 | 2,382 99.99 0.01
and Public Non | Resolution
Institution
Promoter and
Public I.nstitution Ordma.ry 19,079 18,347 732 96.16 384
and Public Non Resolution
Institution
Promoter and
Public I.nstltutlon Ordlna.ry 19,089 18,338 751 96.07 303
and Public Non Resolution
Institution

ii. ~Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise: -

M/s Makarand Joshi & Company, Practicing Company Secretaries, was appointed as the scrutinizer for
carrying out the postal ballot process in a fair and transparent manner.

DISCLOSURES:

a) MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES:

The Senior Management Personal have been making disclosures to the Board relating to all material, financial
and commercial transactions, where they have personal interest that may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. Based on the disclosures received, none of the Senior Management Personnel
has entered into any such transactions during the year.
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MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material
nature, within its Promoters, the Directors or the Management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have
potential conflict with the interests of Company at large, The particulars of transactions between the Company
and its related parties as per the Indian Accounting Standard -24 are set out at Note 31 in Notes to Accounts in
the Annual Report. The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties as defined under Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed Form AOC-2 is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure - |
and forms part of this Report. The Company also has the policy on Materiality of Related Party
Transaction. The details of such policy are available on the website of the
Company at http://www.elandapparel.com/Policy%200n%20Related%20Party%20Transactions%20-%20E-

Land.pdf

STATUS OF REGULATORY COMPLIANCES:

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of
sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is reviewed by the Board from time totime.

STRICTURES AND PENALTIES:

During the year 2019-20 Bombay Stock exchange vide Letter LIST/COMP/532820/REG. 6 (1) —DEC-
19/297/2019-20 had imposed penalty of Rs. /- 44,000 for Non Compliance of Regulation 6 of SEBI LODR
Regulations, 2015 company had duly paid the fine imposed by the Bombay Stock exchange.

Except the above penalty No other penalties have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI
or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK:

The Board of Directors has adopted the Risk Management Policy which assess and manage the risk and provides
an approach to the top Management to identify potential events that may affect the Company, to manage the
risk within its risk appetite and to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives of the
Company. The Senior Management priorities the risk and finalize the action plan for mitigation of the key risks.
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WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

Pursuant to Section 177 (9) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting of Board & its
Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on
14"™ November, 2014, adopted the Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees to
report concerns of unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct
or ethics policy. No personnel have been denied access to the audit committee.

Further the Whistle Blower Policy revised through Circular Resolution passed by Board of Directors of the
Company on 30" March, 2019. The same is also available on the website of the Company
http://elandapparel.com/Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf

PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING CODE:

Pursuant to the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 as amended by SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, which is effective from May 15, 2015, the Company has
adopted a code of conduct for prohibition of insider trading. The Code is applicable to all Directors and such
designated employees who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive information relating to
the Company. As per the Code, the trading window is closed during the time of declaration of results and
material events, etc. Disclosure of shareholding is taken from all the Directors and Designated Employees and
other connected persons of the Company.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION:

The certificate is placed before the Board by the Chairman and Managing Director & CFO of the Company. This
certificate is being given to the Board pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule Il Part B of the said regulations.

The aforesaid certificate duly signed by the Chairman and Managing Director & CFO in respect of the Financial
Period ended 31* March, 2020 has been placed before the Board in the meeting held on September 04, 2020 is

Annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit - B to thisreport.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE THEREOF:

Certificate signed by the Managing Director stating that the members of Board and Senior Management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management is
annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit — C to this report.
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j) DETAILS OF UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OR QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONS PLACEMENT:

During the year 2019-20, the Company has not raised any amount through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

k) SUBSIDIARIES:

The Company does not have a material non-listed Indian subsidiary whose turnover or net worth (i.e. paid-
up capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated turnover or net worth respectively, of the
listed holding company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year

) ACCEPTANCE OF RECOMMENDATION OF COMMITTEE:

During the year 2019-20, all the suggestions / recommendations of all the committees of the Board, have
been accepted by the Board of Directors.

m) DISQUALIFICATION / DEBAR OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:

A certificate provided M/s. DSM & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries was placed before the Board of
Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 04, 2020. On the basis of certificate provided by
M/s. DSM & Associates. Practicing Company Secretary the Board of Directors of the Company take a cognizance
that none of the directors on the Board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority. Certificate provided by M/s. DSM & Associates. Practicing Company Secretary is annexed
hereto and marked as Exhibit — C to this report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results were published in daily Newspapers which included Business Standard
/ Financial Express & the Regional Language Newspapers (Kannad) in Vartha Bharti. The same were sent to Stock
Exchanges are promptly filed on BSE Listing Centre and NEAPS (NSE Electronic Application Processing System).

The Company’s website www.elandapparel.com contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investor’ where all the

information required by the shareholder is available. Annual Report of the Company, Notices of Postal Ballot,
outcome of Board Meeting etc. are regularly updated on the website. The Company’s presentations to institutional
investors and analysts, if made would be put up on the website of the Company.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:
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a) DETAILS OF AGM OF 2019-20:

Date : December 29, 2020
Time :11.00 A.M.
Venue : 16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl| Estate, Singasandra Near Dakshin Honda Showroom House

Road, Bangalore 560068 Karanataka. (Through Video Conferencing)

b) FINANCIAL YEAR:

1% April, 2019 to 31° March, 2020.

¢) NAME OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE WHERE COMPANY’S SHARES ARE LISTED AND CONFIRMATION OF
PAYMENT OF LISTING FEES TO STOCK EXCHANGES:

Bombay Stock Exchange
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street Mumbai- 400001
Phones : 91-22-22721233/4, 91-22-66545695

The company has been voluntarily delisted from National Stock Exchange (NSE) with effect from October 01,
2019.

The Company has duly paid the listing fees to Bombay Stock Exchange & Custodial Fees to Central Depository
Services (India) Limited and National Securities Depository Limited for the Financial Year 2019-20.

d) DATE OF BOOK CLOSURE:

23"° Day of September, 2020 to 30" Day of September, 2020 (Both days inclusive)

e) FINANCIAL CALENDAR (2019-20):

First Quarterly Results 9™ August 2019
Second Quarterly Results 14™ November 2019
Third Quarterly Results 14 February 2020
Financial Year ending 13" July 2020

f) (TENTATIVE) RESULTS FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21:

June 30, 2019 2nd week of August 2019
September 30, 2019 2nd week of November 2019
December 31, 2019 2nd week of February 2020
March 31, 2020 4th week of May 2020
Annual General Meeting September, 2020
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SUSPENSION OF SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY FROM STOCK EXCHANGE:

During the year 2019-20, the Company’s securities have not been suspended from trading on BSE Limited.

STOCK CODE OF COMPANY:
Name of Stock Exchange Code
BSE Ltd (BSE) 532820
ISIN No. INE311H01018

OUTSTANDING GLOBAL DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS OR AMERICAN DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS OR WARRANTS OR
ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS:

Not Applicable

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:

The Company's shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form. The Company has established through its
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, connectivity with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). 99.85% of the equity shares of the company have been dematerialized
as on 31° March, 2020.

Details of No. of shares held in dematerialized and physical mode as on 31* March, 2020:

Particulars No. of Shares Percentage of Total issued Capital
Held in Dematerialized form in CDSL | 83,79,011 17.30

Held in Dematerialized form in NSDL | 3,95,38,417 82.55

Physical Form 73,041 00.15

Total 4,79,90,469 100.00

PERFORMANCE IN COMPARSION TO BROAD BASED INDICES (SUCH AS SENSEX/CRISIL INDEX):
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) STOCK MARKET PRICE DATA FOR THE YEAR 2019-20:
Month (April 2019 to March 2020) BSE NSE
High (Rs) Low(Rs) High (Rs) Low(Rs)
April 8.24 5.83 8.20 5.70
May 7.84 6.3 7.20 6.20
June 6.99 5.92 6.70 5.70
July 7.12 6.01 6.75 5.75
August 7.3 4.47 6.85 4.25
September 5.12 4.3 5.00 4.40
October 493 3.06 - -
November 4.9 3.12 - -
December 5.4 3.94 - -
January 6.5 4.67 - -
February 6.1 5.52 - -
March 5.99 3.99 - -

(Source: BSE website & NSE Website)

*The company has been voluntarily delisted from National Stock Exchange (NSE) with effect from October 01,

2019.

m) INVESTOR SERVICES:

The Company has appointed Big share Services Pvt. Ltd, whose address is given below, as its Registrar and

Transfer Agents. The Registrar handles all matters relating to the shares of the Company including transfer,

transmission of shares, dematerialization of share certificates, subdivision /consolidation of share certificates

and investor grievances.
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Details of Big share Services Pvt. Ltd are as follows:

Address

1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis,
Andheri (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400059

Makwana Road,Marol,

Telephone No

022 - 40430200 / 62638200

E-mail address

investor@bigshareonline.com

Fax No

022 - 28475207 / 62638299

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

All the transfers received are processed by Registrar and Transfer Agents. Share transfers are registered and
returned within maximum of 15-20 days from the date of lodgment if documents are complete in all respects.
In case the shares are transferred through demat mode, the procedure is adopted as stated in Depositories
Act, 1996.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31°" MARCH, 2020:

Range (In Rs.) Total Holders % of Total Total Holding in % of Total Capital
Holders Rupees
1-500 10541 77.96 16,76,069 3.49
501 - 1000 1311 9.70 11,28,872 2.35
1001 - 2000 699 5.17 11,13,268 2.32
2001 - 3000 290 2.14 746,397 1.56
3001 - 4000 122 0.90 4,41,737 0.92
4001 — 5000 134 0.99 6,41,315 1.34
5001 — 10000 200 1.48 14,99,945 3.13
100001 — 99999999 224 1.66 4,07,42,866 84.90
Total 13581 4,79,90,469 100.00
SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31°" MARCH, 2020:
Category No. of No. of Shares | % of Shareholding
Shareholders

Promoters/Directors/Directors Relative 1 3,15,98,094 65.84
Financial Institutions and Banks 1 5,94,476 1.24
Bodies Corporate 96 5,20,583 1.08
Resident Individuals 12,496 1,35,53,826 28.25
Clearing Member 27 87,348 0.18
NRIs 111 2,56,903 0.54

09



mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com

q)

1)

E-Land Apparel Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

\ Total 13828 4,79,90,469 100

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND:

The Company is required to transfer dividends which have remained unpaid / unclaimed for a period of 7 years
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Government. The Company has already
transferred the unclaimed dividend to the IEPF. No unpaid dividend.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT FOR RECONCILIATION OF CAPITAL:

As stipulated by SEBI a qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total
admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out periodically and thereon is
submitted to the Stock Exchanges. The audit confirms that the total Listed and Paid-up Capital is in agreement
with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total
number of shares in physical form.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE:

E-LAND APPAREL LIMITED BIGSHARE SERVICES PVT. LTD

16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl Estate, Singasandra Near Dakshin |(1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant
Honda Showroom House Road, Bangalore 560068 Oasis, Makwana Road,Marol, Andheri (East),
Karanataka Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400059
Tel.: +91-22-40972600/01 Tel.: 022 - 40430200 / 62638200
Fax.: +91-22- 28472602 Fax No.: 022 - 28475207 / 62638299
E-mail: investor@elandapparel.com E-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: http://elandapparel.com/ Website: www.bigshareonline.com/
PLANT LOCATIONS:

Particulars of Unit Address
Unit No-1 40, Basapura Road, Electronic City Post, Begur Hobli, Bangalore-5600100.
Unit no-2 16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl, Estate, Singasandra, Near Dakshin Honda Showroom, Hosur

Road, Bangalore-560068

Unit No-3 1857 Hanumantha Nagar, B M Road, Channapatna, Ramanagar- 562160/571501
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Unit No-4 No.-9, m. Yarandlahalli sub |/o Bommsandra, Industrial area, Bommsandra, Anekal,
Bangalore

OTHER DISCLOSURES

(a) Maintenance of the Chairman's Office:

The Company has an Executive Chairman and the office provided to him for performing his executive duties
is also utilized by him for discharging his duties as Chairman. No separate office is maintained for the Non-
Executive Chairman of the Audit Committee but Secretarial and other assistance is provided to him whenever
needed, in performance of his duties.

(b) Shareholders' Rights:

Un-audited quarterly and audited yearly financial results are sent to the stock exchanges and published in the
newspapers as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(c) Reporting of internal auditor:

The Internal Auditor directly reports to the Audit Committee.

(d) Preferential Allotment

There has been no preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement done by the Company during the
financial year.

(e) Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company

M/s Hinesh Doshi & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 103677W/W-100056) the Company’s
Statutory Auditor, is responsible for performing an independent audit of the Financial Statements and expressing
an opinion on the conformity of those financial statements with accounting principles generally accepted in India.

As required under Regulation 34 read with Part C of the Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the total fees paid by
the Company to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm / entity of which the statutory auditor is a
part is Rs. 8,00,000.

(f) Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at its workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at the workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made there under for

0o




E-Land Apparel Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The Company also has an Internal
Committee comprising of two male and two female members. During the year under review:-

a) Number of complaints filed during the financial year: NIL
b) Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: NIL
c) Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: NIL

(g) Hedging of Risk:

Company is not having material exposure to foreign exchange therefore there is no major heading Risk.

DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS:

The Company complies with following non-mandatory requirements of Regulation 27(1) of the Listing Regulations.

a) FINANCE COMMITTEE:

Although it is not mandatory, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Finance Committee, the
details of which have been provided under Section “Finance Committee”.

b) Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee. They attend various workshops and seminars to
keep themselves abreast with the changing business environment.

For and on Behalf of the
Board of Directors E-Land Apparel Limited

Date: September 04, 2020 SD/- SD/-

Place: Bangalore Jae Ho Song Chong Tae Baek
Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 07830731 DIN : 01566661
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EXHIBIT - A

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Members,
E-Land Apparel Limited

. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by E-Land Apparel Limited (‘The

Company) for the year ended on 31* March, 2020 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as “SEBI Listing
Regulations, 2015).

Management’s Responsibility

2.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This
responsibility includes the designing, implementing and maintaining operating effectiveness of internal control
to ensure compliance with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the ListingRegulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Clause. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company for the purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate
Governance requirements by the Company.

. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Certificate of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the
ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special
Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAL.

. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality

Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and
Related Service Engagements.
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Opinion

7. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations given to us
and based on the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i)
of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations 2015 during the year ended March 31, 2020.

Other Matters and Restriction of Use

8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

9. This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulations and may not be
suitable for any other purpose.

For Hinesh Doshi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 103667W/W100056

Hinesh R Doshi

Partner

Membership No: 042539
Place: Mumbai

Date: 4" September, 2020
UDIN: 20042539AAAAIV7728
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EXHIBIT - B

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To
The Board of Directors,
Eland Apparel Limited

A. | have reviewed the Financial Statementsand the CashFlow Statement of Eland Apparel Limited for
the year ended 31* March, 2020 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

l. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

Il. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during
theyear which are fraudulent, illegal orinviolation of the company's code of conduct.

C. laccept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial
reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose
totaketo rectifying these deficiencies.

D. l|haveindicatedtotheAuditors andthe Audit Committee:

I. Significant changes ininternal control over financial reporting during the year;
Il. Significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements; and
lll. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of
the management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system over
financial reporting.

For Eland Apparel Limited

SD/-

Mr. Choi Haoi

Chief Financial Officer
PAN: BHMPC3338P

Date: September 04, 2020.
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EXHIBIT - C

CODE OF CONDUCTAND CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE THEREOF

This is to confirm that Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management ofthe
Company and is available on the website of the Company.

| hereby confirm that the Company has obtained affirmation from all the Members of the Board and the Senior
Management Personnel that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2019-20.

This certificate is being given pursuant to Part D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

For Eland Apparel Limited

SD/-

Mr. Jae Ho Song
Managing Director
DIN: 07830731

Date: September 04, 2020.
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
E-Land Apparel Limited

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of E-Land Apparel Limited, having CIN L17110KA1997PLC120558 and having registered office
at 16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl Estate, Singasandra Near Dakshin Honda Showroom House Road, Bangalore —
560 068, Karnataka, India, (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) produced before us by the
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para-C Clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the financial year ending on 31* March, 2020 or a part
thereof of their appointment, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or

any such other Statutory Authority:

Sr. No. Name of the Directors DIN Date of appointment in the Company
1. Jaeho Song 07830731 30/05/2017
2. Kyoung Hur 00319651 30/09/2014
3. Chongtae Baek 01566661 30/09/2011
4, Sivabalan Paul Pandian 01573458 26/09/2007
5. Elizabeth Ravi 07213341 30/09/2015
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these,

based on my verification.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For DSM & Associates,

Company Secretaries

CS Sanam Umbargikar
Partner

M.No.26141

COP No. 9394

UDIN: A026141B000634311

Date: 31/08/2020

Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE V TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMY

GLOBAL ECONOMY

Although slowdown in the manufacturing sector and trade tensions between the US and China were among the many
Factors that softened the economic outlook for 2019, the year did begin on a firm footing. The projected global
economic growth, albeit downgraded, was 2.9%. Despite the economic and financial headwinds, growth in
developing Asia was projected to remain a robust 5.5% during 2019 (Asian Development Outlook, Update, and
September 2019). However, in 2019-20, the Indian economy grew by 4.2% against 6.1% expansion in 2018-19
whereas China’s growth was 6.1% in 2019 vs. 6.7% in 2018. Growth among advanced economies was forecast to drop
to 2% during the year although growth in Sub-Saharan Africa was projected to accelerate to 3.1% (Source: World
Economic Outlook, International Monetary Fund). However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the International
Monetary Fund has projected a sharp contraction of the global economy to a status much worse than what resulted
from the 2008-09 financial crisis.

INDIAN ECONOMY

India continues to be one of the fastest growing emerging economies in the world. A slowdown in the manufacturing
and construction sector has lately affected GDP growth slightly below 5% in the current fiscal. An impending revival in
demand, positive consumption pattern and rising disposable income, makes India the most sought after investment
destinations. Already the fifth largest economy in the world, India is supposed to take its place among the world’s top
three economic powers in the next 10-15 years. The pandemic has undoubtedly affected India, but with the
economic stimulus and the gradual opening up of the lockdown the situation can be expected to improve. Interstate
movement of goods is gradually picking up and retail financial transactions are showing a healthy trend.

ANALYSIS AND REVIEW

INDIAN TEXTILE & APPAREL INDUSTRY

India is now a fast emerging market inching to reach half a billion middle income population by 2030. All these factors
are good for the Indian textile industry in a long run. Even though the global economic crisis seems to be worsening
day-by-day, as long as economies are emerging and growing as those in South and South East Asia, textile industry is
here to grow provided it takes competition and innovation seriously. Read below to have an insight of the stand of
the Indian Textile Industry in the economy.

INTRODUCTION

India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in Indian economy dating back several centuries. Even today,
textiles sector is one of the largest contributors to India’s exports with approximately 13 per cent of total exports. The
textile industry is also labor intensive and is one of the largest employers. The textile industry has two broad
segments. First, the unorganized sector consists of handloom, handicrafts and sericulture, which are operated on a
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small scale and through traditional tools and methods. The second is the organized sector consisting of spinning,
apparel and garments segment which apply modern machinery and techniques such as economies of scale.

The Indian textiles industry is extremely varied, with the hand-spun and hand-woven textiles sectors at one end of
the spectrum, while the capital intensive sophisticated mills sector at the other end of the spectrum. The
decentralized power looms/ hosiery and knitting sector form the largest component of the textiles sector. The close
linkage of the textile industry to agriculture (for raw materials such as cotton) and the ancient culture and traditions
of the country in terms of textiles make the Indian textiles sector unique in comparison to the industries of other
countries. The Indian textile industry has the capacity to produce a wide variety of products suitable to different
market segments, both within India and across the world.

MARKET SIZE

Textile and apparel trade is predicted to grow at a CAGR of 6.4% during the period 2020-29. Apparel trade is likely to
grow at a CAGR of 5.5% and textiles at a CAGR of 7% during the period. Rising disposable income, population, and
rapid urbanisation in the emerging economies such as India, the period. Rising disposable income, population, and
rapid market growth. The Indian apparel industry was estimated to be worth $62 growing at CAGR of ~7.6% over
2019-29 period.

Where does the Indian Textile Industry Stand now?

A General Impression of the Indian textile industry looking in the past makes one understand that the industry is in a pinchj.
Why so? These are the reasons:

1) Global recession and low purchases by consumers

2) Less export orders due to reductions in inventories by global retail giants like Wal-Mart
3) Price of raw materials like cottons and increase in labour cost.

4) Infrastructure bottlenecks such as power, particularly in Karnataka.

INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY OPPORTUNITIES

The fundamental strength of Indian textile industry is its strong production base with wide range of fibers/yarns.
These are natural fibers such as cotton, jute, silk and wool and synthetic/man-made fibers like polyester, viscose,
nylon and acrylic. In producer-driven value chains, large, usually transnational, manufacturers play the central roles
in coordinating production networks. Textile industry is capital- and technology-intensive comparable with
automobiles, aircraft, computers, semiconductors and heavy machinery industry. Buyer-driven value chains are
those in which large retailers, marketers and branded manufacturers play the pivotal roles in setting up
decentralized production networks in a variety of exporting countries, typically located in developing countries. This
pattern of trade-led industrialization has become common in labor intensive, consumer-goods industries such as
garments, footwear, toys, handicrafts and consumer electronics. Large manufacturers control the producer-driven
value chains at the point of production, while marketers and merchandisers exercise the main leverage in buyer-
driven value chains at the design and retail stages. Apparel is an ideal industry for examining the dynamics of buyer-
driven value chains. The relative ease of setting up clothing companies, coupled with the prevalence of developed-
country protectionism in this sector, has led to an unparalleled diversity of garment exporters in the third world.
Apparel is an ideal industry for examining the dynamics of buyer-driven value chains. The global apparel market size
is expected to reach US $2.6 trillion in 2025 growing by a projected rate of _4_%. The major growth drivers of the
global apparel market will be the developing economies, mainly China and India, both growing in double digits. China
will become the biggest apparel market adding more than US $378 bn. in market size by 2025, while India will be the
second most attractive apparel market adding around US S_121bn. by 2025. A large and growing domestic demand
coupled with increasing spending power of people in these two countries will result in the combined addition of
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around US $_500 bn. in the global apparel market size by 2025. The combined apparel market size of China and India
i.e. US S_795 bn. is expected to exceed combined market size of EU and USA i.e. US $775 bn, by 2025. India has a
share of approximately 5% of the global textile and apparel trade.

INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY CHALLENGES (OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS)

The Indian textile industry is highly fragmented and is being dominated by the unorganized sector and small and
medium industries. The changing government policies at the state and central government levels are posing major
challenges to the textile industry. The tax structures GST (Goods and Service Tax) make the garments expensive.
Another important thereat is raising interest rates and labor wages and workers’ salaries. There is higher level of
attrition in the garment industry. Although central government is wooing the foreign investors the investment is
coming in the textile industry. In India places such as Bangalore, Mumbai, New Delhi and Tirupur are the hubs of
textile garment industries. These manufacturers have ability to produce the entire range of woven wear and
knitwear at low cost with reasonably good quality within the short notices. The Indian textile industry has its own
limitations such as accesses to latest technology and failures to meet global standards in the highly competitive
export market. There is fierce competition from China, Bangladesh and Sri Lanka in the low price garment market. In
the global market tariff and non-tariff barriers coupled with quota is posing major challenge to the Indian textile
Industry. The environmental and social issues like child labor and personal safety norms are also some of the
challenges for the textile industry in India.

IMPACT OF PANDEMIC COVID-19

Besides all, the world has witnessed a major crises led by the spread through of Pandemic Coronavirus (COVID-19)
emerging from China during the month December 2019 and thereafter spreading through in almost all countries of
world. In India, outbreak of Pandemic COVID-19 occurred during the month of January 2020. Thus, the Hon’ble Prime
Minister Shri Narendra Modi to break the chain for the spread of this pandemic disease of COVID-19 had imposed
the Nationwide Lockdown w.e.f. 21* March 2020 in the country.

The adverse impact of coronavirus Covid -19 on India’s apparel and textile industry is beginning to show in
Bengaluru, the country’s largest textile manufacturing hub that employs about 2.5 lakh workers. Many of the highly
employment-intensive clothing units in and around the city are either shutting down their operations or laying off
employees, even as Karnataka is limping back to normalcy from the Covid-induced lockdown. At least four clothing
manufacturing units in Bengaluru, of Garden City Fashion, Sonal Garments, Texport Industries and Punith Creations,
have shut their operations or laid off half their workforce by August 2020. Many factories are expected to tread the
same path.

As a consequence of this outbreak Covid-19 and thereafter lockdown, all economic activities came to standstill and
had caused a major setback for all industries due to this unforeseen event. Various guidelines were issued by
government department of Ministry of Home Affairs (MHA) during lockdown period for the safeguard of all including
employees and working class people to fight against such situations. However, Industries started their operations at
a very slow pace as millions practice social distancing to stem the spread of COVID-19 (coronavirus). This unplanned
events have caused huge devastating impact on the organization. As a result, company is either currently
experiencing or anticipating significant constraints on cash and working capital, including potential liquidity
challenges.

The Company had faced disruption in their operation which has caused the major difficulty to timely execute the
work and have further led to financial losses by way of cancellation of Orders. Loss of Income and negative cash flow
due to such event had made difficult to bear the basic operational cost as there was no major benefits from to the
Industry from the stimulus package introduced by the government. Considering the fact that the situation is
exceptional and is changing dynamically, the Company is not in a position to gauge with certainty, the future impact
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on its operations. Further, due such current pandemic situation, company is sure that demand in garments will take
some time certainly for pick up.

CONCLUSION

The Indian textile industry requires support from both the Central and State governments to become competitive in
the Global market. The Skill India and Make-in India programs of Central government headed by Prime Minister Shri
Narendra Modi is helping the industry in getting required skilled manpower and good market for textile products. It
is high time for the textile industry to upgrade their technology and implement ERP to streamline supply chain and
enhance customer relations management activities. These measures are enabling the industry in becoming
competitive in the global market. The future for the Indian textile industry looks promising, buoyed by both strong
domestic consumption as well as export demand. With consumerism and disposable income on the rise, the retail
sector has experienced a rapid growth in the last decade with the entry of several international players like Marks &
Spencer, Guess and Next into the Indian market. The future for the Indian textile industry looks promising, buoyed by
both strong domestic consumption as well as export demand. With consumerism and disposable income on the rise,
the retail sector has experienced a rapid growth in the past decade with the entry of several international players like
Marks & Spencer, Guess and Next into the Indian market. The organized apparel segment is expected to grow at a
Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of more than 13 per cent over a 10-year period The Union Ministry of
Textiles, which has set a target of doubling textile exports in 10 years, plans to enter into bilateral agreements with
Africa and Australia along with working on a new textile policy to promote value addition, apart from finalizing
guidelines for the revised Textile up gradation Fund Scheme (TUFS). The Indian textile and apparel industry has been
adversely impacted in the short to mid-term due to lockdown and lower consumer spends. The sector is reeling
under liquidity and cost pressure as well due to the unprecedented damage caused by COVID-19 In 2020-21.
However The Indian cotton textile industry is expected to showcase a stable growth in FY 2021-22, supported by
stable input prices, healthy capacity utilization and steady domestic demand. High economic growth has resulted in
higher disposable income. This has led to rise in demand for products creating a huge domestic market. The
domestic market for apparel and lifestyle products, currently estimated at USS 85 billion, is expected to reach US
$160 billion by 2025.

DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE & INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Discussion of Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance & Internal Control Systems and their
Adequacy has been discussed in Directors Report.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

The Company takes pride in the commitment, competence and dedication of its employees in all areas of the
business. The Company is committed to nurturing, enhancing and retaining its top talent through superior learning
and organizational development. This is a part of our Corporate HR function and is a critical pillar to support the
organization’s growth and its sustainability in the long run.

Human resources continue to be an invaluable and intangible asset and a key success factor for the Company to
grow and sustain its market position in a highly competitive environment. Your Company firmly believes that people
are the pivotal force behind the growth and excellence in business operations. The overall performance and the
market position of the Company are the result of combined strength of its people.
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The company focuses on developing leadership skills, building talent for the future, and improving organizational &
human capability through competency mapping of managerial positions in all areas of the Company’s operations.
The Company is committed to provide the best environment to its employees to work and to inculcate a sense of
ownership and pride.

Sr. Particulars of Ratio 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
No
1. Debtors Turnover 8.27 8.11
2. Inventory Turnover 9.27 8.97
3. Interest Coverage 9.63% 6.18%
Ratio (%)
4. Current Ratio 1.34 1.84
5. Debt Equity Ratio -1.24 -1.26
6. Operating Profit -3.08% 1.40%
Margin (%)
7. Net Profit Margin (%) -35% 24%

Key Financial Ratios:

Details pertaining to Net-worth of the Company:

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(In Rs.) (InRs.)
Net-worth -35,857.96 -30,645.15
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements in this Directors’ Report and Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives,
projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied.
Important factors that could make difference to the Company’s operations include raw material availability and its
prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principle markets, changes in Government regulations, Tax
regimes, economic developments, within India and the countries in which the Company conducts business and other
ancillary factors. The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be
realized. The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements might differ materially from those either
expressed or implied herein.

For and on Behalf of the Board of
Directors
E-Land Apparel Limited

Date: September 04, 2020 SD/- SD/-

Place: Bengaluru. Jae Ho Song Chong Tae Baek
Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 07830731 DIN : 01566661
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Disclosure under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration) Rules, 2014

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director/ KMP to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year 2019- - 2020:

Name Designation Percentage Increase
Mr. Jae Ho Song Managing Director 8.6
Mr. Choi Haeoi Chief Financial Officer Nil
Mr. Diwakar Jugani Company Secretary
Not Comparable

Apart from the above Directors, the other directors are non-executive & independent and they do not receive any
remuneration and hence the details are not furnished.

Sr. | Name of Designation Remuneration | Nature of Date of Date of Birth | If the
No. | Employee Employment | Commenceme | of Employee | employee
nt of Employee isa
relative
of
Director
or
Manager
1. Mr. Jae Ho Song Managing 16655139 Managing 30/05/2017 03/12/1977 |NA
Director Director
2. Mr. Kim Seong Factory 13017748 Manager 01/06/2016 15/08/1997 |NA
Jin Manager
3. Mr. Seomoon Jae | General 8113043 Manager 01/06/2017 17/05/1961 |NA
Hyun Manager
4. Mr. S Selvakumar | C.E.O 2845056 Manager 25/08/2014 26/07/1970 |NA
Production
5. Mr. Yashpal General 2235336 Manager 15/04/2014 28/09/1979 |NA
Bhandari Manager-
Accounts &
Finance
6. Mr. Jai Ram Sr. Manager - 1899216 Manager 23/10/2018 25/03/1976 |NA
Singh HR
7. Mr. Sasi Kumar L. | Factory 2013000 Manager 27/06/2016 10/08/1977 |NA
Manager
8. Mr. Raghu Ram Production 1624536 Manager 02/07/2013 28/03/1975 |NA
Naidu Manager
9. Mr. Giriraj Sr. Manager- 1,497,396 Manager 25/07/2013 07/01/1976 |NA
Hr
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Mr. S Karunand Manager - 1396188 Manager 23/12/2016 04/06/1982
Fabric
Sourcing

il

Vi,

Vil

Viil,

The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the Financial Year was Rs.10,000/-

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year 2019- 2020 (0.19%)

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company:2424

The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:

The increase in remuneration is linked to the performance of the company as a whole, the performance of the
concerned division, performance of the employees and other factors like industry trends and economic

environment.

Comparison of the remuneration of each of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company
for the financial year 2018 - 2019:

Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Total Turnover of the | NetLoss ofthe Company
Personnel (to MD, WTD, CFO & CS) Company

Mr. Jae Ho Song 16655139

Managing Director

Mr. Choi Haeoi Nil

Chief Financial Officer 52,12,81,392.84

Mr. Diwakar Jugani 249333/-

Company Secretary

The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by thedirectors:

None

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company:

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other employees, adopted by the Company.

Details of the employees employed for full year or part of the year having remuneration of Rs. 1.02 Crores p.a.
where employed for the full year:

1. Mr.]Jae Ho Song( Managing Director of the Company)
2. Mr. Kim Seong Jin (Factory Manager)

Details of the employees employed for the part of the year and having salary of not less than Rs. 5 lakhs per month:

None

Details of the employees employed for the full year or part of the year was receipt of remuneration in that year
which in the aggregate or as the case may be at a rate which in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the
managing director or whole time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent

children, not less than 2% of the equity shares of the Company:

None
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
E-Land Apparel Limited

Date: September 04, 2020 SD/- SD/-

Place: Bengaluru Jae Ho Song Chong Tae Baek
Managing Independent
Director Director
DIN: 07830731 DIN: 01566661
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ANNEXURE VII TO DIRECTOR REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31°* March, 2020
(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

E-Land Apparel Limited
L17110KA1997PLC120558

(Formerly known as Mudra Lifestyle Limited)
16/2B, Sri Vinayaka Indl Estate, Singasandra
Near Dakshin Honda Showroom House Road,

Bangalore — 560 068

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by E-Land Apparel Limited. (hereinafter called “The
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided to me a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Due to restricted movement and COVID-19 pandemic, we have conducted the secretarial audit by
examining the Secretarial Records including Minutes, Documents, Registers and other records etc.,
and some of them received by way of electronic mode from the Company and could not be verified
from the original records. The management has confirmed that the records submitted to us are true
and correct. Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company, the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management and
considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange
Board of India, warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March,

2020 (“Audit Period”), generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
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the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2020 according to the

provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iiiy  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings [Applicable only to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and
Overseas Direct Investment]

(iv) (i) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): —

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009);

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client.

(ii) Provisions of the following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act) were not applicable to the company during the

Financial Year under report:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

102



E-Land Apparel Limited Annual Report 2019-2020

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and
mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company. The list of major head/ groups of Acts, Laws and Regulations as

applicable to the Company is given in Annexurel.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

() Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General

Meetings (SS-2) issued by ICSI under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

(i) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the observations, that :

1. As per section 203(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 vacancy of KMP shall be filled-up by the Board
within a period of six months, however the vacancy caused due to the resignation of CS Hemlata
Gupta dated 31/03/2020 was filled up by the Company by the appointment of CS Diwakar Jugani
dated 14/11/2020, after the delay of the prescribed period.

2. As per regulation 13(3) of LODR, Statement of Investor Complaint to be filed with the exchanges on
a quarterly basis, within twenty one days from the end of each quarter. But Statement of Investor
Complaint for the quarter ended June, 2019 and December, 2019 was incorrectly filed at the

exchange. Whereas the correct/ revised filing of the same was carried out by the Company.
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3. As per Regulation “Persons” mentioned in the 30(1) and 30(2) of SEBI (Substantial acquisition of
Shares & Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, Persons mentioned in the have to disclose their
shareholding, pursuant to Regulation 30(3), within seven working days from the end of each
financial year to every stock exchange where the shares of the target company are listed and at
the registered office of the target company. Annual Disclosure for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2019, and 31st March, 2020, has been submitted by the promoter to the Company as well
as Stock Exchange. However the same disclosure was not reflecting on the Portal of

www.bseindia.com at that time due to some technical issue. Currently it isreflecting.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
were sent seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in

the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the financial year the company had voluntary delisted its securities from

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

We further report that the compliance by the Company for the applicable Financial Laws like Direct
Taxes, Indirect Taxes and the compliance of the Accounting Standards, quarterly financial results
under Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the annual financial statements, Cost
Records has not been reviewed in this audit report, since the same have been subject to the statutory
financial audit/cost audit by other designated professionals. This report is to be read with our letter of

even date which is annexed as Annexure | and forms an integral part of thisreport.
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We further report that during the audit period of the Company, there was no specific events/action
having a major bearing on the Company and also laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

referred to above.

For DSM & Associates,

Company Secretaries

CS Sanam Umbargikar
Partner

M.No.26141.

CP No.9394.

UDIN: A026141B000634309.

Place: Mumbai

Date: 31/08/2020
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‘Annexure I’
To,
The Members,
E-Land Apparel Limited

(Formerly known as Mudra Lifestyle Limited)

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on myaudit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for my

opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification

of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of

the company.
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For DSM & Associates,

Company Secretaries

CS Sanam Umbargikar
Partner

M.No.26141.

CP No.9394.

UDIN: A026141B000634309.

Place: Mumbai

Date: 31/08/2020
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ANNEXURE VIII TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Secretarial Compliance Report of E-Land Apparel Limited
For the year ended 315t March, 2020

I, CS Sanam Umbargikar, partner of M/s. DSM & Associates, Company Secretaries, have

examined:

(a) A the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by E-
Land Apparel Limited (“the listed entity”),

(b) The filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

(c) Website of the listed entity,

(d) Any other document/ filings, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to

make this certification,

For the year ended 31 March, 2020 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the

provisions of:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

(b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder
and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India ("SEBI”)

The specific regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder,
have been examined, include:
(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

Page 1 of 4
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(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018

(not applicable to the Listed Entity during Review Period);

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)

Regulations, 2014 (not applicable to the Listed Entity during Review Period);

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008 (not applicable to the Listed Entity during Review Period);

(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non Convertible and

Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 (not applicable to the Listed

Entity during Review Period);

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,

2015;

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder;

And based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of above Regulations and

circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:

Sr. Compliance Requirements (Regulations/ | Deviation Observations/
No. Circulars/ guidelines including specific Remarks of the
clause) Practicing Company
Secretary
1. As per regulation 13(3) of LODR, | Statement of Investor Complaint| No adverse
Statement of Investor Complaint to be filed | for the quarter ended June, 2019 | comments to offer
with the exchanges on a quarterly basis, | and December, 2019 was
within twenty one days from the end of | incorrectly filed at the exchange.
each quarter. Whereas the correct/ revised filing
of the same was carried out by the
Company.
2. As per the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider | Intimation to the Stock Exchange | Exchange has not

Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018,

for Closure of Trading Window for

imposed any penalty
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debarment etc.

any

effective from April 1, 2019, the “Closure | the Quarter ended 31%* March, | for the delay till
of Trading Window” shall be applicable | 2019, was filed on 4" April, 2019 date.

from the end of every quarter till 48 hours | i.e. in delay of 4 days.

after the declaration of Financial Results.

3. Persons mentioned in the Regulation 30(1) | Annual Disclosure for the financial | No adverse
and 30(2)of SEBI (Substantial acquisition | year ended 31 March, 2019, and | comments to offer
of Shares & Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, | 31t  March, 2020, has been
have to disclose their shareholding, | submitted by the promoter to the
pursuant to Regulation 30(3), within seven | Company as well as Stock
working days from the end of each| Exchange. However the same
financial year to every stock exchange | disclosures are not reflecting on
where the shares of the target company | the Portal of www.bseindia.com.
are listed and at the registered office of the
target company.

(b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder in so far as it appears from
my examination of those records.
(c) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/
directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including
under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars)
under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circular/ guidelines issued thereunder:
Sr. | Action Taken by Details of Violation | Details of action taken e.g. | Observations/ remarks of the
No. fines, warning letters, | Practicing Company Secretary, if

NIL

(d) The Listed Entity has taken following actions to comply with observations made in

previous reports:
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Sr. | Observations/ remarks | Observations made in the | Actions taken by the | Comments of the
No. | of the Practicing | Secretarial Compliance | Listed Entity/ | Practicing Company
Company Secretary, in Report for the year ended | Management Reply to | Secretary
previous reports 31 March, 2019 the observations, if any
NIL
For DSM & Associates,
Company Secretaries
CS Sanam Umbargikar
Partner
M.No.26141.
CP No0.9394.
UDIN: A026141B000442095
Place: Mumbai.
Date: 13™July, 2020.
Page 4 of 4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of E-Land Apparel Limited
Reportonthe Auditofthe Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of E-Land Apparel Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive loss), the Statement of Cash Flows andthe Statementof changesinequityforthe yearended on

that date, and notes to financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
acceptedinIndiaincluding Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, of
the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31% March 2020, and its losses (financial
performanceincluding othercomprehensiveloss),itscashflowsandthe changesinequityforthe yearended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (Standards on Auditing) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
ofthe financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we havefulfilled our otherethicalresponsibilitiesinaccordance withtheserequirementsandthe ICAI’'s Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Keyauditmatters are those mattersthat, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
ofthe financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter

Howourauditaddressedthekeyauditmatter

The Company has incurred losses during the
currentyear and in earlier years. Its net worth is
eroded as at that March 31, 2020. These may
create a doubt regarding the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. However, the
financial statements have been prepared ona
going concern basis in view of the financial
support from the holding company and the
management’s plan to generate cash flows
through operations and sale of certainnon- core
assets which would enable the Company to
meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due. We considered this to be a key audit
matter because management’s assessmentis
largely dependent onthe support obtained from
its Holding Company.

Our procedures included the following:

+ Obtained the management assessment of
appropriateness of Going Concern basis of
accounting.

+ Discussed with the management onfuture
business and their plans to liquidate certain
assetsto ensure availability of liquid funds.

« Verified that the holding company has
supported the Company in the past when
the need arose.

+ Verified the support letter obtained by the
Company from its holding company
indicating that holding company will take
necessary actions to organize for any
shortfall in liquidity in Company that may
arise to meet its financial obligations during
the period of 12 months from the balance
sheet date.

Based on the above procedures, we noted the
management assessment of going concern basis
of accounting asappropriate.

Emphasis of Matter

+  Wedraw attention to Note 38 in the annual financial statements, which describes uncertainties, the
Company is facing as a result of COVID-19 and the management evaluation of its operations and
financial reporting for the year ended 31st March, 2020. Such assessments are dependent on the
circumstances as they evolve in the subsequent periods.

+  Wedrawattentionto Note 39 in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020,
wherein the management of the company has detected fraud in the company. As of the reporting
date, from the total vendor accounts which were verified, wrongful discounting and swindling with
the vendor paymentfrom Company bank accountidentified wereforRs. 2,65,06,890/- Company has
recoveredamountof Rs. 1,17,95,540/- andis in the process of recovering the balance amount of Rs.
1,47,11,350/-.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
The Company’s Board of Directorsisresponsible for the otherinformation. The otherinformation comprises

the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained inthe audit or otherwise appearsto be materially misstated. If, based
onthe work we have performed, we conclude thatthere is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting recordsinaccordance with the provisions of the Actfor safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concernbasis of accounting unlessthe Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Companyorto cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Ourobjectivesareto obtain reasonable assurance aboutwhetherthe financial statementsasawhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee thatan audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Aspartofanauditinaccordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professionaljudgmentand maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identifyand assess the risk of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
orerror, designand performaudit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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= Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether has adequate internal financial controls systemsin
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exits related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exits, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
totherelated disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures,andwhetherthe Financial Statementsrepresentthe underlyingtransactionsandeventsin
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we may have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated withthose charged fromgovernance, we determine those mattersthatwere
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremelyrare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
becommunicatedinourreportbecausetheadverse consequencesofdoingsowouldreasonablybeexpected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Governmentin terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profitand Loss including Other Comprehensive loss, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books ofaccount.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
andthe operating effectiveness of such controls, referto our separate Reportin “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financialreporting.

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31,2020 has been paid/provided
by the Companyto its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule Vto
the Act

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014, asamendedinouropinionandtothe bestof ourinformation
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial

statements — Refer Note No. 34 to the financial statements.

i. TheCompanydidnothave anylong-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were

any material foreseeablelosses.

There has been nodelayin transferringamounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31* March, 2020.

For HINESH R. DOSHI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 103677W/W100056

HINESH R DOSHI

Partner

Membership No. 042539
UDIN: 20042539AAAAHR8252

Place: Mumbai

Date: 13" July,
2020
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Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report

ReferredtoinParagraph2undertheheadingof“ReportonotherLegaland RegulatoryRequirements”
of our report to the members of E-Land Apparel Limited of even date

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, we report that:

Vi.

In respect of companies fixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

b) The Company has a programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assetsareverifiedinaphasedperiodicmanner, whichinouropinionis reasonable having
regardtothe size ofthe Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us
and based on the examination of the registered sale deed/transfer deed/conveyance
deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable
properties of land and buildings, are held in the name of the company as at the balance
sheet date.

Inrespect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease and disclosed
as fixed asset in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the
company, where the company is the lessee in the agreement.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Managementatreasonableintervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification.

The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act,2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Actin respect of grant of loans,
making investment and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

Accordingtothe information and explanations givento us, the companyhasnotaccepted any
deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits

Toourknowledge andexplainedtous,the maintenance of costrecordshasnotbeenspecified
by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the companies Act, 2013.
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vii.  According to information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) Undisputed statutory dues pertaining to Provident fund and Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax have not been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities and there have been delays in a number of cases.

b) TheundisputedamountspayableinrespectofValue AddedtaxinarrearsasatMarch
31,2020 foraperiod of more than six months from the date they became payable are

as follows:
Name of | Nature of the | Amount (in | Period to | Due date Date of
Statute dues lakhs) which the subsequent
amount payment
relates
Sales Tax Central Sales | 1.07 2014-15 and | April 21, | Not Paid
Tax 2015-16 2015 and
August 21,
2015
Income Tax Interest onTax | 39.31 2007 to 2012 | 7™ day of the | Not Paid
Deducted at subsequent
source month

c) Detailsofduesofincometax, Salestax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, and Value
Added tax which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2020 on account of
disputes, are asfollows:

Name of | Nature of the | Forum where | Period to | Amount
Statute dues Dlspl_Jte is | which the (Rs. lakhs)
pending amount
relates
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax Commissioner | 2008-09 and | 140.36
1961 of Tax | 2009-10
(Appeals)
Sales Tax Sales Tax, | Commissioner | 2001-02 and | 250.22
including of Sales Tax, | 2004-05
interest  and | Maharashtra
penalty
viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and
government. The Company has not issued any debentures.
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Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

We draw attention to Note 39 in the standalone annual financial statements, wherein the
management of the company has detected fraud in the company. As of the reporting date,
from the total vendor accounts which were verified, wrongful discounting and swindling with
the vendor payment from Company bank account identified were for Rs. 2,65,06,890/-.
Employees were terminated from immediate effect and the company is in the process of
recovery. Company has recovered amount of Rs. 1,17,95,540/- and is in the process of
recovering the balance amount of Rs. 1,47,11,350/-.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations givento us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, provisions of this clause is not applicable.

Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations givento us, the Company is
incompliance with Sections 177 and 188 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, forall
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed inthe Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the Year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence, reporting under this clause is
not applicable to the Company.

In Our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons
connectedtoitsdirectorsandhence provisions of Section 192 ofthe Companies Act,2013are
not applicable to the Company.

The Companyisnotrequiredtoberegistered undersection45-1A ofthe Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For HINESH R. DOSHI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 103677W/W100056

HINESH R DOSHI

Partner

Membership No. 042539
UDIN: 20042539AAAAHR8252
Place: Mumbai

Date: 13" July,

2020
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Annexure Btothe Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading of “Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our reporttothe members of E-Land Apparel Limited of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of E-Land Apparel Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Ourauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboutthe adequacy of theinternal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessedrisk. The procedures selected depend onthe auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

120



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
thetransactions anddispositions ofthe assets ofthe company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
withgenerallyaccepted accounting principles, andthatreceipts and expenditures ofthe companyare
beingmadeonlyinaccordance withauthorizations of managementanddirectors ofthe company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherentlimitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following
material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2020:

a. The company did not have adequate internal controls for timely reconciliations of vendor
ledger balances.

b. The company had inadequate controls towards getting acknowledgments for the
disbursements done towards outstanding vendor balances.

A‘materialweakness’isadeficiency, oracombination of deficiencies, ininternalfinancial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on atimely basis.

In our opinion, exceptforthe effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on
the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2020, based on “the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

Explanatory paragraph
We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the financial statements
of E-land ApparelLimited Company, whichcomprisethe Balance SheetasatMarch31,2020,andthe
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related Statementof Profitand Loss and Cash Flow Statementforthe yearthenended,andasummary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The material weaknesses
identified as above was considered in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit tests applied
in our audit of the March 2020 financial statements of the company and this report does not affect
our report dated 13" July, 2020 on which we expressed an unqualified opinion on the financial
statements.

For HINESH R. DOSHI & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 103677W/W100056

HINESH R DOSHI

Partner

Membership No. 042539
UDIN: 20042539AAAAHR8252

Place: Mumbai

Date: 13" July,
2020
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E-LAND APPAREL LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

(Z in Lakhs)
Particulars NoteNo| As at 3lst Mar 2020 | As at 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4(a) 4,054.40 4,177.16
(b) Other Intangible assets 5 9.75 21.99
(c ) Capital Work-in-progress 4(b) 1,727.07 118.56
(d) Right - of - use asset 4(c) 1,024.22 -
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
a) Other investments 6 1.00 1.00
(i) Other financial assets 7(a) 174.20 257.99
(f) Other non-current assets 8(a) 303.91 394.77
Total Non - Current Assets 7,294.55 4,971.47
Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 1,582.01 1,639.47
(b) Financial assets
(i) Other Investments 10 13.17 18.47
(i) Trade receivables 11 1,676.29 1,937.31
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 223.72 670.80
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 12 26.39 1,078.20
(v) Other financial assets 7(b) 11.38 19.53
(c) Other current assets 8(b) 1,087.31 1,184.20
Total Current Assets 4,620.27 6,547.99
Total Assets 11,914.82 11,519.46
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 13 4,799.05 4,799.05
(b) Other equity 14 (40,657.01) (35,444.20)
Total Equity (35,857.96) (30,645.15)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 4,277.63 3,504.64
(i) Other financial liabilities 16(a) 14.00 14.00
(iii) Lease Liability 16(c) 899.06 -
(b) Provisions 17(a) 339.63 341.35
(c) Other non-current liabilities 18(a) 38,805.13 34,752.49
Total Non - Current Liabilities 44,335.45 38,612.48
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 34.14 -
(i) Trade payables 20
- Due to Micro Small & Other Enterprise 6.42 -
- Due to Others 2,089.67 3,028.42
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16(b) 32.14 5.66
(iv) Lease Liability 16(d) 187.03 -
(b) Provisions 17(b) 177.74 166.07
(c) Other current liabilities 18(b) 910.15 351.98
Total Current Liabilities 3,437.29 3,5652.13
Total Liabilities 47,772.74 42,164.61
Total Equity and Liabilities 11,914.82 11,519.46

ForHinesh Doshi&CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No- 103677W/W100056

Hinesh R. Doshi

Partner

Membership No. 042539
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 13, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
E-Land Apparel Limited

Jae Ho Song

Managing Director

DIN: 7830731

Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2020
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Independent Director
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Date: July 13, 2020

Choi Haeoi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2020



E-LAND APPAREL LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year eneded March 31, 2020

(¥ in Lakhs)
. For the Year ended 31st| Fortheyearended31
Particulars Notes
Mar, 2020 March, 2019
Revenue from operations 21 14,934.90 17,201.89
Other income 22 312.75 404.61
Total revenue [ A] 15,247.65 17,606.50
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 23 7,801.39 9,296.74
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 24 35.33 195.55
Employee benefits expenses 25 5,417.02 5,252.70
Finance cost 26 4,822.52 3,945.06
Depreciation & amortization expense 4 439.06 194.39
Other expenses 27 1,975.16 2,873.94
Total expenses [ B ] 20,490.48 21,758.38
Loss before tax [ A-B ] (5,242.83) (4,151.88)
Tax expense
Current tax expenses
Deferred tax (Refer Note 37)
Total Tax Expense
Loss after tax for the year (5,242.83) (4,151.88)
Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit Plans - Gains / (lossses) 30.04 28.72
(b) Surplus on revaluation on land - -
Total Other comprehensive Income 30.04 28.72
Total Comprehensive Income (5,212.79) (4,123.16)
Earnings per share 32
Basic (Rs) (10.92) (8.65)
Diluted (Rs) (10.92) (8.65)
Nominal value per share (Rs.) 10 10
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 21040

ForHinesh Doshi&Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No- 103677W/W100056

Hinesh R. Doshi

Partner

Membership No. 042539
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 13, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

E-Land Apparel Limited

Jae Ho Song

Managing Director

DIN: 7830731

Place: Bangalore

Date: July 13,
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Chong Tae Baek
Independent Director
DIN: 01566661
Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2020

Choi Haeoi
ChiefFinancial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2020



E-Land Apparel Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss before tax (5,242.83) (4,151.88)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation 439.06 194.39
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 27.98 5.87
Interest income (29.80) (38.71)
Dividend income (0.15) (0.15)
Sundry balances (written back) / written off (Net) 8.85 217.07
Interest / finance charges 4,822.52 3,910.37
Bad debts written off 1.24 100.44
Provision / (Reversal of Provision) for doubtful receivables 61.82 87.16
Provision / (Reversal of Provision) for Advances to suppliers (107.81) 25.59
Unrealized foreign exchange loss / (gain) (48.91) 110.81
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (68.04) 460.96
Movements in working capital:

Decrease / (Increase) in inventory 57.45 557.00
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 189.11 584.17
Decrease / (increase) in Other assets (Financial & Non- financial) 1,096.03 (953.22)
Decrease / (increase) in Current Investments 5.30 4.31
(Decrease) / increase in Trade Payables (1,040.14) (586.33)
(Decrease) / increase in Other Liabilities (Financial & Non-financial) 1,184.49 1,663.50
(Decrease) / increase in Provisions 9.94 22.34
Cash generated / (used) from operating activities before taxes 1,434.14 1,752.73
Direct taxes (paid)/ Reversal of taxes - -
Net cash generated / (used) in operating activities (A) 1,434.14 1,752.73
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including CWIP and capital advances (1,828.35) (94.37)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 11.24 18.52
Interest income 17.88 38.71
Investments/ (redemption) in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three

months) 26.39 1,078.20
Dividends 0.15 0.15
Net cash generated / (used) in investing activities (B) (1,772.70) 1,041.21
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest/finance charges paid (40.41) 0.02
Payment of Lease Liability (315.24) -
Proceeds / Repayment with respect to loans 247.14 (2,503.70)
Net cash generated / (used) in investing activities (C) (108.51) (2,503.68)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (447.08) 290.27
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Particulars

Cashandcashequivalentsatthebeginning oftheyear
Cashand cash equivalents attheend of the year

Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with Bank

- in current account

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
670.80 380.54
223.72 670.80
2.68 291
221.04 667.89
223.72 670.80

ForHineshDoshi&CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No-103677W/W100056

Hinesh R. Doshi
Partner

Membership No. 042539
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 13, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
E-Land Apparel Limited

Jae Ho Song
Managing Director
DIN: 7830731
Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2020
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Independent Director
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Date: July 13, 2020

Choi Haeoi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2020



E-LAND APPAREL LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity

a.Equity sharecapital (X inLakhs)
Particulars Amount
Balance at March 31, 2018 4,799.05
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2019 4,799.05
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2020 4,799.05

(% in Lakhs)

b.Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Securities premium

General Reserves

Deficitin Statement of Profit
and Loss

Capital Contribution

Revaluation surplus

Total Other Equity

Balance as at April 1, 2018

Add / (Less):
Lossfortheyear

Adjustment of capital contribution on account of
early repayment of loan taken from a group company
Gain/(loss)on Remeasurementof defined benefit
obligation (net oftax)

Balance as at March 31, 2019

Balance as at April 1, 2019
Add:
Loss for the year

Adjustment of capital contribution on account of
early repayment of loan taken from a group company
Add /Less:

Gain/(loss) on Remeasurementof defined benefit
obligation (net of tax)

14,245.60

591.82

(58,171.19)

(6,216.96)

28.72

14,322.83

(984.21)

739.18

(28,271.75)

(6,216.96)

(984.21)

28.72

14,245.60

591.82

(64,359.43)

13,338.62

739.18

(35,444.20)

14,245.60

591.82

(64,359.43)

(5,242.83)

30.04

13,338.62

739.18

(35,444.20)

(5,242.83)

30.04

Balance as at March 31, 2020

14,245.60

591.82

(69,572.22)

13,338.62

739.18

(40,657.01)

ForHinesh Doshi & CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No- 103677W/W100056

Hinesh R. Doshi

Partner

Membership No. 042539
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 13, 2020
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
E-Land Apparel Limited

Jae Ho Song
Managing Director
DIN: 7830731
Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2020

Chong Tae Baek
Independent Director
DIN: 01566661

Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2020

Choi Haeoi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2020



2.1.

2.2.

E-LAND APPAREL LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

E-land Apparel Limited (“the Company”) is alisted public limited company incorporated in 1997. Its shares
are listed on two stock exchanges in India. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of
manufacture andsale ofgarments. The Company caterstobothdomesticandinternational markets.

BASISFORPREPARATIONAND PRESENTATIONAND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time). The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented
in the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants atthe measurementdate, regardless of whether that priceis
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Assets held for sale are measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost
to sell.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered andfitle is passed, i.e., when
all the following conditions are satisfied:

. The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

. The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and
. Thecostsincurred orto beincurredinrespectofthetransaction canbe measuredreliably.

Revenue fromservices are recognized when servicesarerenderedandrelated costsareincurred,

Interestincomeisaccruedonatime basis, byreferencetothe principal outstandingand atthe effective
interestrate applicable, whichistherate thatexactly discounts estimatedfuture cashreceiptsthrough
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. Dividend
income is accounted for when the right to receive payment has been established.

Rentalincome on assets given under operating lease arrangements is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease

ii. Governmentgrant

Government grants are recognized at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all the conditions will be complied by the Company

Government grants relating to income are recognized in profit and loss account in a systematic manner,
in order to match them with the corresponding costs.

Government grants related to property, plant and equipment are recognized as deferred income and are
recognizedinthe profitand loss accountin asystematic basis, based onthe compliance of conditions

attached with thegrant.

Property, Plant and Equipment

All Property, Plant and Equipment, except Land are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price net of
any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for
its intended use, other incidental expenses.

Anitem of property, plantand equipmentis derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipmentis determined as the difference between the
salesproceedsandthecarryingamountoftheassetandisrecognizedin StatementofProfitand Loss.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of asset less its estimated residual value. Depreciation on
Property, Plantand Equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the
useful lives estimated by the management. The Company has considered the following useful lives for
providing depreciation:
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Tangible Assets Useful Life (in Years)
Buildings 30

Plant and equipment 20

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipment 5

Vehicles 8

Electric Installations 10

Computers 3

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

In case of Land, the Company has elected to adopt revaluation model as per which itis carried at revalued
amountwhichisequaltoitsfairvalue. Revaluations are made at sufficientregularity to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The surplus arising on account of revaluation is recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading "Revaluation surplus”.

Intangible assets

Acquired Intangible Assets - Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortization is
recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortizationmethod are reviewed atthe end of each reporting period, withthe effectofany changesin
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquiredseparately are carried at costless accumulated impairmentlosses, ifany. The useful lives of
intangible assets that is considered for amortization of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible Asset Useful life (in years)
Computer Software 3

Anintangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference betweenthe netdisposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, arerecognizedin
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and the net realizable value. Cost includes
allchargesinbringing the goodstothe pointof sale, including octroiand other levies, transitinsurance

andreceiving charges. Work-in-progress and finished goodsinclude appropriate proportion of overheads.
Raw materials and stores and spares are valued at weighted average cost.
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Netrealizable value isthe estimated selling price inthe ordinary course of businesslessthe estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financialassetsandfinancialliabilities atfairvalue throughprofitorloss) are addedto ordeductedfrom
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subseguent measurement:

Financial assets atamortized cost- Financial assets are subsequently measured atamortized costifthese
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and contractual terms of financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets

Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income- Financial assets are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive incomeifthese financial assets are held within business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss- Financial assets are measured at fair value through
profitorloss unlessitismeasured atamortized costorfair value through other comprehensive income
oninitialrecognition. Thetransaction costdirectly attributable tothe acquisition of financialassetsand
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured atamortized cost at the end of subsequentaccounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured atamortized cost are determined
based on the effective interest method.
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The effective interestmethod is a method of calculating the amortized cost of afinancial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received thatform an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initialrecognition.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments recognized by the Company are recognized at the
proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet, whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all
trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the twelve-month expected credit losses or at an
amountequaltothe lifetime expectedcreditlossesifthe creditriskonthefinancialassethasincreased
significantly, since initialrecognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognizes afinancial asset whenthe contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in Statement of Profit
and Lossifsuchgain orloss would have otherwise been recognized in Statement of profitand loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

Afinancialliabilityis de-recognized whenthe obligation undertheliabilityis discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modificationistreated asthe de-recognition ofthe originalliability and the recognition of anewliability.
The differenceinthe respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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Impairment of non-financial asset

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have sufferedan
impairmentloss. Ifany suchindication exists, the recoverable amountofthe assetisestimatedin order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment atleastannually, and whenever there isanindication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amountisthe higher of fairvalue less costs of disposal and value inuse. Inassessing value in
use, the estimatedfuture cashflows are discountedto their presentvalue using a pre-taxdiscountrate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Ifthe recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less thanits carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Animpairmentloss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subjectto an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign Currency transactions and translations

Thefunctional currency ofthe Companyis Indian Rupee (Rs). Transactions in foreign currencies are
recordedatthe exchangerate prevailing onthe date of transaction. Atthe end of eachreporting period,
monetaryitems denominatedinforeign currencies are retranslated atthe rates prevailing atthatdate.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are
not retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which they arise.

Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as
defined contribution plans and are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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Defined Benefit Plan

For defined benefit plansin the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unitcreditmethod, with actuarial valuations being carried outatthe end of eachreporting
period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses is recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognized during the year when the employees render the service.
These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their
entitlement of future compensated absences; and

in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Other Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognized as a liability at the present value of the
defined benefitobligationas atthe balance sheetdate lessthefairvalue of the plan assets outofwhich
the obligations are expected to be settled.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include:

interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method,

finance charges in respect of finance leases, and

exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assetsthat necessarily take asubstantial period of time togetready for theirintended use or
sale, areaddedtothe costofthose assets, untilsuchtime asthe assets are substantially readyfor their
intended use orsale.

Interestincome earned onthe temporaryinvestmentof specificborrowings pending their expenditure

on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing
costs arerecognised inthe Statement of Profitand Loss in the period inwhich they are incurred.
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Leases
At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is,orcontains,aleaseifthe contractconveystherighttocontroltheuse ofanidentifiedassetforaperiod

of time in exchange for consideration.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates
considerationinthe contractto eachlease componentonthe basis of their relative standalone price.

As a lessee

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizesright-of-use assets atthe commencementdate ofthe lease. Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to dismantle. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the lease term as per the contract. The Company presents right-to-use assets
under non-current assets in the Balance Sheet.

Lease liabilities

Atthe commencementdate ofthe lease, the Companyrecognizes lease liabilities measured atthe present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Company generally uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the discount rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. The carrying amount is remeasured when there is a
changeinfuture lease paymentsarisingfromachangeinindexorrate. Inaddition, the carryingamount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change inthe lease term, a change in the lease
payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The Company
presents lease liabilities under financial liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases. It also applies
the lease of low value assets recognition exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognized as rental expense and is generally
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Leases (till 31 March 2019)

The determination of whetheranarrangementis (or contains) aleaseisbased onthe substance ofthe
arrangement atthe inception of the lease. The arrangementis, or contains, alease if fulfilment of the
arrangementis dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys aright to
use the asset or assets, evenif that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

As a lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Assets held
under finance leases are initially capitalized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the inception
oftheleaseor, iflower, atthe presentvalue ofthe minimumlease payments. The correspondingliability
tothelessorisincludedinthe balance sheetasafinancelease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so asto achieve aconstantrate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

As lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
assetare classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Thetaxcurrentlypayableis basedontaxable profitforthe year. Taxable profitdiffers from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profitand Loss because ofitems of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. Company has incurred loses
and hence no current tax is calculated.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxis recognized ontemporary differences between the carryingamounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
fromtheinitial recognition of assets and liabilities in atransaction that affects neither the taxable profit
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nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferredtaxliabilities and assets are measured atthe taxratesthatare expected toapplyinthe period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
fromthe manner inwhich the Company expects, atthe end of the reporting period, to recover or settle

the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Provisions and ContingentLiabilities

Aprovisionisrecognizedwhenthe Companyhasapresentobligationasaresultof pasteventsanditis
probablethatanoutflowofresourceswillberequiredtosettlethe obligationinrespectofwhichareliable
estimate canbe made. Theamountrecognized asaprovisionisthe bestestimate of the consideration
requiredto settle the present obligation atthe end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amountis the present value of those cash flows
(whenthe effectofthetime value of moneyis material). These are reviewed ateachbalance sheetdate
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed inthe Notes. Contingent assets are notrecognized in the financial
statements.

Earnings per share

Basicearnings per share are computed by dividing of profit/loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potentialequity sharesare deemed converted as ofthe beginning ofthe period, unlessissuedatalater
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

Operating Cycle

Basedonthe nature of products/activities ofthe Company and the normaltime between acquisition of
assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle
as twelve months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
Changes in Accounting Policies

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
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New accounting pronouncements adopted by the Company duringthe currentfinancial year

Ind AS 116, Leases:

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified in March 2019 and itreplaces Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.The Company has applied Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ (Ind AS
116)with adate of initial application of April 1, 2019 using modified retrospective approach and hence
not restating the previous year's financial statements.

Contracts previously identified as lease under Ind AS 17 has notreassessed as to whether a contractis, or
contains, alease under Ind AS 116 The Company has made use of the following practical expedients
available in its transition to Ind AS 116 -

a) The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment. Consequently, the Company has recorded its lease liability using the
present value of remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application and the right-of- use asset after adjusting the prepaid rent.

b) The Companyexcludedtheinitial direct costs from measurement ofthe right of use of asset;

c) The Company does notrecognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for leases with less than
twelve months of lease term and low-value assets on the date of initial application.

d) Theincremental borrowing rate of discount applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 13.8%.
On adoption of Ind AS 116,

a) The Company had recognized right-of-use assets Rs. 1,283.54 lakhs and corresponding lease
liabilities Rs. 1,231.40

b) Prepaidrentonleaseholdland, which were earlier classified under “Other Assets” have been
reclassified to right-of-use assets by Rs. 52.14 lakhs.

Duringthe year ended March 31, 2020, the Company recognized in the statement of profitand loss
a) Depreciation expense fromright-of-use assets of Rs. 259.32 lakhs (Refer to Note 4 (c))
b) Interestexpenses on lease liabilities of Rs. 169.93 lakhs (Refer to Note 26)

c) RentexpenseamountingtoRs.72.23 pertainingtoleasesoflow-value assetsleaseswithlessthan
twelve months of lease term has beenincluded under rent expenses (Refer to Note 27)

The term of lease agreements entered by the company ranges from 6 to 10 years. Lease payments during
the year are disclosed under financing activities in the statement of cash flows.
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ThecomparativesasatandfortheyearendedMarch31,2019havenotbeenretrospectively adjusted.

Theadoptionofind AS 116 did not have any materialimpactonthe Company’s statement of profitand
loss and earnings per share.

The difference between the lease obligation disclosed as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 and the value
oftheleaseliabilitiesas of April 1,2019is primarily on account of practical expedients exercised for low
value assets and short term leases, as at adoption of the standard, in measuring lease liability and
discounting the lease liabilities to the present value in accordance with Ind AS 116.

2.4. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were approved for issuance by the Board of Directors of the Company on July
13, 2020.

3. Use of estimates and judgements

Inthe application ofthe Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the directors of
the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of investments, Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments, Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets annually, or more frequently when there is an indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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4(a).Property, plantand equipment (RinLakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Carrying amounts of:
Freehold land 2,248.20 2246.17
Buildings 557.84 580.28
Plant and equipment 1,116.11 1175.22
Electrical equipments 14.26 16.05
Furniture and fixtures 89.96 107.68
Office equipment 12.33 28.09
Vehicles 10.80 16.86
Computers 5.10 7.02
4,054.40 4,177.16
Fixed Assets (RinLakhs)
Tangible Assets
Particulars Land Building Plantand Electrical Furniture Office Vehicles Computers Total of Tangible
Equipment installations and fixtures equipment Assets
Cost as at March 31, 2018 2,246.17 648.51 1,468.86 106.10 155.31 72.34 42.11 20.69 4,760.09
Additions 13.90 4.35 2.45 4.01 24.71
Disposals 87.91 87.91
Revaluation increase -
Adjustment towards Impairment (12.46) - - - - 12.46 -
Cost as at 31st Mar 2019 2,246.17 648.51 1,382.39 106.10 159.66 74.80 42.11 37.16 4,696.89
Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - 45.86 180.23 88.27 34.15 29.13 19.43 26.50 423.57
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the year - 22.37 90.46 1.78 17.83 17.58 5.82 3.64 159.48
Eliminated on disposal of assets (63.52) (63.52)
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2018 - 68.23 207.17 90.05 51.98 46.71 25.25 30.14 519.53
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 2,246.17 580.28 1,175.22 16.05 107.68 28.09 16.86 7.02 4,177.16
Cost as at 31st Mar 2019 2,246.17 648.51 1,382.39 106.10 159.66 74.80 42.11 37.16 4,696.89
Additions 2.03 77.53 0.91 0.23 0.79 81.49
Disposals - 182.49 182.49
Revaluation increase -
Adjustment towards Impairment - -
Cost as at 31st Mar 2020 2,248.20 648.51 1,277.43 106.10 160.57 75.03 42.11 37.95 4,595.90
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - 68.24 207.17 90.05 51.99 46.71 25.25 30.14 519.55
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the year - 22.43 97.22 1.79 18.62 15.99 6.07 2.71 164.84
Eliminated on disposal of assets 143.07 143.07
Accumulated depreciation as at 31st Mar 2020 - 90.67 161.32 91.84 70.61 62.70 31.32 32.85 541.31
Carrying amount as at 31st Mar 2020 2,248.20 557.84 1,116.11 14.26 89.96 12.33 10.80 5.10 4,054.40

4(b). Capital Work - in - progress

Particulars

Amount (in lakhs)

Amountason 31stMarch,2019
Amountason 31stMarch, 2020
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4(c). Right-of-Use Asset

Gross Carrying Value:

(ZinLakhs)
. Category of ROU asset Total
Particulars Leasehold Land
Reclassification amount on adoption of Ind AS as at 1st Apr 699.98 699.98
Additions 583.56 583.56
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2020 1,283.54 1,283.54
Accumulated Depreciation - -
Depreciation 259.32 259.32
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2020 259.32 259.32
Net Book Value as at March 31, 2020 1,024.22 1,024.22
5. OtherlIntangible Assets (ZinLakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Carrying amounts of :

Computer Software 9.75 21.99
9.75 21.99
Intangible Assets (ZinLakhs)

Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Total of Intangible
software
Assets
Cost as at March 31, 2018 121.75 121.75
Additions 3.05 3.05
Disposals
Cost as at 31st March 2019 124.80 124.80
Amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation 67.91 67.91
Amortisation for the year 34.90 34.90
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Accumulated amortisation as at 31st March 2019 102.81 102.81
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2019 21.99 21.99
Cost as at March 31, 2019 124.80 124.80
Additions 2.70 2.70
Disposals
Cost as at 31st Mar 2020 127.50 127.50
Amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation 102.81 102.81
Amortisation for the year 14.94 14.94
Eliminated on disposal of assets
Accumulated amortisation as at 31st Mar 2020 117.75 117.75
Carrying amount as at 31st Mar 2020 9.75 9.75
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6 Non-Current Investments
As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Particulars Zin Lakhs ZinLakhs
10,000(31March,2020:10,000& 1 April, 2019:10,000) Fully paidup Shares of The BharatCo-op.Bank 1.00 1.00
(Mumbeai) Ltd. of 10 each.
Total 1.00 1.00
7(a) Otherfinancial Assets
Non-Current
Particulars Asal Asal
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Security deposit 174.20 257.99
Total 174.20 257.99
7(b) Otherfinancial Assets
Current
Particulars Asal Asal
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs ZinLakhs
Security deposit 1.21 1.21
Receivable on sale of fixed assets - 0.51
Rent receivable 10.17 7.19
Interest on accrued deposits 10.62
Total 11.38 19.53
8(a) Other Assets
Non-current
Particulars Asal Asal
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs Zin Lakhs
Capital advances - 0.03
Balances with government authorities:

-VAT Receivable 30.26 36.83
Prepaid expense - 23.97
Slump sale receivable - 230.72
Advance Tax/ TDS receivable 126.53 103.22

156.79 394.77

Balances with government authorities:

-VAT Receivable 95.16 95.16

95.16 95.16

Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances (95.16) (95.16)
Other Receivables (Refer Note 8(a)(i) below) 147.12 -

303.91 394.77

Total

recievable and hence have not done any provision for the same.

Note 8 (a)(i)- Other Receivables represents the amount which is recoverable from terminated employees and is considered as unsecured. Company considers same as

8(b) Other Assets
Current
Particulars Asal Asal
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs Zin Lakhs
Capital advances 136.47 0.78
Advance given to suppliers 51.96 99.23
Balances with government authorities:
- Export incentive receivable 167.92 197.68
- GST Receivable 722.62 870.86
Prepaid expenses 7.15 14.53
Advance to employees 1.19 1.12
1,087.31 1,184.20
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Unsecured, considered doubtful
Balances with government authorities:

- Export incentive receivable 119.50 350.91
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 157.30 265.11
276.80 616.02
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances (276.80) (616.02)
Total 1,087.31 1,184.20
9 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Raw materials 434.31 477.89
Work-in-progress 271.41 202.19
Finished goods 707.68 812.25
Consumables / Accessories 168.61 147.14
Total 1,582.01 1,639.47
Details of inventory
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs Zin Lakhs
Raw materials
Fabric 434.31 477.89
434.31 477.89
Work-in-progress
Fabric Cutting / Batching 271.41 202.19
271.41 202.19
Finished goods
Garments 707.68 812.25
707.68 812.25
Consumables
Trims 168.61 147.14
168.61 147.14
10 Current Investments
As af] As at
Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs Zin Lakhs
Equity Instruments
a) Strides Shasun Limited 10.08 14.74
3,125 (31 March, 2020: 3,125 & 1 April, 2019: 3,125) Shares of Face Value of 210 each fully paid up
b) Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited 0.79 1.55
13,000 (31 March, 2020: 13,000 & 1 April, 2019: 13,000) Shares of Face Value of 210 each fully paid up
c) Solara Active 2.30 2.18
520 (31 March, 2020: 520 & 1 April, 2019: 520) Shares of Face Value of 10 each fully paid up
Total 13.17 18.47
11 Tradereceivables
Asat As at
Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs ZinLakhs
Tradereceivables outstanding for aperiod exceeding six months from the datethey were due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 1,676.28 1,937.31
Unsecured, considered doubtful 1,131.91 1,052.91
2,808.19 2,990.21
Less: Accrual for expected credit losses (1,131.91) (1,052.91)
Total 1,676.29 1,937.31
12 Cash and Cash equivalents
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs TinLakhs
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand 2.68 291
Balances with banks
(i) In current accounts 221.04 667.90
(i) Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 1,031.81
Other bank balances
— Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months 26.39 46.39
Total cash and cash equivalents 250.11 1,749.01
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13 Equity Share capital
As at] As at]
Particulars 31 March,2020| 31 March, 2019
ZinLakhs ZinLakhs
Authorized
6,00,10,000 ( 31 March 2020: 6,00,10,000 & 1 April 2019: 6,00,10,000) Equity Shares of 210 each 6,001.00 6,001.00
Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid up
4,79,90,469 ( 31 March 2020: 4,79,90,469 & 1 April 2019: 4,79,90,469) Equity Shares of ¥10/- each fully paid up 4,799.05 4,799.05
Total 4,799.05 4,799.05
(i) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
particulars As at 31st Mar, 2020 As at 31st Mar, 2019
No. of Shares %in Lakhs No. of Shares Zin Lakhs
At the beginning of the year 47,990,469 4,799.05 47,990,469 4,799.05
Fresh Issue/other changes - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 47,990,469 4,799.05 47,990,469 4,799.05
(ii) Details of rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares:
The company has only one class of share capital namely Equity Shares having par value of 10 per share. Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per
share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the
shareholders.
(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:-
Name of Shareholders As at 31st Mar, 2020 As at 31st Mar, 2019
No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
E-Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd. (Holding
Company) 31,598,094 65.84 31,598,094 65.84
(iv) Shares held by holding company:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2020 | 31st Mar, 2019
Zin Lakhs %in Lakhs
E-Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd. (Holding Company) 3,159.81 3,159.81
31,598,094 (31 March, 2020: 31,598,094 & 1 April, 2019: 31,598,094) equity shares of 310 each fully paid
14 Other Equtiy
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March,2020[ 31 March,2019|
Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Securities Premium Account 14,245.60 14,245.60
General Reserve 591.82 591.82
Retained Earnings
Opening balance (64,359.43) (58,171.23)
Add: Loss for the year (5,242.83) (4,151.88)
Add: Remeasurements of the defined benefit Plans - Gains / (lossses) 30.04 28.72
Less: Adjustments towards
- Impact of IND AS 115 - (2,065.04)
Closing Balance (69,572.22) (64,359.43)
Revaluation surplus (Other comprehensive income) 739.18 739.18
Capital contribution
Deemed Capital contribution from related party 13,338.63 13,338.63
Total (40,657.01) (35,444.20)
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15 Non-Current Borrowings
As at As at
Particulars 31 March,2020| 31 March,2019
Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Unsecured Borrowings
From related parties
(i) From Holding company 3,352.03 2,715.78
(ify From other related party 925.60 788.86
Total 4,277.63 3,504.64
i) The company has taken 3 External commercial borrowings in total from the holding company. Allthe loans are repayable as a bullet payment at
the end of the maturity period of the respective ECBs. The details of the ECBs received by the company from its holding company is as follows:
Principle Amount
Purpose
Type p (in USD) Interest Rate [Repayment Date
ECB 1 Working capital 1,917,724 4.31% 8th July, 2033
ECB 2 Construction of factory building 2,000,000 4.10% 4th January, 2033
ECB 3 Construction of factory building 300,000 4.55% %tzthecembe"
Total 4,217,724
ii) Loans from other related parties is at interest rate of 8.5% and repayment of the same will start from FY 2024 - 2025
16(a) Other financial Liabilities
Non-current
. As at] As at
Particulars
31 March,2020] 31 March, 2019
TinLakhs TinLakhs
Rent deposits received 14.00 14.00
Total 14.00 14.00
16(b) Other financial Liabilities
Current
’ As at] As at
Particulars
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
ZinLakhs Tin Lakhs
Payable on purchase of fixed assets 32.13 5.65
Unclaimed Dividend* 0.01 0.01
Total 32.14 5.66
* There are no amounts payable/due to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as at 31 March, 2020.
16(c) Lease Liability
Non-current
. As at] Asat
Particulars
31 March,2020] 31 March, 2019
TinLakhs TinLakhs
Lease Liability 899.06
Total 899.06
16(d ) Lease Liability
Current
’ As at] Asat
Particulars
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Lease Liability 187.03
Total 187.03
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17(a) Provisions
Non-Current
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March,2020| 31 March, 2019
ZinLakhs ZinLakhs
Provision for employees benefits
- Gratuity 193.00 199.09
- Compensated absences 146.63 142.26
Total 339.63 341.35
17 (b) Provisions
Current
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Tin Lakhs TinLakhs
Provision for employees benefits
- Gratuity 41.86 35.72
- Compensated absences 54.96 49.43
Provision fordisputed matters 80.92 80.92
Total 177.74 166.07
18 (a) Other Liabilities
Non-current
Particulars Asal Asal
31 March,2020| 31 March, 2019
ZinLakhs ZinLakhs
Liability on account of straightlining of lease rentals - 7.86
Advance from Holding company 38,805.13 34,744.63
Total 38,805.13 34,752.49
18 (b) Other Liabilities
Current
) As at As at
Particulars
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
ZinLakhs ZinLakhs
Advance from Group company 721.95 138.34
Advance received from customers 19.47 33.73
Statutory remittances (Contributionto PF &
ESIC,withholdingtaxes, VAT, Servicetax,
Excise duty, etc.) 168.73 179.91
Total 910.15 351.98
19 Current Borrowings
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March,2020] 31 March, 2019
TinLakhs TinLakhs
Loan from related party* 34.14
Total 34.14 -
*Loan from related party is taken at an interest rate of 8.5% which is repayable by the company in the year 2020.
20 Trade Payables
Asat As at
Particulars 31 March,2020[ 31 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs ZinLakhs
Dues to Micro and Small enterprises 6.42
Dues to other than Micro and Small enterprises:
Other than acceptances 1,228.35 2,229.47
Accrual of expenses 861.32 798.95
Total 2,096.09 3,028.42
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21 Revenue from Operations
FortheYearended 31st Fortheyearended 31
Particulars Mar, 2020 March,2019
Zin Lakhs Zin Lakhs
Sale of products (Refer Note 21(a)) 13,255.04 16,255.64
Sale of services 950.28 399.49
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 18.56 15.83
Export incentives 671.62 520.40
Other- Sale of fabric and accessories 39.40 10.53
Revenue from operations 14,934.90 17,201.89
Note 21(a) Details of products sold
FortheYearended 31st Fortheyearended 31
Particulars Mar, 2020 March,2019
Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Finished goods
Garments 13,255.04 16,255.64
13,255.04 16,255.64
22 Other Income
FortheYearended 31st Fortheyearended 31
Particulars Mar, 2020 March, 2019
Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Interest
- on deposits with banks 17.88 36.88
- on others 11.91 16.59
Dividend income on current investment 0.15 0.15
Provisions/ liabilities no longer required written back 169.03 217.07
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translations 92.34 38.62
Other non-operating income (Refer Note 22 (a) below) 21.44 95.30
Total 312.75 404.61
Note 22 (a) Other non-operating income includes:
FortheYearended 31st Fortheyearended 31
Particulars Mar, 2020 March,2019
Zin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Rental income 21.44 20.75
Miscellaneous income - 74.55
Total 21.44 95.30
23 Cost of raw materials consumed
FortheYearended 31st Fortheyearended 31
Particulars Mar, 2020 March,2019
Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Opening stock including consumables 625.02 986.47
Purchase 7,779.29 8,935.29
Less: Closing stock including consumables (602.92) (625.02)
Total 7,801.39 9,296.74
Details of raw materials consumed
FortheYearended 31st Fortheyearended 31
Particulars Mar, 2020 March, 2019
Zin Lakhs Zin Lakhs
Fabric 6,264.97 7,819.33
Consumables / Accessories 1,536.42 1,477.41
7,801.39 9,296.74
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24 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress
Forthe Year ended 31st For the year ended 31
Particulars Mar, 2020 March, 2019
TinLakhs TinLakhs
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods 707.70 812.25
Work-in-progress 271.41 202.19
(A) 979.11 1,014.44
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 812.25 1,014.39
Work-in-progress 202.19 195.60
B) 1,014.44 1,209.99
Total (B-A): Net (increase)/Decrease 35.33 195.55
25 Employee benefits expenses
Forthe Year ended 31st For the year ended 31
Particulars Mar,2020 March, 2019
TinLakhs TinLakhs
Salaries and wages 4,795.70 4,605.05
Contribution to provident and other funds 449.36 495.04
Gratuity expense 93.05 92.47
Staff welfare expenses 78.91 60.13
Total 5,417.02 5,252.70
26 Finance Costs
Forthe Year ended 31st For theyear ended 31
Particulars Mar,2020 March, 2019
TinlLakhs TinLakhs
Interest
-on borrowings from related parties 4,240.55 3,910.35
-others 294.83 0.02
Bank Charges 40.41 34.69
Loss due to modification in terms of loan * 246.73 -
Total 4,822.52 3,945.06
* During the year, there was change in the terms of loan from other related party due to which the company has incurred a modification loss during the
246.73 lakhs.
27 Other Expenses
Forthe Year ended 31st For the year ended 31
Mar,2020 March, 2019
Particulars ¥ inLakhs TinLakhs
Power and fuel 230.05 242.62
Water expenses 7.38 6.71
Job work charges 366.93 370.24
Repairs and maintenance:-
Building 49.77 15.22
Plant and machinery 2.23 3.78
Others 57.54 43.60
Payment to auditors (Refer to Note 27(a) below) 8.00 17.58
Freight & forwarding charges 199.55 289.86
Insurance 6.72 11.60
Rent 72.23 429.27
Rates and taxes 134.91 293.27
Director sitting fees 3.00 3.60
Sundry balance written off 70.07 204.14
Bad debts written off 1.24 100.44
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 61.82 87.16
Provision for Advances to Suppliers - 64.89
Loss on account of fair valuation of equity investments measured at fair value through profit & loss 5.30 4.30
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 27.98 5.87
Travelling & conveyance 258.67 265.36
Legal & professional Charges 190.55 152.09
Security Services 81.60 95.80
Brokerage & Commission 19.60 49.71
Communication expenses 17.78 16.30
Miscellaneous expenses 102.25 100.53
Total 1,975.16 2,873.94
Note 27 (a) Remuneration to auditors
Forthe Year ended 31st For the year ended 31,
Mar, 2020 March, 2019
Particulars TinLakhs TinLakhs
To Statutory auditor
For statutory audit 6.00 6.00
For taxation matters 1.00 -
For other services 1.00 11.58
8.00 17.58
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28. Segment reporting

Disclosure on Operating segments

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of garments. The Chief Operating Decision Maker reviews the operations of the Company as a unit of
manufacturing and sale of garments, which is considered to be the only reportable segment by the Management.

Geographical information:

Revenue (revenue from operations) within India and outside India are as follows:

(% in Lakhs)

Revenue

Country For the Year ended | For the Year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
India 4,661.34 4,707.24
Outside India 10,273.56 12,494.65
Total 14,934.90 17,201.89

29. Employee benefitplans

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the said
schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognises the amount paid / payable to
such funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions made by the Company towards these schemes are as follows:

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Employer’s contribution to provident fund

322.76

337.01

Employer’s contribution to Employee State Insurance Scheme

108.31

158.03

Defined benefit plans

The Company offers gratuity, a defined employee benefit scheme to its employees. The said plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest rate

risk, longevity risk and salary risk

Interest risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to

increase.

Longevity risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of
thesedecrementsonthedefinedbenefitobligationisnotstraightforward anddepends uponthecombinationofsalaryincrease, discountrate andvestingcriteria. Itis
important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a

long service employee.

Salary risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past

service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Disclosure of Defined Benefit Cost for year ended 31st March 2020 and year ended 31 March 2019

I. Components of Employer Expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Particulars (Z in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Current service cost 77.97 76.65
Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement - -
Service cost 77.97 76.65
Net interest cost 15.08 15.82
Total expense recognised in P&L 93.05 92.47

Other Comprehensive Income ( OCl )

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Particulars (T in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in financial assumption (7.08) (16.89)
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to experience adjustments (20.15) (11.82)
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in demographic assumption (2.80) -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period (30.04) (28.72)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets - -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (30.04) (28.72)
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For the year ended For the year ended
Defined Benefit Cost March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars (% in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Service cost 77.97 76.65
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 15.08 15.82
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (30.04) (28.72)
Defined Benefit Cost 63.01 63.76
Key Assumptions
[ Discount Rate 5.75%]| 6.95%|
[Rate of salary increase 6.00%| 8.00%|

Net Balance Sheet position

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Particulars

(% in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) 234.86 234.81
Fair value of plan assets (FVA) -
Funded status [surplus/(deficit)] 234.86 234.81
Effect of Asset ceiling -
Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) 234.86 234.81

Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Particulars (% in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Opening net liability 23481 233.77
Transfer in/(out) obligation - -
Transfer in/(out) plan assets - -
Employee benefit Expense for the year:

Service cost 77.97 76.65
Net interest on net defined benefit (liability)/ asset 15.08 15.82
Amount recognised in OCI (30.04) (28.72)
Contribution to plan assets - -
Benefit paid directly by the Company (62.96) (62.72)
Closing net defined benefit liability 234.86 234.81

Disclosure of Defined Benefit Cost for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and year ended 31st March, 2019

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Particulars (% in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
DBO at end of prior period 234.81 233.77
Current service cost 77.97 76.65
Interest cost on the DBO 15.08 15.82
Curtailment (credit)/ cost - -
Settlement (credit)/ cost - -
Past service cost - plan amendments - -
Remeasurements due to:

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (7.08) (16.89)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions (2.80) -
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes (20.15) (11.82)
Benefits paid directly by the Company (62.96) (62.72)
Benefits paid from plan assets - -
Liabilities assumed / (settled)* - -
DBO at end of current period 234.86 234.81

Expected benefit payments for the year ending

As at March 31, 2020

Particulars (% in Lakhs)

Year 1 41.86
Year 2 40.37
Year 3 39.41
Year 4 35.78
Year 5 30.44
Year 6 to Year 10 80.60

Current and Non Current Liability portion

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Particulars (% in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Current Liability 41.86 35.72
Non Current Liability 193.00 199.09
Net Asset/(Liability) 234.86 234.81
Sensitivity Analysis

(Rs. in Lakhs)
|DBO on base assumptions 234.86 234.81|

Discount Rate

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Particulars

Discount Rate 5.75%) 6.95%
1 Effect on DBO due to 50 bps increase in Discount Rate -1.86% -2.00%
2 Effect on DBO due to 50 bps decrease in Discount Rate 1.93% 2.08%
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Salary escalation rate

Salary Escalation Rate 5.75% 6.95%
1 Effect on DBO due to 50 bps increase in Salary Escalation Rate 1.92%) 2.05%
2 Effect on DBO due to 50 bps decrease in Salary Escalation Rate -1.86% -1.99%

These sensitivities have been calculated to showthe movementin defined benefit obligation inisolation and assuming there are no other changes in market
conditions atthe accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods inthe methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity

analyses.

30. Financial Instruments

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders. The capital structure of
the Company consists of net debt and total equity of the Company. The management of the Company reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.

The capital structure is as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Financial Assets

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
(a) Mandatorily measured:

Investments in Equity shares (Refer Notes 6 and 10]

Measured at amortised cost

(a) Cash and bank balances

(b) Other financial assets at amortised cost
(including trade receivables) [Refer Notes 7 and 11]

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost

14.17

250.11
1,861.87

7,540.08

19.47

1,749.01
2,214.83

6,552.72

Financial risk management objectives

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Total equity attributable to the equity share holders of the company (35,857.96) (30,645.15)
Borrowings (Current and Non-current) 4,311.77 3,504.64
Total capital (borrowings and equity) (31,546.19) (27,140.51)
Categories of financial instruments
(% in Lakhs)
As at As at

The Company's risk managementis carried out by Treasury department under policies laid down by the management. The Company's activities expose it to
market risk (whichincludes currencyrisk, interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Treasury department monitors the risk exposures
on a periodical basis and reports to the Board of directors on the risks that it monitors and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary

As at 31st March, 2020
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars UsD Euro Total
Financial Assets 1,845.44 38.21 1,883.65
Financial Liabilities 3,527.93 - 3,527.93
As at 31st March, 2019
(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars UsD Euro Total
Financial Assets 1,672.79 37.15 1,709.94
Financial Liabilities 2,775.48 - 2,775.48
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to USD on account of outstanding trade receivables, trade payables, and borrowings.

Thefollowing table details the Company's sensitivity to a5% increase and decrease in INR againstthe USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used whenreporting foreign currencyrisk internally to key management personnel
andrepresents management's assessmentofthe reasonably possible change inforeign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysisincludes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
theirtranslation atthe period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The amounts given below are the impact on loss and equity where the INR weakens 5% against USD. Positive number indicates decrease
inloss/increase in equity whereas negative number indicates increase in loss / decrease in equity. For a 5% strengthening of the INR against USD, there would be equivalent amount of loss as mentioned in the
below table.

(Rs. In lakhs)
For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Particulars Effectonprofitforthe| Effect onloss forthe| Effectonprofitfor | Effect on loss for the|

year if Rupee weakens year if Rupee the year if Rupee year if Rupee
against USD strengthens against | weakens against strengthens against
Financial assets 92.27 (92.27) 83.64 (83.64)
Financial liabilites (176.40) 176.40 (138.77) 138.77
Net Effect on profit/(Loss) (84.13) 84.13 (55.13) 55.13

Credit risk

Creditrisk referstotherisk thata counterparty will default onits contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable. The Company monitors its trade receivables on
casetocase basis, depending onthe ageing of days the receivables are due. Creditrisk also arises from cash and cash equivalents, financial instruments and deposits withbanks.

Reconciliation of loss allowances provision - Trade receivables

(Rs. In lakhs)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2018 957.55
Change in loss allowance 95.36
Loss allowance on March 31, 2019 1,052.91
Change in loss allowance 79.00
Loss allowance on March 31, 2020 1,131.91

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company could be unable to meet its short term financial demands.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the management, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short-term,
medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual short term and long term cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity analysis for non derivative financial liabilities-
The following table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The table have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows offinancial liabilities based onthe earliestdate onwhichthe Companyisrequiredto pay. The contractual maturity isbased onthe earliestdate onwhichthe Companywould be requiredto pay.

March 31,2020 (Rs. Inlakhs)

. e Due within (years) .
Financial Liabilities Tess than Tyear T-3years Tryears Total Carrying amount
Borrowings from related parties 34.14 - 4,020.83 4,054.97 4,311.77
Trade payables and others 2,128.23 14.00 - 2,142.23 2,142.23
Lease Liability (undiscounted) 336.91 972.49 217.83 1,527.23 1,086.08
Total 2,499.27 986.49 4,238.66 7,724.43 7,540.08
March 31,2019 (Rs. Inlakhs)
. e Due within (years) R
Financial Liabilities Tess than Tyear T-3years Tryears Total Carrying amount
Borrowings from related parties - 115.06 5,423.21 5,538.27 3,504.64
Trade payables and others 3,034.08 14.00 - 3,048.08 3,048.08
Lease Liability (undiscounted) - - - - -
Total 3,034.08 129.06 5,423.21 8,586.35 6,552.72

Equity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower, loss for the year ended March 31,2020 would increase/decrease by Rs. 0.66 lakhs (for the

year ended March 31, 2019: increase/decrease by Rs. 0.92 lakhs) as a result of the changes in fair value of equity investments.

Fair Valuation Techniques and Inputs used

Assets measured at fair value

Fair value as at

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Fair value hierarchy

Basis for valuation

Investments in Equity Shares

13.17

18.47

Level 1

Quoted market price

Land

2,248.20

2,246.17

Level 3

Market approach

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in these financial statements approximate their fair values .

31. Related Parties Disclosure:
Name of Related Parties and Description of relationship:

Key Management Personnel

Relationship

Mr. Jae Ho Song
Mr. Haeoi Choi

Managing Director (w.e.f May 30, 2017)
Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. February 14, 2017)

[ultimate Holding Company

|E Land World Co. Ltd.

| Holding Company

|E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd
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Fellow Subsidiary Companies *

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

E.Land International Fashion (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
Wish Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

E Land Fashion (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

E Land RetailLtd

E-Land Fashion Hong Kong Limited

WHOAU Holdings Inc.

Wish Fashion (Shanghai) Co.Ltd

* Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Tin Lakhs

Nature of Transaction

Key Management

Ultimate Holding

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

2019-20

2018-19

2019-20 2018-19

2019-20

2018-19

2019-20

2018-19

1) Transactions during the year
Purchase
E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.
E.Land International Fashion (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
Wish Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
E Land World Co. Ltd.

Job work expenses
E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

Sale of Products

E Land World Co. Ltd.

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

E.Land International Fashion (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
E Land Fashion (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

E Land Retail Ltd

E-Land Fashion Hong Kong Limited

E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd

Wish Fashion (Shanghai) Co.Ltd

Job work revenue
E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

Notional Interest expense on Borrowings
E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

Interest expense on Borrowings

E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

Advance Received

E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd

E Land World Co. Ltd.

Borrowings from Group Company.
E-Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd
Repayment of borrowings

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

3,590.17

95.88

5,732.91

4,187.50

126.21

357.78

213.00

442.65

5,976.94

36.36

1,388.20

2,166.26
8.05
172.78

(1.06)

207.75
14.84
1,306.84

665.67

371.60

200.00

400.72

3,885.44
24.06
122.41

56.70

347.29
41.20
2,148.51

19.08

33.39

91.65
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¥in Lakhs

Nature of Transaction

Key Management

Ultimate Holding

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

2019-20

2018-19

2019-20

2018-19

2019-20 201

8-19

2019-20

2018-19

2) Outstanding balances as at year end:
Non-current borrowings

E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

Capital Contribution

E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

Other Non-current liabilities

E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd

Current Borrowings

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

Other Current liabilities

E Land Asia Holdings Pte Ltd

Trade Payables

E Land World Co. Ltd.

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

E.Land International Fashion (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
Wish Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

Mr. Song Jae Ho

Trade Receivables

E Land World Co. Ltd.

E Land Fashion (Shanghai) Co. Ltd

E Land Retail Ltd

E.Land International Fashion (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
WHOAU Holdings Inc.

E-Land Fashion Hong Kong Limited

Other Assets

Slump sale receivable

E Land Fashion India Private Ltd.

3,352.03

38,805.13

268.29

2,715.78

34,882.97

925.60

13,338.63

34.14

135.70

89.91

106.13
91.38
127.81
105.22
10.44

788.86

13,338.63

1,087.92

19.16
6.60

97.16
124.75
143.82
105.22

10.44

230.72

There are no write-off /write back of debt due from/to related parties
Provision made in respect of dues from related parties is ¥342.60 lakhs (As at 31 March, 2019: % 332.15 lakhs)

Key Management personnel Remuneration for the year ended-

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Sitting fee 3.00 3.60

Short term employee benefits

(other than sitting fee) 167.36 158.64

Total 170.36 162.24

Earnings per share

Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Loss after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss ( Rs. in Lakhs) (A) (5,242.83) (4,151.88)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Basic) (B) 47,990,469 47,990,469

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Diluted ) ) 47,990,469 47,990,469

Nominal value of shares (Rs.) 10 10

Earnings per share (basic) (Rs.) (A/B) (10.92) (8.65)

Earnings per share (diluted ) (Rs.) (AIC) (10.92) (8.65)
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Leases - Ind AS 116

Lessee:
¥ in Lakhs
. . . For the Year ended
Amount recognised in Profit & Loss account March 31, 2020
Depreciation of Right-of-use asset 259.32
Interest on Lease Liabilities 169.93
Expenses related to short term leases 72.23
Expenses related to leases of low value assets, excluding short term leases of low value assets -
Total 501.48
The following table sets out the maturity analysis of lease liability to be paid after the reporting date:
Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at March'2020
Less than 1 year 187.03
1-3 years 706.03
3-5 years 193.03
5 years and above -
Total 1,086.09

Setoutbelowarethe carryingamounts oflease liabilities (included underinterest-bearingloansand borrowings) and the movements during

the period:

Tin Lakhs
Particulars As at March'2020
As at 1st April, 2019 658.40
Additions during the year 573.00
Accretion of interest 169.93
Payments 315.24
Total as on 31st March, 2020 1,086.09
Non-Current (Refer Note 16(c )) 899.06
Current (Refer Note 16(d)) 187.03

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particular
articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Works Contract Tax - Pertains to dues along with interest and penalty (Refer Note i) 250.22 250.22
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts - 16.77
Income-tax matters under appeal relating to certain disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 140.36 140.36

1961 (Refer Note i)

(i) The above amountis based onthe notice of demand/Assessment Orders by the tax authorities and the Company is contesting these claims.
Outflows, if any, arising out of these claims would depend on the outcome of the decisions of the appellate authorities and the Company’s
rights for future appeals before the judiciary. No reimbursements are expected.

The Company has incurred losses of Rs. 5,242.83 lakhs for the year ended 31st March,2020 (year ended March 31,2019 - Rs. 4,151.88 lakhs) and
the accumulated losses amounting to Rs. 40,657.01 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 35,444.20 lakhs) exceeds the paid up capital and reserves as on that
date. These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern and, therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
Managementis currentlyimplementing a plantoincrease turnover, improve profitability and financial position, sell certain non-core assets and
has assessed that it will be able to meet the working capital requirements for the next 12 months based on its cash flow projections. The
Holding company has also confirmed financial support to the Company to continue as agoing concern. The Company is therefore being viewed
as a going concern and the financial statements have been prepared under the going concern assumption.
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In respect of the Company’s leasehold land at Doddaballapura, the Company had entered into a lease cum sale agreement with the Karnataka
Industrial Areas Development Board (KIADB) wherein the Company has to develop the land, construct building and set up a manufacturing unit of
readymade garments and will provide employment opportunities as per the terms mentioned in the agreement. The Company is in the process of
complying with the aforesaid conditions.

In view of the accumulated losses and in accordance with Ind AS 12 - "Income Taxes", the Management believes that there is no reasonable
certainty supported by convincing evidence for recognizing deferred tax asset on carry forward losses.

Due to outbreak of Covid-19 a Nationwide Lockdown was been imposed by the Government of India vide MHA Order w.e.f. 23rd March and
thereafter it was only during mid of May 2020 it had granted permission to certain extent to run the factory. Since the Lockdown period all our
business operation remained on standstill and was disrupted till mid of May 2020. Due to outbreak of Covid-19, many workers have migrant from
Bangalore to other states. Hence due to such migration the Company had to face the shortage of workers for the operation of factory.

As per Government (Ministry Home Affairs) MHA Guidelines, the Government had allowed to operate the Factory with all Safety and Security
measures to fight against the Covid-19. Hence, company started our operation at our Factory with 50% of its previous capacity only. The safety
of employees who are now required to step out for work is being ensured and they have been mandated to use protective gear and take all
safety precautions.

However, company was not able to operate at its full extent to meet its minimum operating cost. Due to loss of Income/Sale and negative
cashflow it became very difficult for the company to operate and to manage even the minimum operational cost. However, Company expects to
receive carrying amount of all its assets including trade receivables, inventory and advances in ordinary course of business.

However, Considering the fact that the situation is exceptional and is changing dynamically, the Company is not in a position to gauge with
certainty, the future impact on its operations. Company is sure that demand in garments will take some time certainly for pick up. In spite of
many challenges of Covid-19 situation, we are expecting new opportunity in protective apparel and textile industry to overcome the situation.

At the time of vendor reconciliation, it has been observed that there has been wrongful discounting of payments to vendors and swindling away
with Company funds by two employees of the Company. On further enquiry, both the employees have accepted to indulge in such activities. As
of the reporting date, from the total vendor accounts which were verified, both employees have agreed for the wrongful discounting and swindling
with the payment of Rs. 2,70,06,890/- from the Company bank account. Company has recovered amount of Rs. 1,22,95,540/- from both the
employees. Company is in the process of recovering the balance amount of Rs. 1,47,11,350/- which is included under "Other Non- Current Assets"
and same is unsecured. Company is also in process of further investigating the unreconciled vendor ledgers and quantifying the total amount
involved. Company has terminated both the employees with immediate effect and the company has taken legal steps to recover the amount
from them.

The comparative figures of previous year have been rearranged / reclassified wherever necessary, to correspond with current period / year
presentation.
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